
 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 
 
Corporate Services 
Director:  Nigel Stewart 
 

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604444 

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 
e.mail –nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
20 August 2004 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, 
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 27 AUGUST 2004 at 2:00 PM, which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Nigel Stewart 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
 

BUSINESS 
 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)  

 
 3. MINUTES 
  Audit Committee 14 June 2004 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 4. APPOINT VICE-CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 
 5. EXTERNAL AUDIT PMP REPORTS 2002-3 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 5 - 20) 

 
 6. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT HMI 2002-3 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 21 - 24) 

 
 7. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2003-4 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 25 - 42) 

 
 8. AUDIT SCOTLAND REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT (FOLLOW UP) 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 43 - 74) 

 
E1 9. EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004/5 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Appendix 6 is Exempt) (Pages 75 - 104) 

 
 10. KPMG WORK PLAN FOR INTERNAL AUDIT PARTNERING CONTRACT 
  Report by KPMG (Pages 105 - 108) 

Public Document Pack



 11. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2004-5 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 109 - 112) 

 
 12. UNAUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS - 31 MARCH 2004 
  Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 113 - 154) 

 
 13. DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN 
  Report by Head of ICT and Financial Services (Pages 155 - 158) 

 
 14. INTERNAL AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
  Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 159 - 160) 

 
 The Committee will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local 

Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an “E” on 
the grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part I of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973. 
 
The appropriate paragraph is:-  
 

 E1 Paragraph 1  Information relating to a particular employee, former employee 
or applicant to become an employee of, or a particular office-holder, former 
office-holder or applicant to become an office-holder under the authority.  

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor John McAlpine
 Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor Elaine Robertson
 Councillor John Tacchi 
 
 
 Contact: Melissa Stewart                   Tel. No. 01546 604406 
 



 
MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, 

LOCHGILPHEAD  
on MONDAY, 14 JUNE 2004  

 
 

Present:  Councillor Gary Mulvaney(Chair) 
 

 Councillor Donald MacMillan Ian Ross 
 Councillor Elaine Robertson Christopher Valentine 
 Councillor John Tacchi  
   
Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic Services & Governance 
 Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance 
 Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager 
 Steve Keightley, KPMG 
 Ian Bell, Audit Scotland 
 
Apologies: Councillor John McAlpine  
   
 
 1. MINUTES 

 
  (a) The Committee approved the minutes of the Audit Committee of 20 

February 2004 as a correct record. 
 

 Arising from Item 10 (Disaster Recovery Plan) the Committee 
requested an update for the next meeting as a matter of urgency and 
also requested that the Head of ICT and Financial Services write to 
Members of the Committee within the next week advising of the date for 
completion of the plan. 
 

(b) The Committee approved the minutes of the Audit Committee of 31 
March 2004 as a correct record. 
 

(c) The Committee approved the minutes of the Audit Committee of 29 
April 2004 as a correct record. 
  

 2. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2001-2 
 

  Internal Audit had prepared a list of all external audit management letters 
produced by Audit Scotland for 2001-2 and outlined the progress made by 
management in the implementation of the report recommendations. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by 

Internal Audit. 
  
2. To request that a further column be added to future reports including the 

original implementation date. 
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 3. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2002-3 
 

  Internal Audit had prepared an up to date list of all external management reports 
produced by Audit Scotland in 2002-3.  Details of the results of a review of 
progress being made by management in implementing the outstanding 
recommendations were outlined. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of this report and request that this be followed up by 

Internal Audit. 
  
2. To request confirmation of advertising details for the Planning Officer for 

Community Care post. 
 
3. To request a report on adaptations for the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
4. That in view of the forthcoming consultation on Clinical Strategy for NHS 

Argyll and Clyde, the action at Number 1 (page 39) may be rendered 
pointless and the consensus of the Committee is that no action should be 
taken to progress this matter at present. 

 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

 4. EXTERNAL AUDIT PMP REPORTS 2002-3 
 

  Audit Scotland have a statutory responsibility to satisfy themselves that the 
Council has in place appropriate management arrangements to secure value for 
money from the resources available to it.  The method used by them in 2002-3 
was Performance Management and Planning (PMP) Reviews and an update on 
progress made by management in implementing remaining issues was provided. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by 

Internal Audit.  
  
2. That the Head of Community Care provide a presentation on the outstanding 

points listed in the PMP Review to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

 5. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT HMI 2002-3 
 

  A Review regarding the progress made by Community Services Management in 
the implementation of key recommendations from the Accounts Commission 
Report titled “Moving To Mainstream – The Inclusion of Pupils With Special 
Educational Needs In Mainstream Schools” had been performed by Internal 
Audit, the result of which were outlined. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report and request that this be followed up by Internal 
Audit. 

Page 2



 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted) 
 

 6. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2003-4 
 

  Internal Audit had prepared an up to date list of all external audit management 
reports produced by Audit Scotland in 2003-4.  Details regarding the results of a  
review of the progress made by management of the outstanding 
recommendations were outlined. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of this report and request that this be followed up by 

Internal Audit. 
 
2. That a report be brought to the next meeting of the Committee updating 

Members of the asset management strategy proposals.  
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

 7. IFCS STATEMENT 2003-4 
 

  The Council’s Senior Management have a responsibility to establish an 
appropriate and sound system of internal control and to monitor the continuing 
effectiveness of this system.  Internal Audit have provided an annual overall 
assessment of the robustness of the Internal Financial Control System for 
financial year 2003-4 for the Chief Executive and this was submitted for 
consideration. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report. 
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

 8. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2003-4 
 

  The Internal Audit Annual Report for 2003-4, which outlined duties and audits 
carried out during this period, was submitted for approval. 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2003/4. 
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted).  
 

 9. ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2004-5 
 

  The Committee considered a report outlining in detail the areas that will be 
audited in 2004-5 which comply with recommendations made by Audit Scotland 
to provide additional information to Auditees. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Decision 
 
To approve the Annual Audit Plan for 2004-5 
 
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 May 2004, submitted). 
 

 10. APPOINT VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

  The Committee agreed to continue this matter to the next meeting to allow 
Members of the Committee the opportunity to express an interest in the position. 
 

 

Page 4



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
PMP EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS 2002 – 03. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  As part of Audit Scotland’s statutory responsibilities, they are required to satisfy 

themselves that the Council has in place appropriate management arrangements to secure 
value for money from the resources available to it.  The method used in 2002 - 2003 was 
to review Council best value progress through Performance Management and Planning 
(PMP) reviews.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 As reported to the last Audit Committee, Internal Audit will continue to report on 

the progress made by local management in implementing the agreed actions 
outlined in the remaining Audit Scotland PMP reports.  

    
  3.2 At 30 July 2004, Internal Audit carried out a review to establish what progress 

local management had made in implementing the agreed actions raised in the 
remaining PMP reviews.  Appendix 1 sets out the overall updated position. 
Internal Audit can report that the outstanding recommendation for Fleet 
Management contained in Appendix 2 has now been completed. Appendices 3 and 
4 cover the remaining actions to be implemented with management comment 
appended. Internal Audit will continue to monitor and report on those 
recommendations still to be implemented. 

    
  3.3  As requested at the previous Audit Committee, the Head of Community Support 

will attend today and present a report with regard to points outstanding from the 
PMP review on Community Care. The report is given in Appendix 5. 

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyprogreport30July 

Page 6



APPENDIX 1 

EXTERNAL AUDIT PMP REPORTS 
 
 

 
Appendix 

No. 
PMP Report Name 

No. Of Original 
Recommendations

May 2002 

No. Of 
Recommendations
Outstanding as at 

30 July 2004 
2 Fleet Management 6 0 
3 Corporate Approach 23 1 
4 Community Care 22 2 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/2

00
3 

AU
D

IT
 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
C

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 –

  
FO

LL
O

W
 U

P 
AU

D
IT

 O
F 

FL
EE

T 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
SE

RV
IC

ES
 

(T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
) 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 2
 

 

 FE
BR

U
AR

Y 
20

03
 

PA
G

E 
7 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
 

 

 
1.

 
A

gr
ee

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

20
00

/0
1 

PM
P 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t b

y 
A

ud
it 

Sc
ot

la
nd

.  

2.
 

A
gr

ee
d 

ke
y 

m
ile

st
on

e 
da

te
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

20
00

/0
1 

PM
P 

au
di

t. 
  

3.
 

B
ri

ef
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 
w

ha
t t

he
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

as
 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
.  

4.
 

T
o 

w
ha

t e
xt

en
t h

as
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

be
en

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d?
 

Pl
ea

se
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

 
a 

le
tt

er
 A

-D
 a

s p
er

 E
xh

ib
it 

1.
  

  

5.
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 

ca
n 

be
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
th

e 
au

di
to

r 
to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
  

6.
 

A
ud

it 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 d

at
e 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

fo
llo

w
 u

p.
  

7.
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ly
 

20
04

. 

1.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
a 

“G
et

tin
g 

To
 

K
no

w
 Y

ou
 

Ex
er

ci
se

”.
 

N
o 

ag
re

ed
 d

at
es

 
bu

t i
t w

as
 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ta
sk

 w
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 

ab
ou

t 2
3 

w
ee

ks
 

w
he

n 
st

ar
te

d 

To
 e

ns
ur

e/
de

m
on

st
ra

te
  

th
at

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

ha
s:

 
 - 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
al

l 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

- 
co

nf
irm

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 n
ee

ds
, 

pr
io

rit
ie

s, 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

ns
 

- 
ag

re
ed

 re
al

is
tic

 
st

an
da

rd
s a

nd
 

ta
rg

et
s 

- 
ag

re
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
po

rti
ng

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pa
st

 y
ea

r m
ee

tin
gs

 
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

w
ith

 fl
ee

t 
us

er
s. 

 T
hi

s h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

us
er

 g
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

an
d 

al
so

 w
ith

 u
se

rs
 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 w
he

ne
ve

r 
re

qu
ire

d.
  F

le
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
as

 a
ls

o 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
, a

nd
 

co
nt

in
ue

s t
o 

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
de

pa
rtm

en
t 

sc
ru

tin
y 

gr
ou

p 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
he

lp
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 b
ot

h 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

Fl
ee

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 F

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

is
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 w
ai

t t
he

 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

ou
nc

il 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

(G
ra

de
 B

)*
 

A
ge

nd
as

 a
nd

 
m

in
ut

es
 o

f 
m

ee
tin

gs
 h

el
d 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
PM

P 
au

di
t. 

 PM
P 

SM
A

R
T 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

3 
at

 e
ar

lie
st

 i.
e.

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  

C
om

pl
et

e.
  

 

Page 9



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/2

00
3 

AU
D

IT
 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
C

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 –

  
FO

LL
O

W
 U

P 
AU

D
IT

 O
F 

FL
EE

T 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
SE

RV
IC

ES
 

(T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
) 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 2
 

 

 FE
BR

U
AR

Y 
20

03
 

PA
G

E 
16

 
AU

D
IT

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
-A

U
D

IT
 S

C
O

TL
AN

D
 

  A
 –

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

m
an

ag
er

 c
an

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

as
 p

la
nn

ed
 

in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e 
i.e

. a
ct

io
n 

co
m

pl
et

e 
or

 p
la

nn
ed

 
m

ile
st

on
es

 m
et

 a
nd

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
.  

C
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 

co
un

ci
l m

an
ag

er
 c

an
no

t d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
pl

an
s i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ac
tio

n .
 

B
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 

co
un

ci
l m

an
ag

er
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

pl
an

s i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ac

tio
n.

 
D

 –
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
no

 lo
ng

er
 in

te
nd

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n.
  

R
ea

so
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

fo
r n

ot
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 a

ct
io

n.
 

  
 

Page 10



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/0

3 
AU

D
IT

 
PE

RF
O

RM
AN

C
E 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

AN
D

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 –
  

FO
LL

O
W

 U
P 

O
F 

TH
E 

20
00

/0
1C

O
RP

O
RA

TE
 A

U
D

IT
 

 
 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 3
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

AC
TI

O
N

 P
RO

G
RE

SS
 R

EP
O

RT

 
 

M
AR

C
H

 2
00

3 
 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
 

1

 
1.

 A
gr

ee
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ac
tio

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

00
/0

1 
PM

P 
au

di
t. 

2.
 A

gr
ee

d 
ke

y 
m

ile
st

on
e 

da
te

s f
ro

m
 

th
e 

20
00

/0
1 

PM
P 

au
di

t. 

3.
 B

ri
ef

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 w

ha
t t

he
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

as
 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

ac
hi

ev
e.

 

4.
 T

o 
w

ha
t e

xt
en

t h
as

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
be

en
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d?

 P
le

as
e 

de
sc

ri
be

 
an

d 
al

lo
ca

te
 a

 le
tt

er
 A

-D
 a

s 
pe

r 
E

xh
ib

it 
1.

 

5.
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
to

 su
pp

or
t t

he
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

6.
 A

ud
it 

Sc
ot

la
nd

  
da

te
s f

or
 

fo
llo

w
 u

p.
 

7 
Pr

og
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 3
0 

Ju
ly

 
20

04
. 

22
. C

om
pl

et
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s t

o 
de

liv
er

 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

• 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 to
 

re
vi

ew
 it

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s N
ov

 0
2 

 • 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

as
 h

ow
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

sy
st

em
s D

ec
 0

2 
 • 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 M
ar

 0
3 

   

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s, 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
en

ab
le

 it
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
re

qu
ire

. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s a

nd
 m

ad
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ol
ic

y 
ha

s a
ls

o 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

re
se

ar
ch

 
fo

ru
m

. H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

fin
al

ly
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
de

la
ye

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

as
 it

 w
ou

ld
 

no
t b

e 
w

is
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

un
til

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t s

tru
ct

ur
es

 a
re

 in
 

pl
ac

e.
 

(B
) 

� 
K

no
w

le
dg

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
(1

9th
 D

ec
 2

00
2)

 
(S

ee
 2

1.
1)

  
� 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f 

re
se

ar
ch

 
fo

ru
m

.(2
3.

2)
 

In
iti

al
ly

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r M

ar
ch

 
20

03
  

 C
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

la
ye

d 
un

til
 a

ut
um

n 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e 
B

es
t 

V
al

ue
 T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
- 

A
ut

um
n 

20
03

 –
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

03
 

Th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
re

se
ar

ch
 n

et
w

or
k 

ha
s b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

m
ee

ts
 o

n 
a 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 5
-6

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 p

er
 

ye
ar

. 
 K

ey
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
A

 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 
is

 
be

in
g 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
fo

r t
hi

s w
or

k.
 

Page 11



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/0

3 
AU

D
IT

 
PE

RF
O

RM
AN

C
E 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

AN
D

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 –
  

FO
LL

O
W

 U
P 

O
F 

TH
E 

20
00

/0
1C

O
RP

O
RA

TE
 A

U
D

IT
 

 
 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 3
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

AC
TI

O
N

 P
RO

G
RE

SS
 R

EP
O

RT

 
 

M
AR

C
H

 2
00

3 
 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
 

2

    A
 –

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

m
an

ag
er

 c
an

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 a
s p

la
nn

ed
 in

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
te

m
pl

at
e 

i.e
. a

ct
io

n 
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 p

la
nn

ed
 m

ile
st

on
es

 m
et

 a
nd

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
. 

C
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

an
ag

er
 c

an
no

t d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
pl

an
s i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ac
tio

n.
 

B
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

an
ag

er
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

pl
an

s i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ac

tio
n.

 

D
 –

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

no
 lo

ng
er

 in
te

nd
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n.
  R

ea
so

ns
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
fo

r n
ot

 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 a

ct
io

n.
 

  

Page 12



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/2

00
3 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
C

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

FO
LL

O
W

 U
P 

AU
D

IT
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

AR
E 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 

 
 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 4
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
AC

TI
O

N
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 R
EP

O
RT

 
 

 
 

 M
AR

C
H

 2
00

3 
 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

t 
C

ou
nc

il:
   

 A
rg

yl
l a

nd
 B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

 
Se

rv
ic

e:
   

  C
om

m
un

ity
 c

ar
e 

 
 

 
 

C
on

ta
ct

:  
 S

an
dr

a 
G

re
er

, H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

  
 1.

  A
gr

ee
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ac
tio

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

00
/0

1 
PM

P 
au

di
t c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 

A
ud

it 
Sc

ot
la

nd
. 

2.
  A

gr
ee

d 
ke

y 
m

ile
st

on
e 

da
te

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

02
/0

3 
PM

P 
A

ud
it 

3.
  B

rie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 w
ha

t t
he

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
as

 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

. 

4.
  T

o 
w

ha
t e

xt
en

t h
as

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
be

en
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d?

  P
le

as
e 

de
sc

rib
e 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

 a
 

le
tte

r A
-D

 a
s p

er
 e

xh
ib

it 
1.

 

5.
  E

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
au

di
to

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

6.
  D

at
es

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

fo
llo

w
 

up
 w

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 A

ud
it 

Sc
ot

la
nd

 

7.
 P

ro
gr

es
s a

s a
t 3

0 
Ju

ly
 

20
04

. 

1.
  N

ee
d 

fo
r f

ro
nt

lin
e 

st
af

f 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

be
tte

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 B

es
t V

al
ue

. 
  

St
af

f b
eg

in
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 a

nd
 

ho
w

 it
 a

pp
lie

s t
o 

th
ei

r w
or

k 

R
ol

l o
ut

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 d

el
ay

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
la

ck
 o

f s
ta

ff
 re

so
ur

ce
.  

In
te

nt
io

n 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

al
on

gs
id

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
al

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
tra

in
in

g.
 

 (B
) 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Te
am

 –
 

va
ca

nc
ie

s a
nd

 
M

an
ag

er
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s, 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

by
 D

M
T.

 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 A
pr

il 
20

04
. 

4.
  N

ee
d 

fo
r m

or
e 

ex
pl

ic
it 

lin
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

lo
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

 
C

en
tre

 p
la

ns
 w

ith
in

 B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
s 

to
 h

av
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
pl

an
s w

hi
ch

 ta
ke

 
a 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. 
   

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
s w

ill
 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
pr

od
uc

e 
an

nu
al

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 
to

 h
av

e 
th

em
 

re
vi

ew
ed

. 

2 
of

 4
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tre

 
Pl

an
s d

ra
fte

d 
20

02
/0

3.
 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 2

 w
ill

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t 2
00

3/
04

. 
 (B

) 

C
op

ie
s o

f P
la

ns
 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
C

om
pl

et
e 

se
e 

A
pp

en
di

x 
5 

R
ep

or
t S

ec
tio

n 
3.

4 

5.
 

N
ee

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
s, 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

s a
nd

 P
la

nn
er

s. 
 

A
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t t
o 

w
or

k 
m

or
e 

co
-

op
er

at
iv

el
y 

an
d 

cr
ea

tiv
el

y 
to

ge
th

er
. 

  

Ex
am

in
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 

an
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
fo

r p
ro

du
ci

ng
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pl
an

s. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

. 
(B

) 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

Th
is

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

as
 a

 m
at

te
r o

f 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

So
ci

al
 

W
or

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 in

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4.

 

Page 13



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/2

00
3 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
C

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

FO
LL

O
W

 U
P 

AU
D

IT
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

AR
E 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 

 
 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 4
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
AC

TI
O

N
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 R
EP

O
RT

 
 

 
 

 M
AR

C
H

 2
00

3 
 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
2

1.
  A

gr
ee

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

20
00

/0
1 

PM
P 

au
di

t c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t b

y 
A

ud
it 

Sc
ot

la
nd

. 

2.
  A

gr
ee

d 
ke

y 
m

ile
st

on
e 

da
te

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

02
/0

3 
PM

P 
A

ud
it 

3.
  B

rie
f d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 w
ha

t t
he

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
as

 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

. 

4.
  T

o 
w

ha
t e

xt
en

t h
as

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
be

en
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d?

  P
le

as
e 

de
sc

rib
e 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

 a
 

le
tte

r A
-D

 a
s p

er
 e

xh
ib

it 
1.

 

5.
  E

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
au

di
to

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

6.
  D

at
es

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

fo
llo

w
 

up
 w

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 A

ud
it 

Sc
ot

la
nd

 

7.
 P

ro
gr

es
s a

s a
t 3

0 
Ju

ly
 

20
04

. 

 
12

.  
N

ee
d 

fo
r s

ta
ff

 to
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

A
s a

bo
ve

. 
A

s a
bo

ve
. 

D
is

cu
ss

ed
 w

ith
 M

an
ag

er
s. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

s h
ad

 in
pu

t 
to

 th
em

. 
(B

) 
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
3 

(p
ro

vi
si

on
al

) 
C

om
pl

et
e 

se
e 

A
pp

en
di

x 
5 

R
ep

or
t S

ec
tio

n 
3.

4 

14
.  

N
ee

d 
fo

r S
er

vi
ce

 
C

en
tre

 b
us

in
es

s p
la

ns
 to

 
lin

k 
to

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pl
an

. 

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

en
tre

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

la
ns

 
flo

w
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Pl

an
. 

  

A
s a

bo
ve

. 
Sh

or
te

r, 
us

er
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

.  
R

ev
is

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r. 

 (B
) 

H
Q

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
PD

R
 

tra
in

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 –

 
co

lla
te

d.
  

Su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

no
te

s a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

L
IN

K
 T

O
 P

O
IN

T
 4

 
C

om
pl

et
e 

se
e 

A
pp

en
di

x 
5 

R
ep

or
t S

ec
tio

n 
3.

4 

19
.  

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

ns
 n

ee
d 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

lo
ca

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t c

rit
er

ia
. 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

ns
 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

cr
ite

ria
 in

 p
la

ce
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 in
 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
ta

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
by

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tre

s t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

lo
ca

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
rth

er
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
20

03
/0

4 
w

he
n 

al
l f

ou
r p

la
ns

 a
re

 fi
na

lis
ed

. 
 (B

) 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

, P
la

nn
in

g 
is

 in
 p

os
t a

nd
 a

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

So
ci

al
 W

or
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 in
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4.
  

     

Page 14



AR
G

YL
L 

&
 B

U
TE

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 - 
20

02
/2

00
3 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
C

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G
 

FO
LL

O
W

 U
P 

AU
D

IT
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

AR
E 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 

 
 

A
PP

E
N

D
IX

 4
 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
AC

TI
O

N
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 R
EP

O
RT

 
 

 
 

 M
AR

C
H

 2
00

3 
 

AU
D

IT
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

-A
U

D
IT

 S
C

O
TL

AN
D

 
3

A
 –

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

m
an

ag
er

 c
an

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 a
s p

la
nn

ed
 in

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
te

m
pl

at
e 

i.e
. 

ac
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 p

la
nn

ed
 m

ile
st

on
es

 m
et

 a
nd

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
. 

C
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

an
ag

er
 c

an
no

t d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
pl

an
s i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ac
tio

n.
 

B
 –

 P
ro

gr
es

s i
s l

es
s t

ha
n 

in
te

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

te
m

pl
at

e.
  T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

an
ag

er
 c

an
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

pl
an

s i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ac

tio
n.

 

D
 –

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

no
 lo

ng
er

 in
te

nd
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ac

tio
n.

  R
ea

so
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

fo
r n

ot
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

ac
tio

n.
 

  

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5 
 
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL                      AUDIT COMMITTEE 
COMMUNITY SERVICES         27 AUGUST 2004 
 
PERFORMANCE, MANAGEMENT AND PLANNING AUDIT  
– COMMUNITY CARE SERVICES 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 1.1 A Performance, Management and Planning Audit was undertaken by Audit 

Scotland in 2001-02.  A number of actions required to be progressed as a result of 
recommendations arising from the Audit.  Good progress has been made with all 
but 5 of the 22 recommendations having been implemented. 

 
 The Audit Committee has requested an update on the outstanding issues which is 

set out below. 
 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1  The Audit Committee note the progress made to date and the constraints 
experienced in implementing the 5 outstanding recommendations. 

 
 
3.  DETAIL 

 
3.1  The PMP Audit focussed on all of Community Care Services which was 

recognised as a major piece of work spanning a range of Residential and 
Community Services for Older People, Dementia, Learning Disability, Physical 
Disability, Mental Health, Substance Misuse and Carers. 

 
3.2  The majority of recommendations were addressed within the first yearly review 

period and Recommendation 1 “Need for frontline staff to have a better 
understanding and application of Best Value” was addressed in April this year 
with Workshops held for staff across Argyll and Bute. 

 
3.3 The remaining outstanding recommendations are: 
 

• Recommendation 4 – “Need for more explicit link between local Service 
Centre Plans within best Value framework”. 

 
• Recommendation 5 – “Need to develop framework to improve links between 

Service Centres, Service Officers and Planners” 
 

• Recommendation 12 – “Need for staff to understand the Plan”. 
 

• Recommendation 14 – “Need for Service Centre business plans to link to the 
Service Plan”. 

Page 17



APPENDIX 5 

Pmpapp50.Doc   12/08/04 2

• Recommendation 19 – Service centre business plans need to develop local 
performance measurement criteria. 

 
Progress on these has been hindered because of delays in putting the new 
departmental structure in place.  At this time, some two years later, we have just 
completed the recruitment process for the final 2nd Tier post in the required 
structure.  Additionally, the lack of stability in the Service Manager posts has 
seriously affected our ability to address these recommendations. 

 
3.4 Progress to date on recommendations 4, 12 and 14  is that a Workshop was held 

in November 2003 with Service Managers where a template was agreed to ensure 
consistency of approach in the preparation of Service Centre Plans throughout 
Argyll and Bute.  This addresses all issues outstanding within these 
recommendations. 

 
3.5 The Four Service Centres because of recruitment issues have made different 

progress in finalising these Service Centre plans.      
 

• Oban, Lorn & Isles – In draft.   
      
• Mid Argyll – Completed but being amended following agreement on a core 

template. 
 

• Helensburgh – Currently being worked on. 
 

• Bute and Cowal – Plan produced in draft in 2002 before Service Centre Manager 
left to take on a new role external to Council.  The report was not accessible to the 
New Service Manager. 

 
The four Service Centre Plans will be considered by Social Work 
Management Team in August 2004. 

 
3.6 Recommendation 5 

 
 The recommendation relating to the development of a framework to improve links 

between Service Centres, Service Officers and Planners will be able to be 
addressed in the very near future as the last of our 3rd Tier posts and the Service 
Officer – Planning, post which has been vacant for 18 months are now being 
recruited to.  This outstanding recommendation will be addressed as a matter of 
priority and a framework should be approved by Social Work Management Team 
in October 2004.  

 
3.7 Recommendation 19  

 
Recommendation 19 relates to Service Centre business plans requiring to develop 
local performance measurement criteria.  Again, this should be progressed once 
the Service Officer, Planning is in post and a framework agreed by Social Work 
Management Team in October 2004. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



APPENDIX 5 

Pmpapp50.Doc   12/08/04 3

4.  CONCLUSION 
 

4.1 Progress on the 5 outstanding recommendations from the Audit of Community 
Care Services is being made with the expectation that these will be fully 
implemented by October 2004 now that all 2nd and 3rd Tier posts have been 
recruited. 

 
 
5.  IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Policy:  None. 
   
 Financial:  None. 
 
 Legal:  None. 
 
 Personnel:  None.  
 
 Equal Opportunities:  None. 
 
 
 
Director of Community Services 
6 July 2004 
 
For further information contact:  Sandra Greer 
     Head of Community Support 
     Dalriada House 
     Lochnell Street 
     Lochgilphead 
      
     Tel: 01546 604526  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
HMI REPORT 2002 – 2003  
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Accounts Commission issued a report in May 2003 covering Moving to Mainstream 

– The Inclusion of Pupils with Special Education Needs in Mainstream Schools. Internal 
Audit, the results of which are detailed below, has performed a review regarding the 
progress made by Community Services management in the implementation of key 
summary report recommendations. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Internal Audit reported to the last audit committee that 2 reports had been 

produced by Audit Scotland, a main and key summary report. The summary report 
contained 11 main recommendations pertinent to local authorities and their 
schools. These were extracted and inserted into an action plan for Community 
Services management to progress implementation.  

    
  3.2 Of the original 11 key recommendations set out in the summary report, Internal 

Audit can report that at the end of July 2004 good progress has been made and 
only one recommendation remains to be implemented. Management have 
informed Internal Audit that they are working towards the remaining 
implementation date. (See Appendix 1). 

    
  3.3 A meeting was held between the Head of Secondary Education and Internal Audit 

in July 2004 in order to establish how best to deal with the recommendations 
contained in the main HMI report of May 2003.  It was concluded that Internal 
Audit would carry out a review of the main HMI report recommendations 
pertinent to Council’s and Schools, prior to the next meeting of the Audit 
Committee. This would thereby allow the current position to be confirmed and 
identify any areas from the main report still to be addressed.  

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Internal Audit will continue to monitor progress by Community Services 

management regarding the issues raised in both the key summary and main report. 
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        

Agenda Item 6Page 21



  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyfinalreport30July 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1 
Action Plan: Moving to Mainstream  

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Community Services  
Management Response 

Update 30 July 2004  

 Building capacity for 
inclusion. 

   

5 Councils should ensure that 
schools’ physical environments 
are adapted to meet the needs 
of pupils with SEN, and that 
essential adaptions are made 
before pupils are admitted. 
NPDO to be considered. 

Head of 
Planning & 

Performance/ 

Disability 
Access Co-
ordinator 

As above.  The early 
identification of children with 
physical disabilities by 
educational psychologists allows 
information on needs to be built 
into plans for adaptation and 
refurbishment. 

Working towards June 
2005. 

7 Councils should keep under 
review the demands on each 
school and ensure that it has 
the capacity to function 
effectively without excessive 
demands on the head teacher 
and other members of staff 

Head of 
Secondary 
Education 
and Pupil 
Support/ 

Quality 
Improvement 

Officer in 
SEN. 

The need for support staff is 
reviewed annually on the basis 
of an audit of need.  Staffing is 
supplemented as necessary to 
meet needs effectively. 

Complete. 
 

 

 Quality & Attainment.    

9 Councils and schools should 
ensure that they have rigorous 
approaches to monitoring and 
evaluating the quality of 
inclusive provision for pupils 
with SEN. 

Head of 
Secondary 
Education 
and Pupil 
Support 

The Individual Education Plans 
for children with SEN are 
reviewed annually.  This 
involves staff from education 
and other relevant agencies as 
well as parents.  For pupils in 
special schools, the 
appropriateness of transfer to 
mainstream is explicitly 
considered at reviews. 

Complete. 
 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2003 – 2004. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  This report contains the executive summaries and action plans for 3 new reports issued by 

Audit Scotland since the last Audit Committee. Internal Audit has performed a review of 
the progress being made by management in implementing these outstanding 
recommendations. The results are detailed below. These reports will be incorporated into 
the new reporting system for the next Audit Committee.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Audit Scotland in June 2004 issued a report entitled Regularity & Governance 2 

regarding their review of the Council’s regularity and governance arrangements 
including cash income and banking, trading accounts and budgetary control. As at 
30 July 2004, there are 7 recommendations remaining to be implemented. Four of 
these relate to cash income and banking with implementation dates of June 2004. 
Management have reported work as ongoing and that they will be completed by 
August 2004. Of the remaining 3 recommendations one had an implementation 
date of August 2004 and has been reassigned by management to October 2004. 
Work for the other 2 is ongoing. The Executive Summary and Action Plan are 
appended in Appendix 1 for your review. 

    
  3.2 Audit Scotland issued a report in June 2004 entitled Networking Overview. The 

report covers their review of Information and Communications Technology (ICT), 
which underpins the provision of vital management information to all sectors at a 
corporate and departmental level. The review generated 5 recommendations and as 
at 30 July 2004 there are now 4 remaining to be implemented. Comments have 
been obtained from local management with regard to these. The Executive 
Summary and Action Plan are appended in Appendix 2 for your review. 

    
  3.3  Audit Scotland issued a report in July entitled Best Value Transitional Audit. The 

review was carried out because the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 
established Best Value and community planning as statutory duties for councils.  
As a result, the Accounts Commission introduced new arrangements for the audit 
of Best Value.  A cyclical approach has being adopted.  Normally, the audit of 
Best Value would only be carried out once in a three year period at each council, 
in contrast to the annual approach of the performance, management and planning 
(PMP) audits.   

    
   With the cyclical approach, it could be up to three years before some council’s are 

exposed to a full audit of Best Value. In the intervening years, between full 
reviews, the external auditor will carry out short follow-up reviews. As this 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



Council was not included in the 2003/04 programme of Best Value audits, high-
level transitional work has been carried out and a report issued. There are no 
recommendations generated by this report but guidance is offered regarding areas 
for improvement to ensure that frameworks in place are effective. The Strategic 
Management Team (SMT) has requested that an action plan be prepared in 
response to the report. Internal Audit will report on implementation progress of the 
agreed actions. The Executive Summary and Action Plan are appended in 
Appendix 3 for your review. 

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyfinalreport30July  

Page 26



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

APPENDIX 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 1

1. Executive Summary 

Introduction 
1.1 We conduct our audit in accordance with Audit Scotland’s Code of Practice.  The 

Code makes clear that it is the responsibility of management to ensure that internal 
control systems are appropriate. 

1.2 Interim audit activity, is largely concerned with undertaking reviews of selected 
systems.  Our approach in 2003/2004 sought to obtain assurance, by systems review 
and testing, together with discussion with officers, as to the existence and 
effectiveness of a number of controls considered essential to ensure that reliance 
could be placed on the operation of the identified systems.   

1.3 This report summarises the findings from our audit work and, where appropriate, 
makes recommendations to strengthen existing controls or otherwise address any 
identified weaknesses.  It should be noted that the weaknesses recorded are only 
those which came to our attention during the course of our normal audit work and are 
not necessarily, therefore, all of the weaknesses that may exist. 

1.4 Our review covered the Council’s regularity and governance arrangements including 
cash income and banking, trading accounts and budgetary control.  

1.5 This is our 2nd regularity and governance report of 2003/2004. 

Summary of Main Findings 
1.6 Cash Income & Banking.  In the cash offices reviewed, we have identified areas 

where the physical security arrangements for storing cash and other income could be 
improved.  All cash receipting staff should also be issued with an official receipt book 
and steps taken to ensure that all customers are provided with a payment receipt.  A 
comprehensive procedures document should also be prepared. 

1.7 Trading Accounts. Argyll & Bute Council has made significant progress in preparing 
for trading accounts. Extensive criteria have been developed for identifying service 
areas where trading accounts should be prepared.  However, this criteria would 
appear to indicate that officers should also consider treating Building Services activity 
as a significant trading operation The format and content of the reporting and 
monitoring processes remain to be agreed.  Budgetary targets should be set for the 
next 3 years to ensure that the current and projected financial position may be 
monitored against the statutory requirement for trading accounts to breakeven over 
the 3-year period.  

1.8 The Financial Regulations require to be updated to reflect management duties and 
responsibilities.  

1.9 Budgetary Control. The overall projected financial position of the Council to 31 
March 2004, as at 31 December 2003, is a deficit of £284,000, which is to be financed 
from the existing General Fund Reserve. One of the authority’s trading account 
groups is currently projected to produce a year-end deficit. Officers have reported that 
they are taking steps to address this situation. 

1.10 Although this report includes a number of specific recommendations to strengthen 
internal controls, it is the responsibility of management to decide the extent of the 

Page 27



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

APPENDIX 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 2

internal control system appropriate to the Council.  We would stress, however, that an 
effective internal control system is an essential part of the efficient management of 
any organisation. 

1.11 The factual content of the report has been agreed in discussion with appropriate 
officers from the Council. The Action Plan which sets out the proposed action to be 
taken in response to the audit recommendations should be read in conjunction with 
the relevant references from the main report. 

1.12 The co-operation and assistance afforded to audit staff during the course of the audit 
are gratefully acknowledged. 

Page 28



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

Appendix 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 3

 

2. Action Plan 

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at  
30 July 2004 

 Cash Income & 
Banking - General 

    

1 A procedure manual 
covering receipting 
and banking should 
be drafted and issued 
to all staff.  These 
procedures should 
incorporate the 
relevant information 
from the Council 
Financial & Security 
Regulations. 
Priority : Medium 

Central 
Services 
Manager – 
Operational 
Services 
 
 

Procedures 
issued to staff in 
Oban, Lorn & 
Isles. To be rolled 
out to other staff. 

July 2004 Complete. 

2 Internal Audit and 
Management should 
carry out surprise 
cashing up exercises 
on a periodic basis. 
Priority : Low 

Internal Audit 
Management 

Time has been 
detailed within 
the annual audit 
plan for 2004 – 
05.  

May 2004 Complete. 

 Cash Income & 
Banking - 
Helensburgh 

    

3 Support Services staff 
should be provided 
with an official receipt 
book and these 
receipts should be 
issued for all cash 
received. 
Priority : Medium  

Central 
Services  
Manager – 
Operational 
Services  
 

Receipt book 
issued. 

Done Complete. 

4 A notice should be 
displayed at the main 
reception to 
communicate to 
customers that an 
official receipt will be 
issued for all 
remittances. 
Priority : Low 

As above  Notice to be 
written and 
distributed for 
display. 

June 2004 Complete. 

Page 29



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

Appendix 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 4

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at  
30 July 2004 

5 Income spreadsheets 
should be signed by 
the “counter” and 
counter-signed by the 
“checker”. 
Priority : High  

As above Covered within 
procedures.  

June 2004 Complete. 

6 Physical security at 
Blairvadach should be 
improved.  The 
Support Services 
Office should be fitted 
with a combination 
lock and. 
consideration should 
also be given to 
having a member of 
staff attend the 
reception desk at all 
times when the main 
door is unlocked 
Priority : Low 

Central 
Services 
Manager – 
Operational 
Services  

Shared Office; 
action to be 
considered jointly 
with other users. 

July 2004 Improved 
procedures in 
hand. Will be 
completed by 
end of August 
2004. 

7 A larger safe should 
be acquired to allow 
cash to be securely 
held. 
Priority : Medium 

As above  Review cash 
collection times to 
ensure banking 
done on receipt 
of such sums. 

June 2004 Complete. A 
safe has been 
ordered.  

8 Additional keys to the 
key box should be 
provided to, and held 
by, identified key 
holders. These should 
not be stored on the 
premises. 
Priority : Low 

As above  Additional keys to 
be obtained and 
key holders 
identified. 

June 2004 Currently under 
review August 
2004. 

 Cash Income & 
Banking - Dunoon 
and Rothesay 

    

Page 30



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

Appendix 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 5

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at  
30 July 2004 

9 The combination to 
open the security door 
in Dunoon should be 
changed on a periodic 
basis and after any 
member of staff, 
permanent or 
temporary, leaves 
their post. 
Priority : Low 

As above  Agreed. June 2004 Currently under 
review August 
2004. 

10 Additional keys to the 
safes should be 
provided to, and held 
by, identified key 
holders. These should 
not be stored on the 
premises. 
Priority : Low 

As above Additional keys to 
be obtained and 
key holders 
identified. 

June 2004 Currently under 
review August 
2004. 

 Trading Accounts     

12 The treatment of 
Building Services as a 
“non-significant” 
operation should be 
reviewed. 
Priority : High 

Head of 
Strategic 
Finance 

Building Services 
will be treated as 
a Significant 
Trading Activity. 

September 
2004 

Complete 

13 Officers should ensure 
adequate monitoring 
arrangements for 
trading account 
operations are 
introduced. 
Priority : High 

Head of 
Strategic 
Finance 
 

Monitoring of 
trading 
operations will be 
incorporated into 
normal budget 
monitoring 
routine with a 
focus on the 
breakeven 
position. 

June 2004 Complete 

14 3 year rolling targets 
should be approved 
for the trading 
activities  
Priority : Medium 

Head of 
Strategic 
Finance 

Assumed position 
is for a breakeven 
over the 3 years 
but this will be 
reviewed 
annually. 

Ongoing Ongoing 

Page 31



Argyll & Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Regularity & Governance (2) 
 

Appendix 1

 

JUNE 2004 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 6

No Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at  
30 July 2004 

15 Officers should ensure 
that Interest on 
Revenue or Stock 
balances is included 
when calculating the 
anticipated surplus / 
deficit position and 
costs included in the 
BVACOP definition of 
“Total Costs” should 
be included in 
monitoring 
statements. 
Priority : Low 

Finance 
Manager –  
Development 
Services 

This has been 
introduced. 

Immediate Complete 

16 Officers should 
determine the form 
and content of Trading 
Accounts and the 
accompanying Annual 
Reports, ensuring they 
comply with the 
minimum guidance 
requirements. 
Priority : Medium 

Finance 
Manager –  
Development 
Services 

The form and 
content of 
Trading Accounts 
have been 
standardised and 
now comply with 
minimum 
guidance 
requirements. 

Immediate Complete 

17 A timescale for future 
service reviews should 
be identified. 
Priority : Low 

Head of 
Strategic 
Finance 

An annual review 
of potential 
trading services 
will take place. 

April 2005 Ongoing 

18 The Security and 
Financial Regulations 
should be amended to 
incorporate changes 
arising from the 
introduction of Trading 
Accounts Legislation. 
Priority : High 

Head of 
Democratic 
Services & 
Governance 
 

Trading accounts 
legislation will be 
reflected in the 
new regulations 
to be issued this 
year. 

August 
2004 

Implementation 
delayed due to 
move to Council 
Constitution 
Model and 
problems in 
recruiting a 
Corporate 
governance and 
Risk Manager. 
Completion now 
December 2004.

 

Page 32



Argyll and Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Networking Overview APPENDIX 2 

MAY 2004 1 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 

Introduction 
 
1.1 Computerised systems are central to virtually all the financial and management 

systems deployed by public sector bodies.  Information and Communications 
Technology (ICT) also underpins the provision of vital management information to all 
sectors at a corporate and departmental level.  From a Corporate Governance 
perspective the overall arrangements for the management of ICT in the Council are 
considered in the following key areas: 

 

• strategy • organisational structure 

• installation management • service delivery 

• security of ICT assets • contingency planning 

• networking  
 
1.2 The majority of the areas mentioned above were previously reviewed and reported on 

in an Internal Audit Report dated 18 November 2002 titled “Review of Information 
Technology”.  The Council is progressing actions arising from this review.  As part of 
our 2003/04 audit activity we reviewed the networking component of Argyll and Bute 
Council’s ICT provision.   
 

1.3 This report summarises the findings from our Networking Overview and, where 
appropriate, makes recommendations to address the weaknesses identified.   

 
Summary of Main Findings 
 
1.4 As part of the ongoing reorganisation the Council recently appointed the Head of ICT 

and Financial Services.   
 
1.5 The Council adopted PRINCE2 project management methodology and has committed 

resources to train PRINCE2 practitioners.  
 
1.6 The Council is establishing an ICT Steering Group, part of its objective is to formulate 

an overall ICT Strategy for the Council.   
 
1.7 The Modernising Government Agenda increases the use of electronic communication 

and the demands placed on the network.  The network infrastructure appears to be 
reaching capacity at times.  Options for increasing the capacity are under 
consideration, including amongst others Broadband and Voice over IP (Internet 
Protocol), the latter being new technology that can carry voice communications over 
data networks.   

 
1.8 The Council is in the process of developing an Information Security Management 

System, including network security policies.   
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Argyll and Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Networking Overview APPENDIX 2 

MAY 2004 2 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 

Conclusion 
 
The changes resulting from the Modernising Government agenda will inevitably increase the 
demands on the Council’s networking infrastructure.  The ability of the existing infrastructure 
to meet these demands was not clear at the time of our review, although indications are that 
the infrastructure was at times reaching capacity.   
 
The implementation of the recommendations contained in the Internal Audit report and those 
contained in this report will strengthen the control environment and assist steering of the 
Council’s networking infrastructure, supporting the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 
 

Page 34



Argyll and Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Networking Overview  APPENDIX 2 
 

MAY 2004 3 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 

ACTION PLAN 
 
 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at 30 
July 2004 

1 We support the creation of 
an ICT Steering Group and 
recommend that the ICT 
Strategy should embrace a 
network strategy that is 
capable of supporting the 
Council’s Strategic 
Objectives.   

High Risk 

Head of 
Financial and 
Information 
Technology 

Services 

The ICT Strategy 
Working Group 
has been 
established with 
the aim of 
formulating a 
strategy and 
monitoring its 
implementation. 

August 
2004 

This 
recommendation 
will be 
completed 
September 
2004.  

2 The responsibility for 
control and co-ordination 
of devices connected to 
the network should be 
clearly defined.  A Council-
wide network strategy 
recommended in point 1 
above can serve as good 
starting point, supported by 
clearly defined 
management 
responsibilities to address 
this potential risk.   

High Risk 

IT 
Infrastructure 

Manager 

The Council’s 
Strategic 
Management 
Team (SMT) is 
considering a 
revised method of 
desktop 
management. This 
includes 
centralising the 
control and co-
ordination of 
devices connected 
to the network. 
However the 
implementation of 
such controls 
depends very 
much on the 
ongoing network 
monitoring and 
intrusion detection 
systems outlined 
in 
recommendations 
3 and 4 below. 

August 
2004 

The Council’s 
Strategic 
Management 
Team (SMT) is 
still considering 
a revised 
method of 
desktop 
management. It 
is unlikely that 
this will 
centralise the 
control of 
devices 
connected to the 
network. 
However some 
controls have 
been introduced 
to provide co-
ordination of the 
connection of 
devices to the 
network. 

3 Ongoing monitoring of the 
network’s ability to function 
within acceptable 
parameters should be 
implemented.  This 
monitoring should provide 
valuable information 
relating to traffic volumes

IT 
Infrastructure 

Manager 

The Council has 
invested in HP 
Openview to 
assist with the 
monitoring of the 
network’s ability to 
function. However 
the limited

August 
2004 

Report went to 
the Corporate 
Services 
Management 
Team but 
additional 
resources could 
not be made

Page 35



Argyll and Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Networking Overview  APPENDIX 2 
 

MAY 2004 4 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at 30 
July 2004 

data flows, trends and 
anomalies to aid 
management and strategic 
planning functions. 

Medium Risk 

resources 
available within 
the networks 
section at present 
and the increasing 
workload will 
impact on our 
ability to 
proactively 
monitor the 
network. A paper 
will be presented 
to the SMT 
requesting 
additional 
resources. Also, 
HP Openview 
does not easily 
provide 
information 
relating to traffic 
volumes, data 
flows, trends and 
anomalies. Other 
products are being 
evaluated to 
address these 
areas of concern 
and some funding 
has been made 
available for this.   

available. 

4 The Council should 
consider employing an 
intrusion detection system 
on their networks to help 
detect any unauthorised 
activity.  Such monitoring 
should be automated, with 
the IDS (Intrusion 
Detection System) 
configured to send alerts 
and reports on activity. 

Medium Risk 

IT Networks 
Manager 

Agree. An 
analysis of the 
products available 
will be undertaken 
and, subject to 
appropriate 
funding being 
available, an 
appropriate 
system will be 
implemented. 

Sept. 2004 Report went to 
the Corporate 
Services 
Management 
Team but 
additional 
resources could 
not be made 
available. 

5 Recent changes to 
procedures should be 
documented and collated

IT Networks 
Manager 

Agree. A 
procedure 
database will be

March 
2004 

Complete. 

Page 36



Argyll and Bute Council:  2003/04 Audit 
Networking Overview  APPENDIX 2 
 

MAY 2004 5 AUDIT SERVICES – AUDIT SCOTLAND 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Implemen
tation 
Date 

Update as at 30 
July 2004 

for ongoing reference. 

Medium Risk 

completed and 
updated as 
changes are 
agreed. 

 
 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Argyll & Bute Council – 2003/04 
Best Value Transitional Audit                                                                     APPENDIX 3 
 

Executive Summary 

o The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 established Best Value and 
community planning as statutory duties for councils.  As a result, the Accounts 
Commission has introduced new cyclical arrangements for the audit of Best 
Value.  Normally, the audit of Best Value will only be carried out once in a 
three-year period at each council.  As it will be up to three years before some 
councils are exposed to a full audit of Best Value, there is a need for some 
high-level transitional work to be carried out at councils not included in the 
2003/04 programme of Best Value audits. 

o There are four main objectives in carrying out the transitional work at the 
councils not being covered in year one of the audit of Best Value:   

♦ to help councils develop their response to the new legislation and to 
prepare for the full audit; 

♦ to provide the Best Value audit team with background information on key 
areas, helping to inform the full audit in subsequent years; 

♦ to contribute to the selection of councils for the 2005 programme of Best 
Value audits; and 

♦ to identify possible examples of good practice. 

o To complete the transitional work, auditors have drawn on their existing 
knowledge of the Council and on information readily available, and then 
produced a position statement on five selected areas: 

♦ the performance management system; 

♦ elected members and their scrutiny role; 

♦ service performance; 

♦ public performance reporting; and  

♦ community planning. 

o This report summarises Argyll & Bute Council’s current arrangements in each 
of these areas.  No action plan is to be agreed.  Instead the Council is to 
progress its Best Value and community planning arrangements through its own 
continuous improvement strategies.   

o The Council has demonstrated commitment to development of its Best Value 
and community planning frameworks to meet the requirements of the 2003 Act. 
It has made progress on a number of fronts and is reviewing current practice in 
a number of areas.  Areas of good practice include:  

Performance Management System 

♦ The Council has an approved Performance Management System in place;  

Page 39



Argyll & Bute Council – 2003/04 
Best Value Transitional Audit                                                                     APPENDIX 3 
 

♦ A formally documented Service planning system has been approved and 
is in place; 

♦ A regular quarterly review process is undertaken which monitors 
implementation progress in respect of service action plans; 

♦ A Citizens Panel has been set up and Benchmarking mechanisms put in 
place for feedback; 

♦ An Audit Committee, which promotes internal controls, meets regularly 
and reviews progress on internal and external audit reports. 
A programme of formal scrutiny and service reviews has recently been re-
established; 

Service Performance 

♦ The creation of a Best Value network, which aims to raise awareness and 
develop a better understanding of best value within services.   

Public Performance Reporting 

♦ A wide range of informative information is held on the Council’s website, 
including minutes of all committee meetings and performance indicator 
information  

♦ A Public Performance Report is produced and available to all households 
in the area each year. 

Community Planning 

♦ A Community Planning Partnership was launched in 2001, comprising 
representatives from 23 organisations; 

♦ A Community Plan Action Plan has been agreed in conjunction with 
formalised monitoring arrangements; 

♦ The ongoing development of a new Community Planning Partnership 
framework to facilitate the integration of the Social Inclusion Partnerships 
and deliver the principles behind the Scottish Executive’s regeneration 
statement and the Local Government Scotland Act; 

o However, there are a number of areas where action should be taken to ensure 
that the frameworks in place are effective in demonstrating a positive impact on 
service delivery. The main areas where action is planned or where action 
should be considered by the Council are.  

Performance Management System  

♦ Closer alignment of service plans to budgets; 

♦ Development and inclusion of a balanced set of local indicators which are 
both SMART and Outcome based;  

♦ Review mechanism for updating service plans;  

Page 40



Argyll & Bute Council – 2003/04 
Best Value Transitional Audit                                                                     APPENDIX 3 
 

♦ Implement balanced scorecard approach across services; 

♦ Implement mechanism to monitor overall performance against corporate 
objectives; 

♦ Provide clearer link between corporate and service objectives. 

Elected Members and their Scrutiny Role 

♦ Facilitate scrutiny by elected members of performance reports;  

♦ Improve monitoring arrangements in respect of the recommendations 
arising from reviews and allow for member scrutiny of this process;  

♦ Agree a best value strategy and ensure effective leadership by elected 
members; 

♦ Review performance reporting system to provide a single report 
containing both financial and performance information.  

Service Performance 

♦ Review and standardise the format and content of the service plan 
performance reports to ensure they provide an effective assessment of 
service performance for users.  

♦ Public Performance Reporting 

♦ Publish Public Performance Reports timeously; 

♦ Corporate Public Performance Reports to incorporate service objectives 
and local indicators; 

♦ Services to develop their own local public performance reporting 
frameworks. 

Community Planning  

♦ Implementation of the revised community planning structure. 

 
The co-operation and assistance afforded to audit staff during the course of the 
audit is gratefully acknowledged. 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
AUDIT SCOTLAND REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT (FOLLOW-UP) 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
   1.1    Audit Scotland has now completed and issued in July 2004 a national and local 

report on their review findings. The review concentrated on assessing internal audit 
compliance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.  

    
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 As a result of the recent national assessment follow up by Audit Scotland of the 

2001 national report ‘A Job Worth Doing’, Argyll & Bute Council has moved to 
band one status from band 4.  

    
  3.2 The Audit Scotland follow up review was based on the Council’s compliance with 

15 statements of good practice and resulted in us being placed in the top 
performing band in 10 of them and in the second top performing band for the 
remaining 5. This performance enabled the Council to achieve band one status. 

    
  3.3 Attached in Appendix 1 are extracts from the local report issued by Audit Scotland 

in July 2004 and covers the strengths and areas for improvement identified by the 
review. The reports action plan is also included with agreed implementation dates 
for all 15 recommendations. As at 30 July 2004 there are 7 recommendations, 
which have been addressed leaving 8 to be progressed of which 2 are assigned to 
the Corporate Services Department.  

    
    
4.  CONCLUSIONS 
  
 The review by Audit Scotland has recognised the effort that has been expended 

over the last 3 years by the Council and the benefits coming from the partnership 
with KPMG in achieving band one status. However there are still areas for 
improvement and these will be progressed through the local report action plan to 
ensure that the Council becomes fully compliant with the Code. 

  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  4.2 Financial: None 
        
  4.3 Personnel: None 
        

Agenda Item 8Page 43



  4.4 Legal: None 
        
  4.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager  (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyprogreport30July2004 
 

Page 44



 

Argyll & Bute Council – 2003/2004 
A job worth doing follow-up report 
Raising the standard of internal audit in Scottish Councils 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Asif A Haseeb  ACMA MBA, Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland 
7th Floor, Plaza Tower, East Kilbride, G74 1LW 
T  01355 619200   F. 01355 619201 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up  Contents 

JULY 2004   AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Contents Page 
 

 
 
Section 1 1 
Executive Summary 

♦ Background 
♦ Why Conduct a Follow Up Audit 
♦ Objectives for the Audit 
♦ Overall Conclusions 
♦ Summary of Main Strengths and Areas for Improvement 

 
Section 2 5 
Action Plan 
 
 
Section 3 8 
Main Report 
 

♦ Introduction  
 
Critical Success Factors: 
♦ Clear and Properly Focused Objectives 
♦ Maintaining Internal Audit Independence 
♦ Planning and Controlling Internal Audit Work 
♦ Resourcing the Internal Audit Work Programme 
♦ Effective Reporting and Follow- Up Arrangements 
♦ Holding Internal Audit to Account for its Performance 

 
 
 
Appendix 1   22 
Assessment and Scoring Methodology 

 
 

Appendix 2 25 
Extent of Council Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice 

 
 

Appendix 3   26 
External Audit Assessments by Council 

 
 

 
 

Page 46



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 1 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Executive Summary 
 
 
Background 
 
1. All councils are required to have arrangements in place for ensuring propriety, 

regularity and Best Value in their stewardship of public funds.  It is the responsibility of 
management to ensure that adequate internal controls are in place which: 

• ensure that their council’s resources are applied in the manner, and on the 
activities, intended 

• deter fraud and irregularity 

• ensure the most effective use of resources. 

2. Internal audit aids management by objectively examining, evaluating, and reporting to 
management on the adequacy of internal control arrangements.   

3. Critical to the success of internal audit is the clear recognition by management of its 
own responsibilities and those of internal audit.  The CIPFA statement on the role of 
the finance director in local government1 states ‘the responsibility for ensuring effective 
internal audit should be that of a senior director who is at the heart of the corporate 
management of the authority’.   

4. In August 2001, Audit Scotland prepared a national report ‘A Job Worth Doing’ – 
Raising the Standard of Internal Audit in Scottish Councils.  The study was requested 
by the Accounts Commission in order to establish a clear picture of performance of 
internal audit services in all councils in Scotland, and to provide benchmarking data to 
support continuous improvement.  In the 2001 study, council performance was 
assessed against the 2000 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government (the Code) and councils were placed in one of four performance bands: 

• four councils almost fully complied with the Code (band 1) 

• sixteen councils generally complied with the Code (band 2) 

• eight councils partially complied with the Code (band 3) 

• four councils generally did not comply with the Code (band 4). 

5. Argyll and Bute Council were, in 2001, one of the four councils who generally did not 
comply with the Code (see Exhibit 1 on page 3).   

6. Following the national report in August 2001, a local report was issued to management 
in Argyll and Bute Council.  This outlined the strengths and weaknesses of the internal 
audit section and made specific recommendations to address the weaknesses 
identified.  The Council was expected to use the information in both the national 
Accounts Commission’s report and the local report to challenge their current levels of 
performance and take action to achieve the standards set out in the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government.   

                                                 
1 Statement on the Role of the Finance Director in Local Government, CIPFA 1999. 

Page 47



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 2 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Why Conduct a Follow Up Audit 
 
7. The Accounts Commission wishes to ensure that councils adopt the highest standards 

of internal control and financial stewardship.  However, the Controller of Audit’s 
Overview of the 2001/02 local authority audits, published in February 2003 noted  ‘It is 
disappointing that auditors’ reports on 2001/02 local authority audits continue to 
contain references to weaknesses in financial controls’.  It also noted that ‘external 
auditors’ reports for 2001/02 identify a significant number of cases where they were 
unable to place reliance on internal audit or where the degree of reliance was limited.  

8. It is therefore important to find out how much progress councils have made since the 
original study, in particular whether the 12 councils in the lower two performance bands 
have improved their performance and whether the councils in the higher bands have 
been able to maintain a reasonable standard of performance.  In addition, it is 
important that councils as a whole have made progress in addressing the weaknesses 
identified in ‘a job worth doing’. 

9. Audit Scotland has undertaken a follow up value for money study, on behalf of the 
Accounts Commission, looking at the internal audit arrangements in Scottish councils.  
A national report summarising the findings from the study for all Scottish councils has 
been issued by Audit Scotland.  This local report is intended to provide an independent 
assessment of the performance of internal audit at Argyll and Bute Council and identify, 
where appropriate, actions to assist the Council in obtaining best value from internal 
audit services. 

Objectives for the Audit 

10. The aim of the follow up audit was to examine the arrangements for securing internal 
audit services and to benchmark internal audit service performance.  This was done by 
re-assessing the extent to which the authority’s internal audit services meet standards 
of good practice documented by the “Code of Practice for Internal Audit in the United 
Kingdom”, (CIPFA, October 2000) in relation to the following 6 issues: 

• setting clear and properly focused objectives for their work 

• maintaining audit independence 

• resourcing their work programme 

• planning and controlling their work 

• reporting and follow-up arrangements 

• being accountable for their performance. 

11. Within these issues, 15 statements of good practice were considered and an 
assessment made of Internal Audit’s compliance with these statements.  The 
assessment was based on interviews and evidence gathered from the Council’s Chief 
Executive, Head of Strategic Finance, and the Internal Audit Manager.   

Page 48



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 3 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Overall Conclusion 

12. The results of the national assessment summarising the extent of council compliance 
with the CIPFA Code of Practice standards of good practice are shown in appendix 2.  
The assessment shows councils have made improvements in all aspects of internal 
audit since the original study in 2001, although there is still scope for further 
improvement.  The performance of councils was split into 4 bands (see Exhibit 1) and 
Argyll and Bute Council is included in band one.  This is a significant improvement from 
band four in 2001.  This band includes those councils that most fully comply with the 
CIPFA Code.   

Exhibit 1 
Number of councils in each performance band 

The number of councils in the highest performance band has risen from 4 to 17. 
 

Number of councils Performance band 
2004 2001 

1. Almost fully comply 17 4 

2. Generally comply 11 16 

3. Partially comply 4 8 

4. Generally did not comply 0 4 

 
Source: External auditors’ returns 2001 and 2004 

  

13. Our general view is that the Council complies almost fully with most of the 15 
statements of good practice.  A more detailed assessment together with a comparison 
with other Scottish Council’s is recorded at appendix 3. 

Summary of Main Strengths and Areas for Improvement 

14. The Council’s internal audit arrangements were reassessed in early 2004.  We noted 
that the Council has well developed procedures and performance in most areas of the 
study.  Examples of good practice already in place include: 

• Internal audit has a clear terms of reference (TOR) document.  This specifically 
refers to the CIPFA Code of Practice, has been approved by the Audit Committee, 
and is widely communicated throughout the Council via the intranet 

• Internal Audit is accountable to an Audit Committee.  This meets every quarter and 
consists of 5 elected member plus 2 members of the public, who were appointed for 
their interest in audit and/or Council matters.  The Section 95 officer (Head of 
Strategic Finance), Internal Audit Manager, and External Auditor are invited to 
attend all meetings 

• The Internal Audit Manager provides an overall assessment to both management 
and the Audit Committee of the robustness of internal control for the Council’s main 
systems, based on the work done in the year 

• All audit reports are issued in the name of the Internal Audit Manager, and do not 
require to be approved by the Head of Strategic Finance 

Page 49



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 4 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

• Internal Audit determines its own priorities, based on a risk assessment and in 
consultation with management 

• Audit plans are prepared after consultation with managers across the council.  The 
Strategic Audit Plan and Annual Audit Plan are approved by the Audit Committee 

• Progress on the annual audit plan is reported quarterly to the Audit Committee 

• External audit consult with internal audit prior to preparing annual plans (and vice 
versa) to highlight areas where external audit can place reliance on internal audit’s 
work.  Regular meetings are held between the Internal Audit Manager and external 
audit to monitor progress of each others annual audit plans   

• The Council has a partnership agreement with KPMG.  This provides internal audit 
with access to relevant people with specialist experience whenever required.  It also 
enables structured professional training to be provided 

• An Annual Audit Report is produced, and a summary is presented to the Audit 
Committee.  This provides an overall assessment on internal audit’s performance for 
the year, and an audit opinion based on the work carried out during the year 

• Recent audit reports demonstrate that internal audit agree specific, measurable, 
achievable, realistic, time based (SMART) action plans with management   

• All staff are involved with professional accounting bodies and have to abide by their 
respective codes of ethics.   

15. Areas where we consider Internal Audit’s or Council procedures could be further 
developed include:  

• The anti fraud and corruption strategy and fraud response plan do not provide 
sufficient guidance regarding the roles and responsibilities of internal audit and 
management, nor do they include a protocol for informing the police 

• The corporate risk register has only been in operation for nine months and still 
requires to be fully tested to confirm whether it is robust   

• The strategic plan does not provide details of any high risk factor areas that have 
been eliminated from the plan due to manpower or skills shortages 

• There is no procedure requiring Heads of Service/Directors to inform or remind 
internal audit of any impending inspectorate visits 

• Audit files contain no distinction between compliance and substantive tests, nor is 
there any guidance available regarding indicative sample sizes 

• The performance reports to the Audit Committee are slightly misleading since they 
report whether, on average, reports are issued within 10 days of completion, and 
whether the overall percentage of jobs are completed on time.  While this is useful, it 
should be supplemented with statistics for each job carried out.   

16. The report contains an action plan, (section 2) which sets out suggested actions to be 
taken in response to audit findings.  The action plan should be read in conjunction with 
the relevant references from the main report (section 3).   

17. The co-operation and assistance afforded to audit staff during the course of the work is 
gratefully acknowledged.   

Page 50



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 2 

JULY 2004 PAGE 5 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Action Plan 
 
 

Page/ 
Para 
Ref 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Date As at 30 
July 2004 

  Internal audit set clear and 
properly focused objectives 

    

11/3 1. Internal Audit TOR should be 
reflected in the council’s 
standing orders and financial 
regulations. 

Head of 
Democratic 

Services and 
Governance 

The Internal Audit 
TOR will be 
included in the 
revised Scheme 
of Administration 
etc.  

Dec 
2004 

Ongoing 

11/3 2. The anti fraud and corruption 
strategy and fraud response 
plan should be updated to 
clearly reflect the roles and 
responsibilities of internal audit 
and management, and should 
include a protocol for informing 
the police. 

Head of 
Democratic 

Services and 
Governance 

The anti fraud and 
corruption policy 
will be updated as 
part of (1) above.   

Dec 
2004 

Ongoing 

  Planning and controlling 
internal audit work 

    

15/3 3. The authority’s risk 
management process should 
be formalised.  This should be 
tested by internal audit and 
incorporated into their risk 
assessment process.  

Head of 
Democratic 

Services and 
Governance 

A Risk Strategy is 
being developed 
and a draft will be 
available by the 
end of July 2004.  
A report setting 
out the proposed 
future action on 
Risk Management 
& Governance 
Strategy will be 
submitted to the 
SMT in August 
2004. 

August 
2004 

Complete 

15/3 4. The strategic audit plan should 
be more specific regarding the 
nature of audit work to be 
carried out, or the Departments 
that will be audited, over the 
period of the plan.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

The Annual Audit 
Plan for 2004/ 
2005 contains 
more detail, and 
has been issued 
to all 
Departmental 
Directors. 

Implem-
ented 

Complete.

Page 51



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 2 

JULY 2004 PAGE 6 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Page/ 
Para 
Ref 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Date As at 30 
July 2004 

15/3 5. Management should be 
informed of any high risk factor 
areas that have been 
eliminated from the plan due to 
manpower or skills shortages 
within internal audit.  

Internal Audit 
Manager 

To be addressed 
in the 3 year Audit 
Plan for 2005/ 
2008. 

Sept 
2004 

Ongoing 

16/3 6. The budget for special 
investigations should be 
reviewed for appropriateness.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

A review is carried 
out on a monthly 
basis with the 
Audit Committee 
informed of all 
changes. 

Ongoing. Complete.

16/3 7. A procedure requiring Directors 
to inform/remind internal audit 
of any impending inspectorate 
visits should be established.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

A memo has been 
sent to 
Departmental 
Directors asking 
them to inform 
Internal Audit of 
any impending 
inspectorate 
visits. 

July 
2004 

Complete.

16/3 8. Audit test lead schedules 
should clearly describe the test 
carried out, the findings/ 
conclusions reached, and the 
recommendations. 

Internal Audit 
Manager 

Test schedules 
are being 
introduced across 
all audits 2004/ 
2005. 

Implem-
ented 

 

Complete.

16/3 9. The audit manual should 
incorporate the procedures for 
completing compliance and 
substantive audit testing, and 
should provide guidance on 
sample sizes. 

Internal Audit 
Manager 

The training 
manual covers 
compliance and 
substantive 
testing.  This will 
be integrated with 
the Internal Audit 
Manual. 

Sept 
2004 

Ongoing 

16/3 10. The audit manual should be 
updated and/or appropriate 
training should be provided to 
internal audit staff to advise 
them of good practice for audit 
working papers (regarding 
completion of audit tests, file 
referencing, signing off etc).   

 

 

 

Internal Audit 
Manager 

KPMG, in co-
operation with 
Internal Audit, will 
provide training. 

Sept 
2004 

Ongoing 

Page 52



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 2 

JULY 2004 PAGE 7 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Page/ 
Para 
Ref 

No. Recommendation Responsible 
Officer 

Action Date As at 30 
July 2004 

  Resourcing the internal audit 
work programme 

    

18/3 11. Given the large geographic 
area of the Council, an 
increased number of portable 
laptops should be provided to 
internal audit staff.  

Internal Audit 
Manager 

Internal Audit has 
received new 
laptops and at 
present these are 
sufficient to fulfil 
our present 
operational 
requirements. 

Implem-
ented 

Complete.

18/3 12. Continuous Professional 
Development records should 
quantify the number of hours 
gained during the year.  It 
should be ensured that these 
meet with the relevant 
professional body’s 
requirements.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

An appropriate 
amendment has 
been made. 

Implem-
ented 

Complete.

  Holding internal audit to 
account for its performance 

    

21/3 13. The Audit Committee should 
be provided with information 
regarding the percentage of 
recommendations that have 
been implemented within an 
appropriate timescale.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

A new process for 
reporting is 
presently being 
defined. 

Nov 
2004 

Ongoing 

21/3 14. The performance data 
provided to the Audit 
Committee regarding the 
percentage of reports issued 
within 10 days of work being 
completed, and the percentage 
of audit assignments in the 
audit plan completed within 
budget should be provided for 
each audit assignment as well 
as the overall average.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

A new process for 
reporting is 
presently being 
defined. 

Nov 
2004 

Ongoing 

21/3 15. Internal audit’s preliminary 
arrangements towards gaining 
EFQM accreditation should be 
pursued to completion.   

Internal Audit 
Manager 

Further work will 
be done in co-
operation with 
KPMG. 

Dec/ Jan 
2004/ 
2005 

Ongoing 

Page 53



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 8 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Introduction 
 
 
1. Local Authorities are required to have in place arrangements for ensuring propriety, 

regularity and Best Value in their stewardship of public funds.  It is the responsibility of 
management to ensure that adequate internal controls are in place: 

• to ensure that their council’s resources are applied in the manner, and on the 
activities, intended 

• to deter fraud and irregularity 

• to ensure the most effective use of resources. 

2. Internal audit supports management in maintaining sound corporate governance and 
internal controls.  It does this by objectively examining and evaluating council systems 
and reporting any inadequacies in internal control for action by management. 

3. In August 2001, the Accounts Commission report, ‘A job worth doing – raising the 
standard of internal audit in Scottish councils’, examined the internal audit 
arrangements in Scottish councils. Council performance was assessed against the 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code). Councils 
were placed in one of four performance bands depending upon the extent to which they 
complied with the Code. The report made recommendations to councils on how to 
improve their internal audit service. 

4. Since 2001, there have been a number of developments which impact on councils’ 
arrangements for internal audit and the skills that internal auditors will need to provide 
an effective audit service. From 2002/03, the Accounting Code of Practice (ACOP) 
required local authorities to include within their accounts a statement on their system of 
internal financial control. Internal audit services have a key role to play in producing 
evidence to support this statement. In addition, risk management has assumed a 
higher profile since the original study and there is increasing pressure on councils to 
have well-developed audit committee arrangements. 

5. All of these factors have an impact on councils’ arrangements for internal audit and the 
skills that internal auditors will need to provide an effective audit service.  This report 
assesses current council performance and makes recommendations that will assist the 
councils to develop an excellent internal audit service for the future. 

Objectives of the audit 

6. The overall aim of the follow up study is to measure the progress councils have made 
since the publication of ‘A Job Worth Doing’.  The study also aims to help councils 
achieve Best Value from their internal audit arrangements and to achieve the highest 
standards of governance and financial stewardship.   

7. The Council was re-assessed against the CIPFA Code in early 2004 using the original 
study methodology developed by Audit Scotland.  Six critical success factors/issues 
were identified and assessed, with these being supported by fifteen statements of good 
practice set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice.  The critical success factors were 
identified as: 

Page 54



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 9 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

• setting clear and properly focused objectives for their work 

• maintaining audit independence 

• resourcing their work programme 

• planning and controlling their work 

• reporting and follow-up arrangements 

• being accountable for their performance. 

8. Audit Scotland has undertaken this follow up study by assessing the performance of 
internal audit services in all Scottish councils against the six critical success factors 
and the standards set by the CIPFA Code of Practice.   

9. A new CIPFA Code was published in September 2003 to take account of new 
Accounts and Audit regulations in England.  Although the Code has been radically 
restructured, it is still based on the 1990 Auditing Practices Board (APB) guidelines.  
To enable the measurement of progress by councils on a consistent basis, the re-
assessment was based on the 2000 CIPFA Code.  However, additional questions 
covering the changes made in the 2003 Code - mainly in relation to audit committees 
and internal control statements – were asked to enable Audit Scotland to assess the 
degree of change required in Scottish councils to meet the obligations of the new 
Code.   

10. The assessment was based on interviews and evidence gathered from the Council’s 
Chief Executive, Head of Strategic Finance, and the Internal Audit Manager.  In 
addition, benchmarking information on the Council’s Internal Audit service was 
collected, including an analysis of staffing numbers, expenditure and level of 
qualification.   

11. Details of the study scoring methodology are given in appendix 1.  The results of the 
national assessment summarising the overall extent of council compliance with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice standards of good practice are shown in appendix 2.  The 
assessment shows councils have made improvements in all aspects of internal audit 
since the original study in 2001, although there is still scope for further improvement.  
The performance of councils was split into 4 bands (see Exhibit 1 on page 3) and Argyll 
& Bute Council is included in band 1.  This is a significant improvement from band 4 in 
2001.  Band 1 refers to those councils that most fully comply with the CIPFA Code.   

12. The remainder of section 3 addresses each of the six critical success factors and 
compares expected good practice for the fifteen statements of good practice with 
findings obtained following interviews and evidence gathered.  For each critical 
success factor we have recorded areas where we consider that Internal Audit’s 
procedures are well developed and areas where we consider improvements could be 
made.  In each of the statements of good practice we have concluded whether Argyll & 
Bute Council’s performance has improved since the 2001 study.  This is also recorded 
in more detail in appendix 3, together with a comparison with other Scottish councils.   

 

Page 55



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 10 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 1: Setting Clear and properly focused 
objectives 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 
1. To assess Internal Audit’s success in setting clear and properly focussed objectives, 

three statements of good practice were compared to the current practices and 
procedures operating locally.  The three statements of good practice were:  

Statement 1.  Within this critical success factor it is expected that in addition to 
financial regulations and standing orders, internal audit sections will have clear and 
formal terms of reference (TOR) that establish the responsibilities and objectives of 
internal audit and define the scope of its activities. These terms of reference should 
have been subject to consultation and agreement with heads of service, councillors, 
and members of the audit committee or similar scrutiny mechanism, where there is 
one. The terms of reference should be communicated widely across the council. 

Statement 2.  Managers should have established and be maintaining an adequate 
system of internal control to enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Internal 
audit are expected to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of controls.   

Statement 3.  The roles of staff, management and internal audit in relation to fraud 
should be clearly defined and communicated.   

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where either Argyll & Bute Council’s procedures or approach are well 
developed include the following: 

• Internal audit has a clear TOR document.  This specifically refers to the CIPFA 
Code of Practice, has been approved by the Audit Committee, and is widely 
communicated throughout the Council via the intranet 

• The communication arrangements between the Audit Committee, elected members, 
and the Internal Audit Manager are clearly set out in the TOR  

• There is a clear separation between the respective roles of management and 
internal audit.  Management are responsible for the operation of their systems and 
the inherent controls within them.  Internal audit are responsible for ensuring that 
these controls operate effectively   

• Heads of Service have been made aware that they should consult any major system 
changes with Internal Audit  

• The Internal Audit Manager provides an overall assessment to both management 
and the Audit Committee of the robustness of internal control for the Council’s main 
systems, based on the work done in the year 

• The Internal Audit Manager reports the basis for complying with Section 95 of the 
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to the responsible finance officer.  To help 
demonstrate this, records of meetings with Directors, at which internal financial 
control statements are reviewed, are retained   

• Internal Audit produce a “Focus Reports”.  These highlight any frauds or serious 
control weaknesses, and are circulated to External Audit/ KPMG/ Members/ 
Directors/ Heads of Service on a confidential basis.  The first one was prepared for 

Page 56



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 11 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

the 6 months to 30 September 2003 and was issued in October 2003.  It is intended 
to report quarterly thereafter.  Frauds detected can (and have) had an impact on risk 
rankings within the Annual Internal Audit Plan 

• The Council has a Whistle-blowing Policy for employees to report concerns at work 
on a confidential basis.  This forms part of the induction programme for new 
employees, and is communicated to all staff via the Council intranet. 

3. Areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are identified as being weak or in 
need of improvement included the following:   

• The TOR are not reflected in the council’s standing orders and financial regulations.  
The Internal Audit Manager advised us that there are plans to address this, 
however, it is the responsibility of Corporate Services to implement any changes 

Refer to Action Point No. 1 

• There is an anti fraud and corruption strategy and fraud response plan.  However, 
we do not consider that these fully reflect the roles and responsibilities of internal 
audit and management since: 
¾ They do not give general guidance on the requirements for alleged cases of fraud 

or corruption to be reported immediately to directors (nor are directors 
responsibilities regarding prevention of fraud very specific) 

¾ They do not note the requirement for directors to notify internal audit of 
suspected cases of fraud 

¾ They do not note the requirement for internal audit to carry out fact finding  (nor is 
Internal Audit’s role in preventing fraud very specific) 

¾ They do not specify how and when to confront the accused 
¾ There is no link to the Council’s disciplinary procedures 
¾ There is no guidance regarding when to contact police.   

Refer to Action Point No. 2 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section has demonstrated improvements in statements of good 
practice 1, 2 and 3 since the original study in 2001.  The Council is now in the top 
performing band for statements of good practice 1 and 2, and in the 2nd top performing 
band for statement of good practice 3.  

5. Recommendations 1 and 2 are designed to help improve the existing good practices 
being followed by the internal audit section in setting clear and focussed objectives. 

 

Page 57



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 12 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 2: Maintaining internal audit independence 
 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 

1. To assess Internal Audit’s success in maintaining independence, two statements of 
good practice were compared to the current practices and procedures operating 
locally.  The two statements of good practice were: 

 Statement 4.  The internal audit section is expected to have independence in terms of 
its organisational status to permit it to properly perform its duties.  It is not enough for 
internal audit actually to operate with due independence – it also must be seen to be 
independent. 

 Statement 5.  The internal audit section is expected to be free of operational 
responsibilities.  Each internal auditor should have an objective attitude of mind and be 
in a sufficiently independent position to be able to exercise judgement, express opinion 
and present recommendations with impartiality. 

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are well developed include 
the following: 

• The Internal Audit Manager reports direct to the Council’s Section 95 officer (Head 
of Strategic Finance) 

• All audit reports are issued in the name of the Internal Audit Manager, and do not 
require to be approved by the Head of Strategic Finance 

• Various aspects of internal audit work are reported quarterly to the Audit Committee.  
In addition, the internal Audit Manager has regular informal meetings or emails with 
the Chair of the Audit Committee.  Internal Audit performance is reported annually to 
the Audit Committee 

• Internal Audit determines its own priorities, based on a risk assessment and in 
consultation with management 

• Internal Audit have unrestricted access to all people, systems, documents and 
property, as they consider necessary for the proper fulfilment of their 
responsibilities.  This is clearly specified in the Authority’s TOR and is also 
incorporated in contract clauses for major joint funding projects (such as the PPP for 
waste management) 

• The Internal Audit Manager is free to report without fear or favour, has the right of 
final edit and issues reports in his own name or the name of the auditor who carried 
out the work 

• Internal audit is independent of any line management tasks.  This is specifically 
referred to within the TOR 

• There is a staff register of interests, which records details of family members and 
close friends of internal audit staff who work for other services in Argyll and Bute 
Council.  The Internal Audit Manager does not allow systems operated by these 
people to be audited by the appropriate internal audit staff member 

Page 58



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 13 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

• Planned assignments are undertaken by a small group of four auditors, the 
background of whom is known to management.  This, combined with the staff 
register of interests helps ensure that jobs are appropriately assigned to avoid 
conflicts of interest of a personal or past history nature.   

 

3. There are no areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are identified as being 
weak or in need of improvement. 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section has demonstrated improvements in statements of good 
practice 4 and 5 since the original study in 2001, and is now in the top performing band 
for each of these statement of good practice.   

 

Page 59



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 14 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 3: Planning and controlling internal audit work 
 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 

1. To assess Internal Audit’s success in effective planning and controlling of work, four 
statements of good practice were compared to the local practices and procedures.  
The four statements of good practice were: 

Statement 6.  Internal audit should identify potential internal control system problems, 
prioritise concerns, and plan its work from the basis of a risk assessment of a wide 
range of risks across the council – including both financial and operational systems. 

Statement 7.  Internal audit should have a structured planning framework of strategic 
plans, annual plans, and project plans for individual assignments. Work should be 
prioritised and managed in line with internal audit’s assessment of corporate risks.   

Statement 8.  Internal audit should seek to foster constructive working relationships 
and mutual understanding with management, external auditors, inspectorates, any 
other review agencies and, where one exists, with the audit committee or equivalent 
mechanism. 

Statement 9.  A sound system of control of the internal audit unit and of individual 
assignments should exist to ensure that internal audit objectives are achieved and 
work is performed effectively.  The Chief Internal Auditor should have suitable 
arrangements for managing internal audit work.   

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are well developed include 
the following: 

• Internal Audit priorities are based on a risk assessment process which includes, as 
one of its factors, the opinion of management.  As part of the 3 year strategic plan, 
management are asked to assess the risk factors associated with a wide range of 
areas within the systems they are responsible for, and to arrive at an overall risk 
index   

• The risk index forms the basis for prioritising audit work 

• The Strategic Audit Plan in place at the time of the assessment covers the years 
2002/03 – 2004/05.  This is reviewed every year on an ongoing basis to reflect the 
changed priorities of the Council 

• Audit plans are prepared after consultation with managers across the council.  The 
Strategic Audit Plan and Annual Audit Plan are approved by the Audit Committee 

• An audit agreement documents is prepared for each audit assignment.  These 
allocate resources, set out the scope and objectives of the assignment and establish 
target timescales for completion and reporting   

• Progress on the annual audit plan is reported quarterly to the Audit Committee 

• Any significant changes to audit plans require to be notified to, and approved by the 
Audit Committee 

Page 60



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 15 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

• Heads of Service are consulted in advance of the timing of audit work and indicative 
completion dates to minimise disruption 

• All audit files contain a “Note on Audit Planning Process”.  This requires that the 
Auditor contacts the appropriate service manager and informs him/her of the scope 
of the audit, the audit approach, the names of auditors and timing/number of days of 
audit.  This document also requires that the auditor keeps management updated of 
any findings throughout the audit, and that there is an exit meeting   

• External audit consult with internal audit prior to preparing annual plans (and vice 
versa) to highlight areas where external audit can place reliance on internal audit’s 
work.  Regular meetings are held between the Internal Audit Manager and external 
audit to monitor progress of each others annual audit plans   

• The Internal Audit Manager attends all Audit Committee meetings, and holds 
informal meetings with the Chair of the Audit Committee throughout the year 

• There is an internal audit manual.  This is available electronically to all internal audit 
staff   

• Internal audit staff are allocated to assignments according to their skills and 
experience and in accordance with their PDR.  There are regular Internal Audit 
section meetings, at which progress of assignments is discussed 

• All audit files require to be reviewed by lead auditors or internal audit managers.   

3. Areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are identified as being weak or in 
need of improvement included the following:   

• The risk assessment process was developed in co-operation with KPMG and is 
explained in the strategic audit plan.  Corporate Services are responsible for the 
authority’s risk management process and for the upkeep of the risk register.  We 
were advised, though, that the post of Corporate Governance Manager has still to 
be filled, that the risk register has only been in operation for nine months and that it 
still requires to be fully tested to confirm whether it is robust.  Internal audit advised 
us that they have carried out a brief review of the risk register, but do not always 
agree with its findings.  They anticipate that the 2004-05/2007-08 strategic audit 
plan will take full cognisance of the risk register 

Refer to Action Plan No. 3 

• We do not consider the strategic audit plan is sufficiently informative regarding the 
nature of audit work (or at least the Departments that will be audited) over the period 
of the plan   

Refer to Action Plan No. 4 

• The strategic plan clearly notes the systems being audited, the days allocated to 
them, and the risk factor.  However, there is no mention of any high risk factor areas 
that have been eliminated from the plan due to manpower or skills shortages within 
internal audit   

Refer to Action Plan No. 5 

• Progress on the annual audit plan is reported quarterly to the audit committee.  The 
most recent report at the time of our fieldwork (in November 2003) demonstrated 
that Internal Audit were on course to complete most planned work.  There were, 
however, a few significant overspends (special investigations, PIs and DLOs).  
While these were compensated by underspends elsewhere and by spending less 

Page 61



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 16 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

time on audit support work, there was a risk that one of the lower ranked audits 
(Public Transport) may require to be delayed until 2004/2005.  We consider that the 
budget for special investigations may be underestimated, and that this requires to 
be reassessed   

Refer to Action Plan No. 6 

• There is no procedure requiring Heads of Service/Directors to inform or remind 
internal audit of any impending inspectorate visits 

Refer to Action Plan No. 7 

• A sample of 5 audit files were selected for audit testing to determine whether 
adequate working papers are prepared to support internal audit findings, 
conclusions and recommendations.  Our testing highlighted that working paper files 
are comprehensive with adequate evidence of information obtained in support of 
findings.  A Systems Audit Methodology (SAM) control summary was prepared for 
each of the systems covered by testing.  However, we noted that: 
¾ although most SAM documents are cross-referred to audit testing schedules, the 

schedules do not, in our opinion, clearly describe the test carried out, the 
conclusions reached, or the findings/recommendations 

¾ in most files reviewed there were no distinctive compliance test or substantive 
test documents, nor was there guidance or an  indication of sample sizes that 
should be used.  We noted that this is not addressed by the audit manual.  We 
consider these should be an integral part of a risk based audit approach   

¾ where compliance testing was carried out, the test programme was not always 
signed off to demonstrate whether the test was completed, nor was the test 
programme always cross referenced to the appropriate working paper in the audit 
file 

¾ the above often resulted in a lot of (good) work being carried out within the body 
of a file that could not be easily identified to any specific audit objective 

¾ there were a considerable amount of working papers which were not referenced.   

Refer to Action Plan No. 8, 9 and 10 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section have demonstrated improvements in each of statements of 
good practice 6 to 9 since the original study in 2001.  The Council are now in the top 
performing band for statements of good practice 8 and 9, and the 2nd top performing 
band in statements of good practice 6 and 7.   

5. Recommendations 3 to 10 are designed to help improve the existing good practices 
being followed by the internal audit section in planning and controlling their work. 

 

Page 62



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 17 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 4: Resourcing the internal audit work 
programme 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 

1. To assess Internal Audit’s success in resourcing the section, two statements of good 
practice were compared to the local practices and procedures.  The two statements of 
good practice were: 

 Statement 10.  It is expected that the chief internal auditor will be suitably qualified and 
experienced in internal audit and is an effective manager. The internal audit section 
should have sufficient staff from a range of disciplines, with varying skills experience 
and qualifications.  Any identified gaps should be filled via training and recruitment.   

 Statement 11.  Internal audit staff are trained to meet the current and future challenges 
they are likely to confront.  Within a framework of continuing professional development, 
training is tailored to the needs of individuals, planned, and continuous at all levels. 

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where either the Council’s procedures or approach are well developed 
include the following: 

• The Internal Audit Manager is professionally qualified and has wide experience of 
internal audit and its management   

• The present internal audit staffing structure was arrived at following the 2000/01 
Audit Scotland national and local internal audit VFM reports, subsequently followed 
by a service review that was carried out by Professor Midwinter.  The Council 
considers that the current structure enables it to meet its objectives 

• The Internal Audit section currently has 6 staff in post, of which 4 have Consultative 
Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB) qualifications.  One of the 4 staff with a 
CCAB qualification also holds an IT qualification.  The other 2 staff members are 
working towards relevant qualifications 

• The Council has a partnership agreement with KPMG.  This provides internal audit 
with access to relevant people with specialist experience whenever required 

• Audit staff have job descriptions that reflect their current positions 

• An induction programme is provided to new staff.  Professional training is provided 
by KPMG on various areas that will provide staff with more knowledge on auditing 
techniques and issues.  More specific training courses – such as contract audit, e 
procurement, benefit fraud surveillance training, CAAT training,– are also provided 
where required subject to budget availability   

• When audits are allocated to staff, it is determined whether there is sufficient 
knowledge on the subject by existing staff.  If there isn’t, KPMG are asked to provide 
training and/or an appropriate course is sought for employees   

• The Performance Development Review (PDR) process helps to demonstrate that 
various types of training are provided in a bid to tailor the needs of individual 
auditors.   

3. Areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are identified as being weak or in 
need of improvement included the following:   

Page 63



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 18 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

• In general, internal audit have adequate resources to enable it to meet its work 
objectives efficiently and effectively.  However, our enquiries highlighted that there 
are only 2 laptops shared by the 6 internal audit staff, and that there have been no 
new laptops provided since 1998.  This seems a low number, given the large 
geographical area covered by audit staff working in Argyll and Bute Council   

Refer to Action Plan No. 11 

• Continuous Professional Development (CPD) records are kept for all qualified staff.  
However, these only list courses attended.  They do not quantify the total amount of 
CPD hours gained per year.   

Refer to Action Plan No. 12 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section have demonstrated improvements in statements of good 
practice 10 and 11 since the original study in 2001.  The Council is now in the top 
performing band for statement 10, and the 2nd top performing band for statement 11.    

5. The 2001 national report identified that a richer skill mix was most commonly found in 
better performing councils.  The 2004 national report highlighted that a higher 
proportion of internal audit staff (55% in comparison with 45%) now hold a professional 
accountancy qualification.  Argyll and Bute Council have attained Band 1 status (i.e. 
those Councils that most fully comply with the CIPFA Code) with 67% of staff having a 
professional accountancy qualification.   

6. Recommendations 11 and 12 are designed to help improve the existing good practices 
being followed by when resourcing the internal audit work programme.   

 

Page 64



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 19 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 5: Effective reporting and follow up arrangements 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 

1. To assess Internal Audit’s success in reporting and follow up arrangements, two 
statements of good practice were compared to the local practices and procedures.  
The two statements of good practice were: 

 Statement 12.  Internal audit should ensure that findings, conclusions and 
recommendations arising from each internal audit assignment are communicated 
promptly to the appropriate level of management and that responses are provided to 
these findings.   

 Statement 13.  Internal audit should produce reports and submit them to management 
to ensure that proper consideration is given to the issues raised and recommendations 
made.  Internal audit is responsible for ensuring that management has implemented 
recommendations or has understood and assumed the risk of not taking action.  The 
results of follow up work should be used by internal audit to update its risk assessment 
and plan its future work.   

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where either the Council’s procedures or approach are well developed 
include the following: 

• An Annual Audit Report is produced, and a summary is presented to the Audit 
Committee.  This provides an overall assessment on internal audit’s performance for 
the year, and an audit opinion based on the work carried out during the year 

• The audit manual has procedures in place for producing and clearing reports   

• Before issuing final reports, internal audit discuss the contents with management, 
and submit a draft to confirm the factual content   

• There is a statement in each report that highlights management’s responsibility 
regarding acceptance of the risk of non-implementation of recommendations 

• Recent audit reports demonstrate that internal audit agree specific, measurable, 
achievable, realistic, time based (SMART) action plans with management.  These 
identify the person responsible for implementing recommendations and set 
timescales.  All action plan items are graded between fundamental, major, and 
minor 

• Where service managers fail to implement improvement actions, this is reported to 
Directors and Heads of Services.  In more extreme cases, this is reported to the 
Audit Committee, who can request that managers provide them with a written 
explanation regarding why a recommendation has not been implemented.   

3. There are no significant areas where the Council’s current procedures or approach 
could be improved with regard to reporting and follow up arrangements.   

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section has demonstrated improvements against statements of good 
practice 12 and 13 since the original study in 2001, and is now in the top performing 
band for each of these.   

Page 65



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 20 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTOR 6: Holding internal audit to account for its 
performance 
 

Broad expectations of good practice 

1. To assess the success in holding Internal Audit to account for its performance, two 
statements of good practice were compared to the local practices and procedures.  
The two statements of good practice were: 

 Statement 14.  The chief internal auditor is expected to promote and maintain 
adequate quality standards in the internal audit unit within a performance management 
framework. The performance of internal audit should be independently reviewed.   

 Statement 15.  Internal audit should employ and demonstrate high standards of 
professional and ethical behaviour. To allow this, internal auditors staff are expected to 
be impartial and avoid any conflicts of interest. 

Summary of findings 

2. The key areas where either the Council’s procedures or approach are well developed 
include the following: 

• Internal Audit is accountable to an Audit Committee.  This meets every quarter and 
consists of 5 elected member plus 2 members of the public, who were appointed for 
their interest in audit and/or Council matters.  The Section 95 officer, Internal Audit 
Manager, and External Auditor are invited to attend all meetings  

• An annual audit plan is presented to the Audit Committee   

• Internal Audit use a set of performance indicators to monitor their performance.  
These are reported annually to both the Audit Committee and the Senior 
Management Team   

• Questionnaires are also used to obtain feedback on performance.  A copy of each 
questionnaire is retained in each working papers file.  These are summarised, and 
the average “score” is reported to the Audit Committee at the year end 

• Internal Audit staff receive training on new systems or whenever there is a major 
change to a system.  If this is not provided, the system managers may be called to 
the Audit Committee to explain why not 

• All staff are involved with professional accountancy bodies and have to abide by 
their respective codes of ethics   

• The performance of internal audit is developed through various means including the 
review process (i.e qualified accountants reviewing work of less experienced staff), 
induction training, PDR process and the production/update of an audit manual 

• A register of staff interests is kept up to date.  This helps to ensure that internal 
auditors are seen to be impartial in discharging their responsibilities. 

3. Areas where the Council’s procedures or approach are identified as being weak or in 
need of improvement included the following: 

• Various performance indicators have been devised in consultation with the Audit 
Committee.  On the whole we find these to be satisfactory.  However, there are 

Page 66



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Section 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 21 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

areas where we consider improvements could be made to the information provided.  
These are: 

• internal audit report the percentage of recommendations accepted by audit 
clients.  We consider this would be improved if they were also to report the 
percentage of recommendations that have been implemented within an 
appropriate timescale 

• the reported performance indicators show that 100% of reports are issued 
within 10 days of work being completed, and that 100% of audit assignments in 
the audit plan are completed within budget.  This is somewhat misleading since 
it is known that certain audits missed one (or both) of these targets.  Officers 
advised that these PIs are recorded as 100% since, overall, (i.e. on an average 
basis) each of these targets was achieved.   

Refer to Action Plan No. 13 and 14 

• Internal audit is not accredited under a national or international quality standard (eg 
Investors in People (IiP), European Foundation of Quality Management (EFQM), 
etc.  We were advised, though, that the internal audit section has recently 
commenced the process towards gaining EFQM accreditation.   

Refer to Action Plan No. 15 

Conclusion 

4. The Internal Audit section has demonstrated improvements in statements of good 
practice 14 and 15 since the original study in 2001.  The Council now is in the top 
performing band for statement 15, and the 2nd top performing band for statement 14.   

5. Recommendations 13 to 15 are designed to help improve the existing good practices 
being followed by the internal audit section in holding themselves to account for their 
performance. 

 

Page 67



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 22 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Appendix 1: Assessment methodology 
 

Undertaking the assessment 
External auditors assessed each council’s arrangements for internal audit against accepted 

good practice as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government. The assessments for the follow-up study were completed during early 2004 

and reflect councils’ arrangements at 1 March 2004 while the assessments for the initial 

study were completed in February 2001.  

The performance assessment framework used by external auditors is based on six critical 

success factors. Auditors scored council performance by testing almost 100 processes and 

outcomes within 15 areas of good practice (Exhibit A). These reflect the issues that the study 

advisory group for the initial study and other consultees (including council internal auditors 

and the Commission’s appointed external auditors) felt were essential for delivering an 

effective internal audit service. 

Exhibit A 
Structure of the assessment 
Fifteen statements of good practice and 97 tests on council processes and outcomes support 
the six critical success factors. 

 

Six critical 
success factors  

eg, Having 
effective reporting 
and follow-up 
arrangements 

 

 

 

 

 

15 statements of 
good practice 

eg, Internal audit has 
clear reporting 
arrangements that 
provide management 
with an opinion on the 
adequacy of internal 
controls 

 97 tests on individual 
council processes and 
outcomes 

eg, Internal audit produces 
clear, concise and 
constructive written 
reports. 

eg, The chief internal 
auditor produces an annual 
report which contains a 
view on the soundness of 
the council’s internal 
control system. 

Source: Audit Scotland 

External auditors tested documentary evidence, processes and outcomes to assess the 

degree of compliance with good practice. The following example shows how the scoring 

system was applied to documentary evidence: 

� 1 = ‘no’ – performance does not comply with good practice (eg, document does not 

exist or very early draft) 

Page 68



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 23 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

� 2 = ‘qualified no’ – performance on the whole does not comply with good practice (eg, 

terms of reference are available in draft but have yet to be approved and are not in 

use operationally, or a formally approved document which misses out most of the 

important issues) 

� 3 = ‘qualified yes’ – performance on the whole complies with good practice (eg, 

formally approved document which misses some important issues or a draft document 

that, although yet to be formally approved, is in use operationally) 

� 4 = ‘yes’ – performance complies with good practice (eg, formally approved document 

covering all of the important issues). 

Consistency and validation checks 
To ensure auditors’ assessments were consistently scored, the study team provided training 

and undertook robust validation procedures including: 

� holding training workshops for auditors to familiarise them with the methodology and 

assessment process 

� holding further workshops to ensure that auditors’ assessments were undertaken 

consistently 

� conducting consistency checks on auditors’ assessments and council data returns 

� having a sample of 40% of assessments subjected to independent peer review by 

other external auditors. 

Although the study team has made every effort to ensure that the assessments have been 

scored on a consistent basis, there always remains a small element of subjectivity in scoring 

performance.  

Assessing overall performance 
The scores for each test were used to calculate the average score for each statement. These 

were then used to calculate a council score for each of the six critical success factors. 

In the initial study, scores for the six critical factors and the 15 statements for each council 

were used to create bands of performance. Exhibit B shows the link between council scores 

and performance bands. These same ranges were used in the follow-up study to place 

councils in performance bands. 

Page 69



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 1 

JULY 2004 PAGE 24 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Exhibit B 
The link between council scores and performance bands 
Councils’ actual scores from the initial study were used to assess overall compliance and to 
create performance bands. 

Overall compliance 

with the Code2 

Performance bands created from analysis of 

actual results – initial study 

% Performance band Range 

83 – 100 1 3.50 - 4.00 
70 – 83 2 3.10 - 3.50 
50 – 70 3 2.50 - 3.10 
25 – 50 4 1.75 - 2.50 
0 – 25 5 1.00 - 1.75 

Source: Audit Scotland 

Exhibit C shows how the average scores convert to ‘hotel star’ ratings (see Appendix 2). The 

star ratings indicate each council’s performance overall, and for each area. Because the 

ratings for each statement have been rounded adding them together may not produce the 

council’s overall score. 

Exhibit C 
The relationship between ‘hotel stars’ and average scores 
The ‘hotel stars’ reflect the performance bands. 

Average scores for each statement 

Equal to or more than But less than 

‘Hotel stars’ symbol 

3.50 4.00 *****3.10 3.50 ****2.50 3.10 ***1.75 2.50 **1.00 1.75 *
Source: Audit Scotland 

 

                                                 
2 The percentage compliance was calculated for each score in the following manner – Percentage compliance = (score –1)/3 

* 100. Because the lowest score that a council could achieve is 1 and the highest is a 4, a score of 2.5 represents a 
percentage compliance score of 50%. 

 

Page 70



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 2 

JULY 2004 PAGE 25 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Appendix 2: Extent of Council Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice 
 
 
Councils’ improvement since the initial study 
Councils originally in the lowest performance band have made the greatest improvement.  

West Lothian

West Dunbartonshire

Stirling

South Lanarkshire

South Ayrshire

Shetland Islands

Scottish Borders

Renfrewshire

Perth & Kinross

Orkney Islands

North Lanarkshire

North Ayrshire

Moray

Midlothian

Inverclyde

Highland

Glasgow City

Fife

Falkirk

Eilean Siar

Edinburgh, City of

East Renfrewshire

East Lothian

East Dunbartonshire

East Ayrshire

Dundee City

Dumfries & Galloway

Clackmannanshire

Argyll & Bute

Angus

Aberdeenshire

Aberdeen City

C
ou

nc
il

40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Percent compliance with Code

Compliance 
2001
Compliance 
2004

  
Source: External auditors’ returns 2001 and 2004 

Page 71



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 26 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Appendix 3: External audit assessments by council  
 
 
The colour of the ‘hotel stars’ indicates whether, in 2004, performance has improved (green), 

remained the same (black) or deteriorated (red) in comparison with 2001. Within bands, councils are 

listed in alphabetical order, not in order of performance. 

Page 72



Argyll & Bute Council - 2003/04 Audit  
Internal Audit – A job worth doing follow-up Appendix 3 

JULY 2004 PAGE 27 AUDIT SERVICES-AUDIT SCOTLAND 
 

Page 73



   

Page 74



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2004 – 2005. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all 

audits completed during the prior year.  Internal Audit also document the progress made 
by departmental management in implementing the recommendations made by Audit 
Scotland and Internal Audit. Internal Audit is concerned that the current process of 
collecting evidence and subsequent reporting is inefficient for departments, internal audit 
and the Audit Committee. A new reporting system has therefore been devised and this is 
set out below. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 A proposal was sent to all Departmental Directors on 27 May 2004 to request that 

they assign a member of staff to act as co-ordinator for audit report responses from 
management within their departments. At the same time they were given an 
outline of what actions would be required and a timetable for when Internal Audit 
would review departmental responses prior to Audit Committee meetings. Each 
Director accepted the proposal and appointed members of their staff to the role of 
co-ordinator.  

    
  3.2 Discussions were held with Audit Scotland regarding our desire to increase the 

effectiveness of our reporting on both external and internal audit report 
recommendation implementation to the Audit Committee. They offered advice as 
to how they would like to see implementation of their recommendations reported 
in the future and combining this with our own ideas a new system and reporting 
format was developed. (See Appendices 1 to 4.)   

    
  3.3  Appendix 1 is a statistical summary of the 2003/04 Internal Audit reports issued 

by 31 May 2004 and details the number of recommendations contained in each 
report, number of recommendations to be implemented by the follow up date, the 
number implemented and those past their implementation date. The 
implementation date used for reporting to this Audit Committee is, 31 July 2004. 
A reference column has been added to provide a link to Appendix 2 where reasons 
are given by local management as to why recommendations have not been 
implemented by the agreed date.  The same layout has been used for the reporting 
of Audit Scotland report recommendations.  

    
  3.4 Appendix 2 details under each report’s title the recommendation that is still to be 

implemented, the department and Head of Service responsible and an explanation 
for the delay, the level of risk, original and a revised implementation date. The 
same layout has been used for the reporting of Audit Scotland report 

Agenda Item 9Page 75



recommendations.   
    
  3.5 All new external audit reports issued by Audit Scotland to the Council will be 

reported initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary 
and action plan. Thereafter they will be included in the summary list in 
Appendices 3 & 4 of this report. Regarding external reports for PMP 2002/03 and 
HMI, these report recommendations are nearing full implementation and are the 
subject of separate reports to the Audit Committee. 

    
 
 

 3.6 The new system is more objective and focused, it reduces the number of pages that 
members need to review, increases the worth of the information reported, gives an 
overview in a statistical format of the progress of recommendation 
implementation, with comment provided by local management where 
implementation has been delayed.  

    
   REQUESTED SERVICE REPORTS  
    
  3.7 A report entitled Management of Community Equipment and Adaptations was 

issued by Audit Scotland in July 2003. At the last Audit Committee members 
requested that a report be presented on adaptations to the next meeting. A report 
has been prepared by the Head of Integrated Care. (See Appendix 5).  

    
  3.8 With regard to the above report, the Audit Committee requested confirmation of 

advertising details for the Planning Officer for Community Care post. A comment 
is attached from the responsible officer confirming the re-advertisement of the 
above post. (See Appendix 6).  

    
  3.9 Audit Scotland issued a report in April 2004 entitled Commissioning Community 

Care Services for Older People. At the last Audit Committee members requested 
that the responsible officer review the implementation date agreed with Audit 
Scotland regarding the Council analysis of unmet need. The responsible officer 
has considered the point made by members and has set a new implementation date 
of April 2005. Comment from the officer is given in Appendix 6.  

    
  3.10 Audit Scotland issued a report in March 2004 entitled Regularity & Governance 1 

– Property Asset Management 2003 - 2004. As requested by the Audit Committee 
the Head of Infrastructure & Transport has arranged for a report to update 
members of the current position of Asset Management Strategy. (See Appendix 7).

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  The new system of reporting will be more objective in reporting terms for the 

Audit Committee. Implementation of recommendations will continue to be 
monitored by Internal Audit.   

  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 

Page 76



        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyfinalreport30July  

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

A
u

d
it

A
c
ti

o
n

 p
o

in
ts

 

ra
is

e
d

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y
 

3
1
 J

u
l y

 2
0
0
4

P
o

in
ts

 a
c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a
te

B
e
h

in
d

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

B
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 c
o
n
tr

o
l

6
6

1
5

A
1
,2

,3
,4

,5

D
e
b
to

r 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

6
6

4
2

B
1
,2

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 –
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

P
e
o

p
le

9
9

7
2

C
3
,9

C
a
s
h
 &

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 B

a
n
k
in

g
1
2

1
2

1
0

2
D

7
,8

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 &

 N
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
3

3
2

1
E

3

C
re

d
it
o
r 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 /
 P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 

O
rd

e
ri
n

g
 &

 C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

1
0

9
6

3
F

2
,3

,9

U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 S
y
s
te

m
6

6
4

2
G

1
,5

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

8
7

6
1

H
8

C
a
r 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s

5
4

4
0

N
/A

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ir
th

s
, 
M

a
rr

ia
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
a
th

s
2

2
1

1
I1

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

3
3

2
1

J
3

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
H

ir
e
 &

 O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 L

e
a
s
e
s

1
7

1
6

1
3

3
K

2
,6

,1
1

D
L
O

’s
1
7

1
7

1
3

4
L
6
,1

4
,1

5
,1

7

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 A

s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
5

7
5

3
M

2
,4

,8

B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 &

 P
M

P
4
2

2
8

1
3

1
5

N
2
,3

,1
0
,1

2
,1

3
,1

4
,1

7
,1

9

,2
4
,2

5
,3

0
,3

2
,3

5
,4

1
,4

2

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 –

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 N
P

D
O

8
8

6
2

O
6
,8

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 C
a
m

p
b
e
lt
o
w

n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

8
7

6
1

P
8

T
o
ta

l
1
7
7

1
5
0

1
0
3

4
8

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 –

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it  
  A

 -B
ud

ge
ta

ry
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
C

on
tr

ol
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

B
ud

ge
t s

et
tin

g 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

in
 

or
de

r t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

fra
m

ew
or

k.
 

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

D
el

ay
ed

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f t

he
 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 S

tra
te

gy
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f t
he

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ay

 2
00

4 
N

on
e 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 

2 
Th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 S

ec
ur

ity
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

R
es

tru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
us

ed
 

th
is

 s
lip

pa
ge

. 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
3 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4 

3 
B

ud
ge

t h
ol

de
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

tra
in

ed
 

in
 th

ei
r r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s 
fo

r 
bu

dg
et

ar
y 

co
nt

ro
l. 

 
  

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

D
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

lip
pa

ge
 in

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
nd

 S
ec

ur
ity

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
af

te
r t

he
 re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g.

 
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ay

 2
00

4 
N

on
e 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 

4 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fi
na

nc
e 

w
ill 

is
su

e 
a 

se
t o

f g
en

er
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 o

f 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 b
ud

ge
ta

ry
 

co
nt

ro
l a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

D
el

ay
ed

 fo
r t

he
 s

am
e 

re
as

on
s 

as
 P

oi
nt

 
3 

ab
ov

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

N
on

e 
at

 p
re

se
nt

 

5 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l w
or

k 
w

ill 
de

ve
lo

p 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ov

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 e

ve
nt

s 
as

 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 b
ud

ge
ta

ry
 c

on
tro

l 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

 p
la

ce
 in

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
w

ill 
be

 
ro

lle
d 

ou
t t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
si

n g
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

N
on

e 
at

 p
re

se
nt

 

Page 81



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
po

lic
ie

s.
  

 
W

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

  B
 - 

Su
nd

ry
 D

eb
to

r A
cc

ou
nt

s 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Th
e 

de
bt

or
s 

us
er

 g
ro

up
 w

ill 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 

de
bt

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r 

on
 is

su
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 
th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 in

co
m

e 
th

at
 is

 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
er

e 
ha

sn
’t 

be
en

 a
 d

eb
to

rs
 u

se
r g

ro
up

 
fo

r s
ev

er
al

 m
on

th
s.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 n
ex

t 
gr

ou
p,

 d
ue

 to
 m

ee
t i

n 
O

ct
ob

er
, w

ill 
co

ns
id

er
 th

is
 to

pi
c.

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

 C
 - 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

ra
nt

s 
– 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
 3

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

w
ill 

be
 p

as
se

d 
to

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 

La
st

 u
pd

at
e 

w
as

 p
rio

r t
o 

au
di

t a
nd

 h
as

 
no

t 
be

en
 

do
ne

 
si

nc
e,

 
ho

w
ev

er
 

an
 

up
da

te
 to

 b
e 

se
nt

 to
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
/c

 2
6th

 J
ul

y 
20

04
 a

nd
 w

ill
 t

he
n 

be
 

do
ne

 m
on

th
ly

.  

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ay

 2
00

4 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

 9
 

S
te

ps
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 a
pp

oi
nt

 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
I.T

 o
ffi

ce
r f

or
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pe

op
le

.  
In

 th
e 

m
ea

nt
im

e 
th

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pe
op

le
 te

am
 w

ill
 d

ev
el

op
 I.

T 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

I.T
 o

ffi
ce

r n
ot

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 / 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

as
 a

t 1
6/

7/
04

 
M

at
er

ia
l 

Ju
ne

 2
00

4 
N

on
e 

at
 p

re
se

nt
. 

Page 82



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

I.T
 

su
pp

or
t, 

to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 in
 u

se
 

  D
 - 

C
as

h 
&

 In
co

m
e 

B
an

ki
ng

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
7 

A
ll 

po
st

al
 re

m
itt

an
ce

s 
to

 
K

ilb
ow

ie
 H

ou
se

, O
ba

n 
w

ill 
be

 re
co

rd
ed

 a
nd

 a
 re

gi
st

er
 

ch
ec

ke
d 

an
d 

si
gn

ed
 b

y 
2 

st
af

f m
em

be
rs

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 th

ef
t. 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
-H

ea
d 

of
 

R
oa

ds
 a

nd
 A

m
en

ity
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

O
nl

y 
on

e 
pe

rs
on

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 s

ig
ns

 th
e 

re
gi

st
er

 d
ue

 to
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

t s
ta

ff 
to

 
en

ab
le

 tw
o 

si
gn

at
ur

es
.  

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
he

n 
th

e 
of

fic
e 

is
 u

p 
to

 
fu

ll 
st

af
fin

g.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

N
on

e.
 

8 
S

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 in

tro
du

ce
d,

 in
 K

ilb
ow

ie
 

H
ou

se
, O

ba
n,

 fo
r s

ta
ff 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 c

as
h 

ha
nd

lin
g,

 
re

co
rd

in
g 

of
 in

co
m

e,
 e

tc
 to

 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

or
 

th
ef

t. 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
-H

ea
d 

of
 

R
oa

ds
 a

nd
 A

m
en

ity
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t s

ta
ff 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

se
gr

eg
at

io
n 

of
 s

ta
ff 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
of

fic
e.

  
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
he

n 
th

e 
of

fic
e 

is
 u

p 
to

 fu
ll 

st
af

fin
g.

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 
20

04
/0

5 
au

di
t t

hi
s 

po
in

t w
as

 ra
is

ed
 

ag
ai

n 
an

d 
a 

ne
w

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

20
04

 w
as

 a
gr

ee
d.

  
 E 

- C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

&
 N

on
 D

om
es

tic
 R

at
es

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
3 

A
ut

ho
ris

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 w
rit

e 
of

f 
of

 N
D

R
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
de

bt
or

s 
w

ill
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 S

ec
ur

it y
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

ea
d 

of
 IC

T 
an

d 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
th

e 
re

vi
si

on
 o

f t
he

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

an
d 

S
ec

ur
ity

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
M

in
or

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
3 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4 

Page 83



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 a

m
en

de
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
is

 m
ov

em
en

t. 
 F 

- C
re

di
to

r P
ay

m
en

ts
 / 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
in

g 
&

 C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

To
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

be
ne

fit
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 to

 
en

su
re

 s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 IC
T 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

S
av

in
gs

 w
ill 

no
t a

cc
ru

e 
at

 p
re

se
nt

 a
s 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

  

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

4 

3 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 a
de

qu
at

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
pr

og
re

ss
iv

e 
up

da
te

 o
f t

he
 

sy
st

em
 b

y 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 IC
T 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

Th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 is
 a

t t
oo

 
ea

rly
 a

 s
ta

ge
 fo

r t
he

 fu
ll 

re
po

rti
ng

 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
4 

9 
Th

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 is

 to
 s

et
 

up
 a

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
so

ft 
pr

oc
es

s 
be

ne
fit

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
Pe

co
s 

sy
st

em
. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 IC
T 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

D
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
ou

tp
ut

 fr
om

 W
es

t o
f 

S
co

tla
nd

 g
ro

up
 –

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 in
te

rim
 

so
lu

tio
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4 
al

th
ou

gh
 fi

rs
t p

ro
ce

ss
 b

en
ef

its
 n

ot
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

ea
su

ra
bl

e 
un

til
 p

os
t 

A
pr

il 
20

05
. 

M
at

er
ia

l 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
P

os
t A

pr
il 

20
05

 

 G
 - 

U
ni

fie
d 

B
en

ef
its

 S
ys

te
m

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 m

an
ua

l t
o 

be
 

re
vi

se
d/

up
da

te
d 

on
ce

 th
e 

C
om

in
o 

be
ne

fit
s 

sy
st

em
 h

as
 

se
ttl

ed
 in

. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

N
o 

fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
m

an
ua

l e
xi

st
s 

al
th

ou
gh

 in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 is
su

e 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
rs

. 
M

an
ag

em
en

t w
ill 

lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ro

du
ci

ng
 m

an
ua

ls
. 

M
at

er
ia

l 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

Page 84



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

5 
Th

e 
du

tie
s 

of
 B

en
ef

it 
Fr

au
d 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
re

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 c

om
e 

un
de

r t
he

 li
ne

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 B

en
ef

its
 

O
ffi

ce
r. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 

th
e 

au
di

t. 
M

at
er

ia
l 

A
pr

il 
20

04
 

N
/A

 

  H
 - 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
8 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ho

 c
on

fir
m

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
n 

de
ta

ils
 w

ith
 th

e 
ba

nk
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

iti
al

 th
e 

de
al

in
g 

sl
ip

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 

th
e 

tra
ns

ac
tio

n 
am

ou
nt

 is
 

co
rre

ct
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

D
ea

lin
g 

sl
ip

s 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r c

on
fir

m
in

g 
de

ta
ils

 w
ith

 th
e 

ba
nk

. A
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 th
at

 th
is

 w
ill 

do
ne

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 (A
pr

il 
20

04
) 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. 

 I -
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 B

irt
hs

, M
ar

ria
ge

s 
an

d 
D

ea
th

s 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Lo
ok

 a
t u

pd
at

in
g 

th
e 

re
gi

st
ra

r’s
 p

ag
e 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 w

eb
si

te
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
m

or
e 

us
ef

ul
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

ea
d 

of
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

bo
ok

le
t w

hi
ch

 
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 to

 b
e 

sc
an

ne
d 

on
to

 th
e 

w
eb

. 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

      J 
- P

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 
 

Page 85



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
3 

C
ou

nc
il 

O
ffi

ce
rs

, w
ho

 a
ct

 a
s 

ad
vi

so
rs

 to
 C

ar
e 

&
 R

ep
ai

r, 
ha

ve
 n

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

ei
r r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

Th
is

 is
su

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 re
vi

ew
ed

 
by

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
M

at
er

ia
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

4 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

   K
 - 

C
on

tr
ac

t H
ire

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Le

as
es

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

A
n 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

to
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

le
as

es
 w

ill 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 fo

r 
de

pa
rtm

en
ta

l s
ta

ff.
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
e 

le
as

in
g 

ad
vi

so
rs

 h
av

e 
on

ly
 re

ce
nt

ly
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

nd
 th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 d
ra

fti
ng

 th
is

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

A
pr

il 
20

04
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

6 
A

 s
et

 o
f p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r 
te

nd
er

in
g,

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
te

rm
in

at
in

g 
le

as
e 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
e 

le
as

in
g 

ad
vi

so
rs

 h
av

e 
on

ly
 re

ce
nt

ly
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

nd
 th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 d
ra

fti
ng

 th
e 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
s 

w
el

l h
as

 th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

or
y 

gu
id

an
ce

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

A
pr

il 
20

04
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

11
 

E
st

at
es

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

le
as

ed
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 a
re

 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
to

 b
e 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
le

as
es

. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

eg
al

 a
nd

 
P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

P
ro

ce
du

re
 b

ei
ng

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 a

ll 
le

as
ed

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 a

re
 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fi
na

nc
e.

 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 
(N

ov
em

be
r 

20
03

) 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

   L 
- D

LO
s 

 

Page 86



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
6 

Fi
na

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 is

su
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 to

 th
e 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

D
LO

 s
ta

ff 
fo

r t
he

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
‘s

un
dr

ie
s’

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
co

de
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 is
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

fo
r b

ud
ge

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pu
rp

os
es

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
is

 a
w

ai
te

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

D
LO

’s
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 

so
on

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. 

14
 

A
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

to
re

s 
sy

st
em

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
fo

r t
he

 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 D
LO

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
in

ef
fic

ie
nt

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
. 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
-H

ea
d 

of
 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d 
un

til
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

D
LO

 a
s 

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
fu

nc
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

so
lv

ed
. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

N
/A

 

15
 

Th
e 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 D

LO
 c

os
tin

g 
sy

st
em

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

co
nc

ile
d 

to
 th

e 
O

ra
cl

e 
le

dg
er

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
co

rre
ct

 
fig

ur
es

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
e 

fir
st

 re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ta
rte

d 
bu

t i
s 

in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 b
ei

ng
 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 fr

om
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fi
na

nc
e 

to
 

th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

st
af

f. 
  

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

17
 

Th
e 

R
oa

ds
 C

os
tin

g 
S

ys
te

m
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

ap
te

d 
fo

r u
se

 
by

 th
e 

D
LO

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

st
in

g 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
D

LO
 jo

bs
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d 
un

til
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
of

 th
e 

D
LO

 a
s 

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
fu

nc
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

so
lv

ed
. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3)
 

N
/A

 

    M
 - 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t V
FM

 
 

Page 87



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

Th
e 

E
st

at
es

 p
ro

pe
rty

 li
st

in
g 

w
ill 

be
 re

co
nc

ile
d 

to
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fi
na

nc
e 

A
ss

et
 

R
eg

is
te

r. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

Th
e 

re
co

nc
ilia

tio
n 

w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
A

ss
et

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rty

 
R

eg
is

te
r i

s 
al

m
os

t c
om

pl
et

e 
bu

t i
s 

al
m

os
t b

ut
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 p
oi

nt
s 

4 
an

d 
8 

be
lo

w
. 

 

 F
un

da
m

en
ta

l 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

4 

4 
74

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r b

ut
 n

o 
in

 
E

st
at

es
 re

co
rd

s 
w

ill 
be

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 a

nd
 v

al
id

at
ed

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ha
s 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 u

s 
th

at
 th

is
 

is
 a

lm
os

t c
om

pl
et

e.
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

aw
ai

te
d 

 F
un

da
m

en
ta

l 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

8 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fi
na

nc
e 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
11

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ss
et

 
R

eg
is

te
r t

ha
t E

st
at

es
 

re
co

rd
s 

sh
ow

ed
 a

s 
di

sp
os

al
s.

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ha
s 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 u

s 
th

at
 th

is
 

is
 a

lm
os

t c
om

pl
et

e.
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

aw
ai

te
d 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

A
pr

il 
20

04
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

 N
 - 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

an
d 

PM
P 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

ad
op

t a
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 s
tra

te
gy

 
an

d 
vi

si
on

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

m
in

is
te

ria
l B

es
t V

al
ue

 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
is

 o
ff 

on
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

an
d 

th
e 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

3 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 s

ui
te

 o
f 

lo
ca

l b
al

an
ce

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t i

n 
S

co
tla

nd
 

A
ct

 2
00

3.
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
an

d 
st

af
f s

ic
kn

es
s 

ha
ve

 d
el

ay
ed

 th
is

. 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

4 

10
 

R
ev

is
e 

an
d 

ex
pa

nd
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e’
s 

-
Th

e 
pe

rs
on

 w
ith

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

Page 88



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rti
ng

 
fra

m
ew

or
k.

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gy
 

M
an

ag
er

 
ac

tio
n 

is
 o

ff 
on

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
th

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
. 

12
 

Id
en

tif
y 

w
hi

ch
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 

re
m

ai
n 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ta
ke

 
re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t o

f t
he

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

&
 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 m

ea
ns

 th
at

 th
is

 w
ill 

be
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
4 

13
 

A
 B

es
t V

al
ue

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

ew
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
fo

r 2
00

4.
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
an

d 
st

af
f s

ic
kn

es
s 

ha
ve

 d
el

ay
ed

 th
is

. 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

14
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

or
 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
go

ne
 a

 P
M

P
 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

w
ill

 
be

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 

P
M

P
 s

el
f-a

ss
es

sm
en

t r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
to

 fo
rm

ul
at

e 
a 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
tim

es
ca

le
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
is

 o
ff 

on
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e 

an
d 

th
e 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ay

 2
00

4 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

4 

17
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 to

 p
la

n 
fo

r t
he

 
un

de
rta

ki
ng

 o
f a

 re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
 

of
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
P

ol
ic

y.
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

ff 
si

ck
. p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ac

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 
of

f s
ic

k.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
4 

19
 

E
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

to
 re

dr
es

s 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

ne
qu

al
ity

 
an

d 
is

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
es

e 
ra

ce
 

eq
ua

lit
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
qu

ar
te

rly
 re

po
rts

 to
 th

e 
S

M
T 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

pe
rs

on
 w

ith
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

ff 
si

ck
. p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ac

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 
of

f s
ic

k.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

24
 

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 is

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g 
pa

rtn
er

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 m

en
u 

of
 k

ey
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 s
u p

po
rt 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
di

sp
ut

es
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 k

ey
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 
an

d 
ar

e 
in

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

re
so

lu
tio

n.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
4 

Page 89



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 re
po

rti
ng

. 

25
 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
M

an
ag

er
 s

ho
ul

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 o
ut

lin
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 is
 

go
in

g 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 it
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 
th

e 
ac

t a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

st
at

ut
or

y 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 h

as
 ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 ta

ke
n 

is
 th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t (
S

co
tla

nd
) A

ct
 

20
03

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

N
/A

 

30
 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 o
n 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
w

ill 
be

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
S

M
T 

an
d 

th
e 

S
P

C
. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

In
 li

gh
t o

f t
he

 A
m

ey
 s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 th

e 
S

M
T 

fe
lt 

th
at

 th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t g

o 
ah

ea
d 

at
 p

re
se

nt
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 re

su
lts

 h
ad

 
be

en
 a

na
ly

se
d.

 

M
at

er
ia

l 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

4 

32
 

Th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

is
 to

 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 

th
e 

S
M

T 
th

e 
E

JC
C

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
th

e 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
M

at
er

ia
l 

Ju
ne

 2
00

4 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
4 

35
 

Th
e 

C
en

tra
l P

er
so

nn
el

 S
ec

tio
n 

ar
e 

to
 a

gr
ee

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f 
su

pe
rv

is
in

g/
au

di
tin

g 
de

pa
rtm

en
ta

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
- 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 b
ut

 d
is

ru
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
n 

P
er

so
nn

el
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

O
ng

oi
ng

 
N

o 
da

te
 g

iv
en

. 

41
 

Th
e 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

tra
te

gy
 

R
ev

ie
w

 te
am

 is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

al
l 

pl
an

ne
d 

ac
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
as

 s
oo

n 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e 
as

 it
 h

as
 

ta
ke

n 
2 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r t
he

 re
vi

ew
 to

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
 re

po
rt 

ha
s 

go
ne

 to
 th

e 
SM

T 
re

ce
nt

ly
 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 
th

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f L

eg
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 W
or

k 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 

to
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
op

tio
ns

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

Page 90



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
co

nc
lu

de
. 

on
 a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
lo

ca
l b

as
is

. 

42
 

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

ut
pu

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
co

nv
in

ce
 th

e 
E

xt
er

na
l A

ud
ito

r 
of

 th
ei

r s
uc

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y.

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

A
s 

ab
ov

e 
M

at
er

ia
l 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

 O
 - 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
VF

M
 –

 S
ch

oo
ls

 N
PD

O
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
6 

Th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f t

he
 

pr
ov

is
io

na
l p

re
fe

rr
ed

 b
id

de
r 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
lo

se
 is

 a
ro

un
d 

15
 w

ee
ks

 le
ss

 th
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 
fo

r s
im

ila
r p

ro
je

ct
s.

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 –
 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
 

In
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 re
 c

os
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

 s
co

pe
.  

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 

be
 a

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 o

f c
os

ts
 b

ey
on

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

lo
se

 b
y 

P
re

ce
pt

.  
Th

is
 

su
pe

rs
ed

es
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 a

ct
io

n 
po

in
t. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(M
ar

ch
 2

00
4)

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

8 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 p

la
nn

ed
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
P

M
B

 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
bi

dd
er

 is
 s

el
ec

te
d.

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 –
 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 b

id
de

r w
as

 o
nl

y 
se

le
ct

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
15

th
 J

ul
y 

20
04

. 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 
(M

ar
ch

 2
00

4)
 

N
o 

ac
tio

n 
as

 y
et

. 

   P 
- D

ev
el

op
m

en
t &

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
VF

M
 –

 C
am

pb
el

to
w

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
R

ev
is

ed
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 

Page 91



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

20
.d

oc
 

da
te

 
da

te
 

 8
 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

em
pl

oy
ed

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 c
op

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 C

on
tra

ct
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

O
rd

er
s.

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

It 
is

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

th
at

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 is

su
ed

 w
ith

 c
op

ie
s,

 h
ow

ev
er

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 w
as

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 

co
nf

irm
 th

is
. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

(M
ar

ch
 2

00
4)

 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

   

Page 92



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

A
u

d
it

A
c
ti

o
n

 p
o

in
ts

 

ra
is

e
d

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y
 

3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0

4

P
o

in
ts

 a
c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a
te

B
e
h

in
d

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

4

2
0
0
1
/0

2
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 -
 

R
e
g
u
la

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

2
0

0
0

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 A
rg

y
ll 

&
 B

u
te

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

2
0
0
1
/0

2
2

1
1

0

2
0
0
1
/0

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 -

 T
ra

d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
2

0
0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
 R

e
g
u
la

ri
ty

 &
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 (

2
)

7
2

2
0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 -

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A

d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n
s

1
9

6
3

3
A

6
,1

7
,1

9

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
2
/0

3
 A

u
d
it

5
3

3
0

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

a
re

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

4
1

1
0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
 E

-G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s

2
0

0
0

P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
C

o
d
e

7
2

0
2

B
2
,6

T
o
ta

l
5
0

1
5

1
0

5

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

1\
4\

2\
A

I0
00

18
24

1\
In

tE
xt

A
ud

20
04

5A
pp

40
.d

oc
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 - 

A
ud

it 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 R

ep
or

ts
 

 A
 - 

20
02

/0
3 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
ud

it 
– 

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 A
da

pt
at

io
ns

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
 6

 
E

xp
lo

re
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l c
ha

ng
es

 in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

 n
ee

ds
 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 

O
ffi

ce
r o

nl
y 

re
ce

nt
ly

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
. 

N
on

e 
A

ss
ig

ne
d.

 
N

on
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4 

17
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

pu
bl

ic
ly

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r P
P

R
g.

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 

O
ffi

ce
r o

nl
y 

re
ce

nt
ly

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
. 

N
on

e 
A

ss
ig

ne
d.

 
N

on
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4 

19
 

C
ou

nc
il 

bu
dg

et
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 fo
r m

aj
or

 
an

d 
m

in
or

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f u
nm

et
 n

ee
d 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

nd
 re

po
rte

d.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
up

po
rt 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

la
ye

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

si
ze

 
an

d 
ta

sk
 o

f r
es

tru
ct

ur
in

g.
 

N
on

e 
A

ss
ig

ne
d.

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
3 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

4 

 B
 - 

20
03

/0
4 

Pr
ud

en
tia

l C
od

e 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
w

ill
 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
th

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
In

cr
em

en
ta

l C
os

t o
f 

Bo
rr

ow
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
r a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

C
od

e.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

IP
FA

 h
av

e 
ye

t t
o 

cl
ar

ify
 h

ow
 th

is
 

in
di

ca
to

r s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
so

 it
 is

 
st

ill 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g.
 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

4 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

6 
Th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 S

ec
ur

ity
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l C

od
e.

 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 S

ec
ur

ity
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 b

y 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

Pr
io

rit
y:

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

4 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
4 

 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5 

  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
ADAPTATIONS REPORT - 2002/2003  
  
  
1. INTRODUCTION 
  This report provides an update on the management of Community Equipment and 

Adaptations in terms of audited systems that relate to service delivery, finance, 
planning, statistical systems and joint working with NHS Argyll & Clyde within the 
Joint Partnership / Joint Future arrangements. 

   
    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 That a full integrated review of all Council and NHS Argyll & Clyde 

operational, service delivery and staffing issues will progress with the 
development of a 3-5 year business case being presented for 31st March 
2005.This will cover the variety of issues being audited within a single 
business plan with specific timescales identified within an agreed financial 
framework. 
 
This recommendation is in line with the recommendation presented to the 
Scottish Executive as part of the updated Joint Partnership agreement dated 
30th May 2004. 

   
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Information Systems:  

 
The OLM system used within Social Work is presently significantly under 
utilised by operational, planning and finance staff. Consequently the council 
continues to have difficulty in maintaining an integrated statistical and 
financial system that allows for straightforward audit of equipment and 
adaptations.  
The OLM system is presently subject to a departmental review of all the 
component parts, operational, statistical and financial that will allow for an 
integrated audit trail.  

    
  3.2 Joint future Agenda: 

 
The Joint Future “Partnership Agreement” between the Council and NHS 
Argyll & Clyde was updated for 30th May 2004 and submitted to the Scottish 
Executive. An explicit recommendation within the paper was that a 3-5 year 
integrated business plan would be provided for all client groups for 31st 
March 2005. Within the plans for Older People’s Services and Physical 
Disability will be specific reference to the development and financing of 
equipment and adaptations. 
 
The content of the plan will include recommendations relating to service 
delivery models, storage, cleaning and transport issues, delivery and 
installation processes, monitoring levels of unmet need, information on 

Page 97



APPENDIX 5 

recycling, integrated management systems all of which will be within an 
identified joint financial framework. 
 

    
  3.3 Training: 

 
The Joint Future “Partnership Agreement” noted above included a specific 
training plan to enhance the development of the integrated agenda between 
the Council and NHS Argyll & Clyde. The training plan is a piece of work 
that is subject to ongoing change and will be formally reviewed annually in 
preparation for the new financial year. 
 

    
  3.4 Implementation Dates: 

 
Previous report indicated a variety of implementation dates for the August 
and December of 2004. Having given a commitment to the Scottish 
Executive to prepare an integrated business from the Council and NHS 
Argyll & Clyde plan for 31st march 2005. Consequently, it is recommended 
that the same implementation date is agreed in order that the different 
recommendations made relating to equipment and adaptations are built into 
the same integrated process and timescale rather than being dealt with 
separately. 
 
 

    
4.  CONCLUSIONS  
     
  4.1 Full review of the Department’s OLM information system is being 

progressed. This will allow for an audit system that serves operational, 
financial, statistical and planning issues. 
 

 

  4.2 A full review of all operational, service delivery and integration matter 
between the Council and NHS Argyll and Clyde will progress with the 
development of a 3-5 year business case being the outcome for 31st March 
2005.This will cover the variety of issues being audited within a single 
business plan with specific timescales identified within an agreed financial 
framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 98



APPENDIX 5 

5.  IMPLICATIONS  
    
  Policy:      This meets the Council’s policy to deliver quality services to people with  

                  disabilities. 
                
                     This meets the Council’s policy of joint working with the NHS within        
                  the Joint Future agenda. 
 
Financial:  None at this time. 
 
Legal:        Meets statutory requirements to assess and provide services to people   
                  affected by a disability. 
 
Personnel: None 
 
Equal Opportunities: None 

 

 
 
For further information please contact 
 
James Robb,  
Head of Integrated Care 
Dalriada House 
Lochgilphead 
Tel: 01546-604827 / 01436-658751          
 
 
12th August 2004  

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 1
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7 

  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004 
    
  
ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REPORT - 2004 
  
 1. INTRODUCTION 
  The appointment of a Chief Asset Manager on 21st June and the Asset Managers ’s 

official transfer at end of July have been allocated the task of developing an agreed 
Council wide Asset Management Strategy.     

   
    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The Audit Committee notes the content of this report.  
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 The Chief Asset Managers preliminary investigation was to establish size and 

scale of the current asset base, values, quantities, and asset category types 
presently held by the Council. In addition there was a phase of process 
mapping for the various stages of Asset Management and control.  

    
  3.2 The investigation and development of a draft Asset Management Strategy is 

currently in progress; it is linked to council goals and objectives, corporate 
and service plans.  

  
  

 
 

3.3 
 
 

A number of background investigations were made into the approach of 
Asset Management within other council’s, such as Glasgow City, North and 
South Lanarkshire, and Renfrew shire. This was in order to obtain a current 
view of Asset Management development.    
Other sources of reference information have been professional institutions 
with expertise in Asset Management, and also government sources such as 
Audit- Scotland & Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM).   

4.   CONCLUSIONS  
    As of now Asset Management is in an early development form, but this will 

change from a development to an implementation phase of ‘ on-line’ 
computer systems and databases. 
The general trend is to support the introduction of ‘Balanced Scorecards’ as 
being the approach and method to be used for appraisal and ranking of capital 
items within Asset Management Strategy.  

 

  4.1  The proposed programme for asset management is in draft form and is  
subject to ongoing review and internal scrutiny, and should be available to 
SMT for review in September. 

 

     
5.  IMPLICATIONS  
    
  None  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103



APPENDIX 7 

For further information please contact John Macnicol, Chief Asset Manager  (01436 65 8964) 
 
J Macnicol 
Chief Asset Manager    
05 August 2004  

Page 104



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
KPMG work plan for Internal Audit partnering contract 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  1.1 This report proposes a schedule of work to be undertaken by KPMG as internal 

audit partners with the in house internal audit team and requests that the 
Committee approve it.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 That this committee approves the proposed work plan for the current year. 

    
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 Following a review of the internal audit function at all Scottish Local Authorities 

performed by Audit Scotland and a consequent review of the internal audit 
provision at Argyll and Bute Council by Professor Arthur Midwinter of the 
University of Strathclyde, the Council entered into a partnership agreement with 
the accounting and advisory firm KPMG. 

    
  3.2  The objective of the partnering arrangement is to develop the internal audit 

function at the Council to a position where: 

• It services the Council’s internal audit requirements in accordance with good 
practice; and 

• In any follow-up review of internal audit functions at Scottish Local 
Authorities by Audit Scotland, that of Argyll and Bute will be classed as 
amongst the best. 

    
  3.3 It is reported elsewhere about the results of Audit Scotland’s follow-up review. 

The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee about how KPMG and 
Argyll and Bute’s internal audit team intend to build on the work already 
undertaken and specifically the input provided by KPMG. 

    
  3.4 The Appendix details a work plan for 2004-2005 agreed with Internal Audit. The 

main points of this plan are:- 
• Continuing to support the development of the internal audit team in terms 

of compliance with the CIPFA code of practice for internal audit and in 
particular at ways in which to embed continuous improvement (by use of 
the EFQM framework); 

• Assistance with the Council’s risk management process and its use as a 
basis for the development of a new strategic plan for internal audit; 

• Production of an Audit Committee handbook to assist members in 
discharging their responsibilities; 

• Provide training for the Audit Committee and members of the internal 
audit team. Training will address areas raised in Argyll and Bute Council’s 

Agenda Item 10Page 105



local follow-up report by Audit Scotland. For example, the selection of a 
testing methodology in the course of audits and issues surrounding sample 
sizes, materiality and interpretation. It is also proposed to undertake 
training on general IT controls which are common in undertaking system 
reviews. 

• KPMG propose to conduct two audits. Firstly a review of IT Disaster 
Recovery arrangements and secondly to look at the implementation of e-
planning. These two audits will use resources from KPMG’s specialist 
Information Risk Management (IRM) team.  

    
    
4.  IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager  (01546 604216) 
  
Steve Keightley 
Manager 
29 July 2004 
KPMGworkplan2004 
 

Page 106



 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

D
ay

s 
D

et
ai

l 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l 

Ti
m

es
ca

le
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t /
 

A
ud

it 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
20

05
 o

nw
ar

ds
 

25
 

A
ss

is
t w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 b

as
is

 fo
r t

he
 3

/5
 y

ea
r s

tra
te

gi
c 

au
di

t p
la

n.
 S

co
pe

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 c

ov
er

in
g 

re
po

rt.
 

St
ev

e 
K

ei
gh

tle
y 

25
 d

ay
s f

ro
m

 e
nd

 o
f J

ul
y 

to
 

N
ov

em
be

r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 su
pp

or
t 

15
 

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

ud
it 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 
Su

pp
or

t w
ith

 L
oc

al
 R

ep
or

t r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 S

co
pe

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 c

ov
er

in
g 

re
po

rt.
 

St
ev

e 
K

ei
gh

tle
y 

m
ai

n 
co

nt
ac

t 
Th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 - 
fo

rm
al

 
15

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 / 

in
du

ct
io

n 
fo

r n
ew

 st
ar

t /
 IT

 
in

 sy
st

em
s a

ud
its

 / 
di

re
ct

 a
ud

it 
te

st
in

g.
 S

co
pe

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 

co
ve

rin
g 

re
po

rt.
 

St
ev

e 
K

ei
gh

tle
y 

w
ith

 
as

si
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t (

IR
M

) a
nd

 
pu

bl
ic

 se
ct

or
 te

am
s 

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
H

an
db

oo
k 

10
 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 h
an

db
oo

k 
to

 a
ss

is
t m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
ei

r r
ol

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s. 
Fu

rth
er

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
co

ve
rin

g 
re

po
rt.

 
St

ev
e 

K
ei

gh
tle

y 
D

ra
ft 

fo
r d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
by

 e
nd

 o
f 

A
ug

us
t 

IT
 a

ud
it 

20
 

1/
  D

is
as

te
r R

ec
ov

er
y 

2/
 e

-p
la

nn
in

g.
 S

co
pe

 o
f e

ac
h 

au
di

t 
in

 c
ov

er
in

g 
re

po
rt.

 
IR

M
 T

ea
m

 
1/

 D
el

ay
ed

 to
 O

ct
ob

er
 a

t t
he

 
re

qu
es

t o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t  
2/

  
A

ug
us

t /
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 

O
th

er
 d

ire
ct

 a
ud

it 
tim

e 
20

 
EF

Q
M

. S
co

pe
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 c
ov

er
in

g 
re

po
rt.

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
N

ov
em

be
r /

 D
ec

em
be

r 

A
ud

it 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 
8 

  
St

ev
e 

K
ei

gh
tle

y 
/ G

ra
nt

 
M

ac
ra

e 
Th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 

M
ee

tin
gs

/re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/a

ud
it 

fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 

12
 

  
V

ar
io

us
 

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

  
  

  
  

  
T

ot
al

 
12

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

27 AUGUST 2004
    
  
PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2004 - 2005 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by 

Internal Audit up to 30 July 2004. The objective of the report is to advise members of 
the progress of the annual audit plan. (See Appendix 1).  

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the annual 
audit plan for 2004 - 05. 

    

    
3. BACKGROUND 
    
    3.1 The progress report contained in Appendix 1, lists the audits scheduled for the 

financial year 2004 –2005 and ordered by section and level of completion.  
    
  3.2  As at 30 July 2004 out of 20 core financial systems audits, 3 have been 

completed with final reports issued. Of the remaining 17 audits, 5 have been 
started this leaves 12 audits to be progressed throughout the remainder of the 
financial year.  

    
  3.3  A total of 11 non-financial audit areas have been planned for this financial year. 

As at 30 July 2004 a total of 3 audits have been completed. This leaves 8 audits 
of which 2 audits have been started leaving 6 audits to be progressed throughout 
the remainder of this financial year. Of the remaining 6 audits KPMG has been 
assigned 2.  

    
  3.4 A total of 160 days have been set aside within the Annual Audit Plan for Special 

Investigations. As at 30 July 2004 a total of 23 days have been expended on one 
investigation.  

    
  3.5  Follow-up work has been covered for both internal and external audit reports. 

The reviews carried out for the external audit reports are the subject of separate 
reports to the Audit Committee.  

    
  4.   

  
SUMMARY OF 1st QUARTER AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2004 - 2005 

  4.1 In the 1st quarter good progress was made with all audits and this puts the 
section in a reasonable position to progress the rest of the annual audit plan. 

    
5.   
  

 CONCLUSION 

 Progress is being made on audits planned for 2004 – 05. 
  

 

Agenda Item 11Page 109



6. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: Update on audit plan for 2004 – 05. 
        
  5.2 Financial: The audit plan is based on existing budgeted 

provision. 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   30 July 2004.  
30julyprogreport30July 

Page 110



APPENDIX 1

Assessment of audit days: 2004-2005 strategic plan

AUDIT WORK SCHEDULE Last audited Risk ranking Original 

Estimated Audit 

Days 2004-05 

Revised Estimated 

Audit Days 2004-05 

Actual Audit Days 

2004-05

Balance

Core financial systems

COMPLETE

Government Grants - Education 2003-04 1 21 21 28 -7

Stock taking 2003-04 1 16 16 19 -3

Cash & Income Banking - Oban 2003-04 1 21 21 23 -2

STARTED

Car Allowances 2003-04 3 21 21 6 15

HR Payroll 2003-04 3 43 43 8 35

E-Procurement Creditors 2003-04 2 31 31 1 30

Unified Benefits System 2003-04 2 51 51 2 49

Budgetary preparation & control - Education 2003-04 1 16 16 1 15

NOT STARTED

Capital Accounting 2003-04 1 21 21 0 21

Purchases of equipment and Materials 2003-04 2 21 21 0 21

Purchase Ordering and Certification 2003-04 3 31 31 0 31

Debtor Accounts 2003-04 1 21 21 0 21

Housing Rents 2003-04 1 21 21 0 21

Council Tax & NDR 2003-04 2 31 31 0 31

General Ledger Operations 2003-04 2 21 21 0 21

Treasury management 2003-04 2 21 21 0 21

Tendering Procedures 2003-04 3 21 21 0 21

Capital Contracts 2003-04 3 21 21 0 21

Direct Transport Costs 2003-04 4 21 21 0 21

Following Public Pound Voluntary Organisations 2003-04 4 21 21 0 21

Section Total 492 492 88 404

Non-financial systems / Best Value / VFM

COMPLETE

Chief Exec PIs 2003-04 1 43 43 35 8

Chief Exec Corporate Gov. 2003-04 1 32 32 6 26

Operational Services Ferry Review 2003-04 2, 8 21 21 25 -4

STARTED

Chief Exec Best Value Interim 2003-04 3 32 32 4 28

Chief Exec Performance Management Planning (PMP) 2003-04 3 35 35 3 32

NOT STARTED

DLO 2003-04 1 21 21 0 21

DSO 2003-04 4, 7, 9 48 48 0 48

Community Services - Transport 2003-04 3, 4, 11 21 21 0 21

Community Services - Education 2003-04 9, 10 21 21 0 21

Development Services - e-Planning KPMG 2003-04 3, 6 21 21 0 21

Corporate Services IT KPMG 2003-04 1 32 32 0 32

Section Total 327 327 73 254

Actual Direct Audit Time 819 819 161 658

Special investigations contingency - - 160 160 137

Dangerous Buildings 23

Section Total 160 160 23 137

Other Areas

Risk assessment, strategic plan, annual plans 30 30 3 27

Follow-up external audit management letter 21 21 16 5

Internal audit follow up 50 50 26 24

Section Total 101 101 45 56

TOTAL 1080 1080 229 851

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

  
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL COUNCIL
STRATEGIC FINANCE 23 JUNE 2004
  
 
2003/04 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS (UNAUDITED) 
 
1. SUMMARY 

 
 Departments have adhered to approved budgets and savings have been generated in 

loan charges and local tax income.  The “free” General Fund Reserve has increased to 
£6.023m. This includes the transfer of £0.208m on the closure of Direct Labour 
Organisation and Direct Service Organisation Reserves.  In addition the sum of 
£5.758m requires to be carried forward and earmarked within the General Fund 
Reserve. The total of the General Fund Reserve stands at £11.781m on the face of the 
Council’s Accounts. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account Reserve now stands at £0.474m, an increase of 
£0.051m.  
 
The Council is no longer required to maintain separate accounts for Direct Labour 
Organisations and Direct Service Organisations. However the financial performance of 
Significant Trading Organisations requires to be disclosed separately in the Accounts. 
Significant Trading Organisations achieved a net surplus overall of £0.115m. None 
returned a deficit. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 2.1 Members note the unaudited accounts. 
 

   
3. DETAIL 

 
 3.1 Introduction 

 
  There is a statutory requirement to prepare a set of Accounts and submit the 

Accounts to the Controller of Audit and the Council. 
 

  The date set by the Scottish Executive for submission of the Accounts is 30 June 
of each year. 
 

  It should be noted that the Accounts have still to be audited.   The Auditors 
certificate and letter to Members will be submitted to Members immediately after 
the completion of the audit anticipated for 30 September 2004.   Figures are 
therefore subject to change. 
 

 
 3.2 Outturn for the Year on the General Fund 

 
  3.2.1 A surplus of £1.779m was achieved in the General Fund. In addition 

funding of £5.758m requires to be carried forward and earmarked 
within the General Fund Reserve in order to meet future expenditure.  
 

Agenda Item 12Page 113



  3.2.2 The following table summarises how the surplus for the year has 
arisen. For the purpose of comparison, the budget for 2003/04 has been 
taken as the original approved budget plus any supplementary 
estimates agreed to by Committee.    Adjustments to budget have also 
been made in respect of additional revenue support grant and items 
transferred from revenue to capital.     
 
 £m
Savings in loan charges 0.385
Increased collections on local taxes 0.975
Overall savings by departments against budget 0.419
Sub total 1.779
Funding to be carried forward and earmarked in Reserve 5.758
Earmarked funding at start of financial year (1.671)
Transfer from DLO/DSO Reserves 0.208
Surplus for year per Accounts 6.074

 
 

 3.3 General Fund Reserve  
 

  3.3.1 The General Fund Reserve at 31 March 2003 amounted to £5.707m of 
which £1.671m was earmarked. This left a “free” balance of £4.036m.  
The “free” Reserve now stands at £6.023m and the overall Reserve 
stands at £11.781m when earmarked funds are included. 
 
 £m
“Free” Reserve at 31 March 2003 4.036
Surplus from loan charges, local tax income and 
departmental savings 

1.779

Transfer from DLO/DSO Reserves 0.208
“Free” Reserve at 31 March 2004 6.023
Funding to be carried forward and earmarked in Reserve 5.758
Total Reserve per Accounts 11.781
   

    
 3.4 Earmarked Funds 

 
  3.4.1 Funding to be carried forward for specific purposes and earmarked 

within the Reserve stood at £1.671m at 31 March 2003. It now stands 
at £5.758m. The table below gives details of these funds. 

Page 114



    
 £m
Waste Management PPP Smoothing Fund 1.086
Corporate Property Strategy 0.030
Change Management Funding 0.030
Area Budgets 0.015
Risk Management Fund 0.041
Community Safety 0.086
Revenue Funding For IT From “top slice”  0.092
Digital Communities 0.245
Modernising Government Fund 0.043
Works Committed Or Commenced By Roads But Not 
Completed Or Paid For 

0.386

Social Work Funding 
Preserved Rights & Free Care           
Residential Care                                
Home Care                                        
Learning Disability Services             
Supporting People                             
Direct Payout                                     
Other Social Work Funding              
 

£m 
0.841 
0.662 
0.232 
0.374 
0.282 
0.107 
0.212 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.710
Underspends in 2003/04 used to fund savings in 2004/05 
budget  

0.994

Total Earmarked Funds 5.758 
    

 
 3.5 Housing Revenue Account 

 
  3.5.1 The Housing Revenue Account Reserve at 31 March 2003 amounted to 

£0.423m.   A surplus of £0.184m  has arisen for the year to 31 March 
2004.  A transfer to the General Fund of £0.143m was made to offset 
the reduction in central support allocations as agreed by the Council in 
February 2003.   Interest of £0.010m on the Reserve has been added.  
The total sum carried forward at 31 March 2004 therefore amounts to 
£0.474. 
 

 3.6 Significant Trading Organisations 
 

  3.6.1 The requirement to maintain separate accounts for Direct Labour 
Organisations and Direct Service Organisations under the Compulsory 
Competitive Tendering legislation ended on 31 March 2003.  Councils 
are now required to identify their Significant Trading Organisations. 
Significant Trading Organisations must achieve a breakeven financial 
position over a rolling 3 year period. This rolling 3 year period will not 
commence until 2005/06 (ie the first full 3 financial year following 31 
March 2003).  Supplementary information on the financial performance 
of Significant Trading Organisations must be given in the Accounts and 
this is laid out in note 6 of the Consolidated Revenue Account. All of 
the Significant Trading Organisations achieved a breakeven during 
2003/04 and an overall surplus of £0.115m. Details of the services 
classified as Significant Trading Organisations was reported to the 
Strategic Policy Committee of 18 December 2003. The only variance 
from this has been the reclassification of Building Maintenance as a 
Significant Trading Organisation. 

Page 115



    
 3.7 Reserves and Balances 

 
  3.7.1 The Council accepted in principle as part of the budget proposals to  

¾ provide for a 2% general contingency 
¾ to establish within the General Fund Reserve a departmental 

contingency of 0.5% to allow departments to manage their 
financial position across  more than one financial year 

¾ to establish a development fund of 0.5% to finance initial costs 
on a pay back basis for spend to save projects.  

These proposal were dependent upon the General Fund Exceeding a 
given level and it was remitted to me to bring forward in due course 
more detailed proposals on how these arrangements would operate. I 
will bring forward a report on the position with regard to Reserves and 
Balances to an early meeting of the Strategic Policy Committee. This 
will not be delayed pending completion of the audit of the accounts. 

    
 3.8 Prudential Code 

 
  3.8.1 Under the Prudential Code a range of indicators were established as 

part of the budget process. These should be reviewed at least as part of 
each budget cycle and upon completion of the annual accounts. In 
respect of this latter requirement I will bring forward a report to an 
early Strategic Policy Committee reviewing our prudential indicators in 
the light of the unaudited Accounts. 

    
 3.9 Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control 2002/03 

 
  The Code of Practice on the Annual Accounts includes a requirement to prepare a 

statement on the system of internal financial control.   My statement appears on 
the final page of the Accounts and is drawn from the Internal Audit Manager’s 
statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial control 
system of the Council. The Internal Audit Manager presented his statement to the 
Audit Committee on 14 June 2004. 
 

  My statement sets out the framework within which financial control is managed 
and reviewed and the main components of the system, including the arrangements 
for Internal Audit. 
 

  Although some weaknesses in the system of financial control have been 
identified, most of these have been rectified between the time of Internal Audit 
identifying the weakness and the time of preparation of this report.   The key 
remaining areas for the Council to address are the development of a risk 
management strategy and the development of asset management planning. With 
the recent appointments to the posts of Risk and Governance Manager and Chief 
Asset Manager work on these two areas will commence when the appointees take 
up their posts. 
 

 
 
Bruce West 
Head Of Strategic Finance 
15 June 2004 
 

Page 116



UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD 
1 APRIL 2003 TO 31 MARCH 2004

Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghàidheal agus Bhòid

Page 117



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

CONTENTS

Page 2 

            Page
        
FOREWORD BY THE HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE 3 – 6 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 7 – 9 

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT 10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT 11 – 17 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 18

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT 19 – 20 

NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT 21

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 22

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 23 – 30 

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES 31 – 33 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 34

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 35 – 36 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 37

STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 38

   

Page 118



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 3 

Introduction 
This foreword is intended as a comment on Argyll and Bute Council's financial position as presented within the Statement of Accounts for the financial 
year 2003/2004. 

Accounting Policies 
The Statement of Accounting Policies sets out the basis upon which the Financial Statements have been prepared, and explains the accounting 
treatment of both general and specific items. 

The Financial Statements 

Consolidated Revenue Account 
shows the income raised by the Council during the year and how it was spent on services, financing costs and contributions to/from reserves.  The 
surplus or deficit is carried to the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves.  The notes to the Consolidated Revenue Account provide additional 
information on some costs and income included within the Consolidated Revenue Account. 

Housing Revenue Account 
reflects the statutory requirement to separately account for local authority housing provision, as defined in the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987.  It shows the 
major elements of housing revenue expenditure and capital financing costs, and how these are met by rents, housing support grant and other income.  
The surplus or deficit is carried to the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves.

Council Tax Income Account 
explains how the council tax income shown for the financial year in the Consolidated Revenue Account is made up. 

Non-domestic Rate Income Account 
shows the build up of non-domestic rate income, the contribution to or from the national pool and the resulting net income for the financial year to the 
Council that is shown in the Consolidated Revenue Account. 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
brings together all the assets and liabilities of the Council's General Fund and Loans Fund.  It is the statement of the resources of the Council and the 
means by which they have been financed.  It is also a report on the Council's financial position at one particular point in time, a snapshot of its financial 
affairs at the close of the year expressed in accounting terms.  The notes to the Balance Sheet give further information on the make up of certain assets 
and liabilities. 

Statement of Total Movement in Reserves 
gives details of the balances on each reserve at the start of the financial year, movements during the financial year by source and the balance at the end 
of the financial year as shown in the Balance Sheet. 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third parties on both day to day revenue transactions and  on capital 
activities.

Statement of Responsibilities 
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Council and the Head of Strategic Finance. 

Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control 
This statement sets out the framework within which financial control is managed and reviewed over the main components of the system, including the 
Internal Audit arrangements. 

Major Changes in Accounting Practice 
The Council continues to adopt the accounting practices recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the 
Local Authorities (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LA(S)AAC).  The annual accounts for 2003/2004 have been prepared in compliance with the 
2003 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). The format of the Consolidated Revenue Account reflects the requirements of the Best Value 
Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP). 

Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS17) - "Retirement Benefits" is to be implemented over a three year period into Public Sector Accounts, with 
2003/04 being the third year.  For the financial year ended 31 March 2004 the full impact of FRS17 is shown through the Consolidated Revenue Account 
and the Balance Sheet. This impact has been reversed out of the Consolidated Revenue Account as a Contribution to/(from) Pensions Reserve to reflect 
that there should be no impact on the “Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxation. A note to the Balance Sheet is required of the 
balance sheet asset or liability of retirement benefits as calculated in accordance with FRS17 and an analysis of the movement of the surplus / deficit 
over the financial year.  Also shown within the Consolidated Revenue Account is the history of gains and losses expressed as a percentage of assets 
and / or liabilities.  These disclosures comply with the SORP. 

Hymans Robertson (Independent Actuaries) were instructed by Glasgow City Council, the administering authority to the Strathclyde Pension Fund, to 
undertake calculations in respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme on behalf of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31 March 2004.  Their 
calculations have been carried out in accordance with Guidance Note 36: Accounting for Retirement Benefits under FRS17 issued by the Institute and 
the Faculty of Actuaries. 

Page 119



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 4 

Property Valuations
In accordance with the 2003 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) all properties are required to be formally revalued at intervals of not more
than five years.  The five year rolling programme of revaluation of all land and buildings started in 1999/2000 was completed during 2003/2004.

General Fund
The following table summarises how the surplus for the year has arisen. For the purpose of comparison, the budget for 2003/2004 has been taken as the
original approved budget plus any supplementary estimates agreed by Committee. Adjustments to budget have also been made in respect of additional
revenue support grant and items transferred from revenue to capital.

he General Fund Reserve at 31 March 2003 amounted to £5.707m of which £1.671m was earmarked. This left a “free” balance of £4.036m. The “free”

ignificant Trading Organisations
ounts for Direct Labour Organisations and Direct Service Organisations under the Compulsory Competitive

sations

e surplus is part of the General Fund. All the

ousing Revenue Account
74m at 31 March 2004 and is an increase of £0.051m from the 31 March 2003 balance of £0.423m. The main factors

contribution of £0.327m to supplement the capital expenditure programme took place during the year in line with the approved budget.

£'m

0.385

0.975

0.419

1.779

5.758

(1.671)

0.208

6.074

Overall Savings by Departments Against Budget

Sub-Total

Savings in Loan Charges

Savings on Budget:

Increased Collections on Local Taxes

Funding to be Carried Forward and Earmarked in Reserve

Transfer From DLO/DSO Reserves

Surplus for Year Per Accounts

Earmarked Funding at Start of Year

T
Reserve now stands at £6.023m and the overall Reserve stands at £11.781m when earmarked funds are included.

S
The requirement to maintain separate acc
Tendering legislation ended on 31 March 2003.  Councils are now required to identify their Significant Trading Organisations. Significant Trading
Organisations must achieve a breakeven financial position over a rolling three year period. This rolling three year period will not commence until
2005/2006 (i.e. the first full three financial years following 31 March 2003).  Information on the financial performance of Significant Trading Organi
must be given in the Accounts and this is laid out in note 6 of the Consolidated Revenue Account.

uring 2003/2004 the Council’s Significant Trading Organisations achieved a surplus of £0.115m. ThD
Significant Trading Organisations met their financial objective. In a period of financial constraints the overall contribution is a welcome outcome and
reflects positively upon the Council’s management of trading activities.

H
The HRA balance stands at £0.4
giving rise to the reduction in the balance are as follows:

£'m

4.036

1.779

0.208

6.023

5.758

11.781

"Free" Reserve at 31 March 2004

Total Reserve Per Accounts

Funding to be Carried Forward and Earmarked in Reserve

Surplus From Loan Charges, Local Tax Income and Departmental Savings

"Free" Reserve at 31 March 2003

Transfer From DLO/DSO Reserves

£'m

0.045

0.188

0.178

0.175

0.586

(0.103)

(0.299)

(0.133)

(0.535)

0.051

Increased Expenditure

Void House Rents and Provision for Bad Debts

Reduction in Supervision and Management

Reduction in Capital Financing

Net Increase in Other Income Less Other Expenditure

Other Movements

Reduction in Rental Income

Reduction in Repairs and Maintenance

Increased Income

Surplus for Year

A

Page 120



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 5 

Capital Expenditure and Borrowing
The Council incurs capital expenditure within limits laid down by the Scottish Executive, who issue consents under Section 94 of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973.  Capital receipts (from the sale of buildings, land, etc.) and private sector contributions are used to enhance these consents, subject
to certain Scottish Executive restrictions placed on the use of receipts.  Details of capital expenditure are as follows:

Composite Programme Housing Revenue Account

 £'m £'m

Net Allocation 19.131 2.007

2.162 1.673

0.016 0.327

Gross Consent 21.309 4.007

20.274 3.648

                                                                    (1.035)                           (0.359)Excess Expenditure (Receipts)

Usable Capital Receipts

Capital Expenditure

Capital Financed from Current Revenue

This includes Public Transport Fund projects where the underspend was £1.826m. After adjusting for this, the position on the main capital programme
expenditure exceeded consent and receipts by £0.791m. Full use of the tolerance limits on capital expenditure was planned.

The composite programme includes all services other than Police, Fire and the Housing Revenue Account.  Joint Boards control capital expenditure on
Police and Fire and are reported separately thereon.  The Housing Revenue Account covers capital expenditure on the Council's stock of houses.

Capital expenditure was incurred across a range of services enhancing the value, useful life or working capacity of the Council's assets.  This included
investments in schools, offices, other premises and facilities, information technology and roads. The composite programme includes additional consent
in relation to Public Transport Funded projects that the Council secured in competition, securing much needed additional investment in the Council area.

The external borrowing of the Council at 31 March 2004 amounted to £196.28m.  The majority of this was financed by the Public Works Loan Board
(£169.18m), with the remainder coming mainly from the money market. During the year the Council completed £1.25m of new external borrowing.  This
was used to finance capital expenditure incurred during the year.  The Council carried out several debt rescheduling exercises totalling £39m during the
year, resulting in a change in the repayment profile of the loans outstanding and a reduction in interest rates payable and also repaid prematurely debt of
£21.22m.

Statement on the System of Internal Financial Control 
Some weaknesses in the system of financial control were identified during the year. Most of these were rectified between the time of Internal Audit
identifying the weakness and preparation of this report.

Other Significant Matters

The Council has secured funding under the new housing partnership programme.  This funding has been utilised to carry out an option appraisal and
feasibility study for a large scale voluntary transfer of the housing stock.  The Council is now in the implementation phase in the lead up to full stock 
transfer. Preparation of the business plan will take place over the next six months with approval “in principle” to proceed being sought by the end of
2004. A ballot of tenants is planned for early 2005.

In common with other Councils a significant investment in school building is required. The Council has been successful in securing revenue support
towards a Public Private Partnership for school buildings.  The Council is developing a Pathfinder Non-Profit Distributing Organisation (NPDO) approach
for the PPP.  The project is currently in the procurement phase.  During 2003/2004 an invitation to negotiate was issued and bids received were 
evaluated, leading to the appointment of a provisional preferred bidder. The Council is working with the provisional preferred bidder to finalise their
selection as preferred bidder. Financial close is planned during 2004/2005.

Restructuring
During 2003/2004 the Council carried out an internal restructuring. Major business and organisation change of this nature always represents a potential
risk to the control environment. However the year end outturn has resulted in a generally satisfactory position and Internal Audit’s annual report allows
me to take comfort that, other than as outlined above, reasonable assurance can be placed on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s Internal
Financial Control System.

Prudential Code 
Until 31 March 2004 local authority capital expenditure was controlled by capital spending consent issued under Section 94 of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973. This limited the amount of capital expenditure a council can incur. From 1 April 2004 these consents were abolished and local
authority capital expenditure and borrowing are now regulated by the Prudential Code, a regime of self regulation.

Under the Prudential Code the Council must ensure that

Capital expenditure plans are affordable;

Borrowing is sustainable and prudent;

Treasury management reflects good professional practice.

Page 121



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

FOREWORD BY HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 6 

Conclusion
The Council ends the year with an improved general fund balance.  Improvements in council tax collection, savings in loan charges and containment of
expenditure in departments have contributed to this position.

The Council will continue to pursue initiatives to secure additional funding.  Budgetary control will continue to have a high profile to ensure effective
financial control within services.

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance

June 15, 2004

Page 122



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 7 

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice (the SORP) issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

1. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Revenue transactions have been recorded on an income and expenditure basis, actual or estimated sums having been included in respect of 
known debtors and creditors at the year-end. 

Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fees, charges and rents have been accrued in the period to which they relate.

Employee costs have been charged to the period within which the employees worked. 

Interest payable on external borrowing and internal interest have been accrued in the period to which they relate on the basis of the overall 
economic effect of the borrowing.  

The cost of supplies and services has been accounted for in the period during which they were received or consumed. 

All revenue grants are matched with the expenditure to which they relate.  Grants made to finance the general activities of a local authority or 
to compensate for loss of income are credited to the revenue account of the financial year to which they relate.  Specific government grants 
are accounted for on an accruals basis when the conditions for receipt have been complied with. 

2. OVERHEADS 
The cost of all Central Support Departments is fully allocated over user departments.  Allocations have been based on actual or estimated 
activity levels, time or floor areas.

3. PENSIONS 
The Council participates in two different pension schemes which meet the needs of employees in particular services.  Both schemes provide 
members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  The schemes are as follows: 

3.1 Teachers 

This is an unfunded scheme administered by the Scottish Executive.  The pension cost charged in the accounts is the contribution rate set by 
the Scottish Executive on the basis of a notional fund. 

3.2 Other Employees 

Other employees, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.   

Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS17) - "Retirement Benefits" is to be implemented over a three year period into Public Sector Accounts 
with 2003/2004 being the third year.  For the financial year ended 31 March 2004 the full impact of FRS17 is reflected within the accounts. 

The employer's contributions to the scheme are assessed every three years by a consulting actuary and are calculated to ensure the actuarial 
solvency of the fund.  The cost of pensions to the Council is the actual contribution paid in the year as determined by the actuary. 

4. CAPITAL ACCOUNTING 

4.1 Accounting Policy Statement 

Under statute councils are required to adopt proper accounting practices. The accounts have been drawn up in accordance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain, which is recognised as representing proper accounting practices. Services have been 
charged for the assets based on their value rather than on the financing costs of debt outstanding on the asset. 

4.2 Fixed Assets 

a) Categories of assets 
Fixed assets are categorised into classes as follows: 

Operational assets: 
- Council Dwellings; 
- Other Land and Buildings; 
- Vehicles, Plant and Equipment; 
- Infrastructure Assets, e.g. highways; 
- Community Assets, e.g. museum exhibits, parks; 

Non-operational Assets, e.g. investment properties, surplus properties. 

b) Recognition 
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis. 

c) Measurement 
Infrastructure and community assets are included in the balance sheet at historical cost, net of depreciation where appropriate.

Operational land and property is divided into two distinct categories for valuation purposes. 

Page 123



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 8 

Where there is no discernable market value in respect of the continuation of existing use, properties will be valued on the basis of a 
depreciated replacement cost, net of obsolescence and depreciation. 

Where operational properties are considered to be devoted to a use to which there is a discernable market, such properties will be valued on 
the market value in existing use basis. 

Non-operational land and properties and other non-operational assets, including investment properties and assets that are surplus to 
requirement, are included in the balance sheet at market value. 

d) Revaluations 
When an asset is included in the balance sheet at current value, it is formally revalued at intervals of not more than five years and the revised 
amount is included in the balance sheet.  The difference between the value and the and the amount at which the asset was included in the 
balance sheet prior to the latest revaluation is credited or debited to a fixed asset restatement reserve.  The Council has a rolling programme 
in place to revalue all of its property assets over a five year period. 

e) Disposals 
The receipts arising from the disposal of fixed assets have been dealt with on an accruals basis, and the net book value of the asset disposed 
of written off against the fixed asset restatement reserve. 

f) Depreciation 
All assets, other than Land, Non-operational Buildings and Community Assets, are being depreciated over their useful economic lives. This 
policy complies with the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 15 (FRS15) - "Tangible Fixed Assets". 

The Council depreciates its fixed assets on a straight line basis (with the exception of certain IT equipment, which is based on a reducing 
balance) over the expected life of the asset, after allowing for the residual value of an asset as follows: 

Operational Buildings – Other    - 20 – 50 years 
Operational Buildings – Dwellings   - 30 years 
Infrastructure     - 40 years 
Vehicles      - 4 – 20 years 
Plant and Equipment     - 3 – 10 years 
Vessels      - 25 years 

g) Charges for the use of Fixed Assets 
General fund service revenue accounts, central support services and trading services are charged with a capital charge for all fixed assets 
used in the provision of the service.  Such charges cover the annual provision for depreciation, where appropriate, plus a capital financing 
charge determined by applying a specified notional rate of interest to the net amount at which the asset is included in the balance sheet.  
Capital charges in the HRA cover the statutory capital financing charges.  The notional interest rate is 3.5% for assets other than 
infrastructure and community assets, where it is 4.625%.  Interest payable, including interest payable under finance leases, and provision for 
depreciation are charged to an asset management revenue account. 

However, in order to disclose the authority’s corporate net operating expenditure, capital charges to services need to be reversed out and 
replaced by depreciation and external interest payable for financing.  This reconciliation is performed in the Asset Management Revenue 
Account.

Net operating expenditure contains accounting entries that should not have an impact on Council Tax.  Consequently, after the disclosure of 
net operating expenditure, a second reconciliation is needed to reverse out charges in respect of depreciation and amortised government 
grants deferred and to replace them with Minimum Revenue Provision as represented by the cost of financing borrowing.  This is 
accomplished in the line “Contributions to Capital Financing Reserve” in the Consolidated Revenue Account. 

4.3 DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferred charges represent capitalised expenditure that does not result in, or remain matched with, tangible fixed assets.  

Expenditure is written off to the service revenue account in the year in which that expenditure is incurred on the basis that no long-term 
benefit accrues directly to the authority from the expenditure. 

Net operating expenditure contains accounting entries that are not revenue bases and should not have an impact on Council Tax. 
Consequently, after the disclosure of net operating expenditure, a second reconciliation is needed to reverse out capital financed deferred 
charges.  This is done by an adjustment in the Capital Financing Reserve. 

One exception to this is where expenditure is incurred in the provision of wheeled bins in write off to service revenue account over a ten year 
period, on the basis that the bins will have a useful life of ten years and will provide benefit to the Council in the operation of refuse collection 
services for that period. 

4.4 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Grants and other contributions relating to fixed assets are credited to a government grants deferred account and released to the asset 
management revenue account in line with depreciation. 

Page 124



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 9 

4.5 FINANCE LEASES 

Rental payments under finance leases are apportioned between the finance (interest) charge and the reduction of the outstanding obligation.  
The former is charged to the Asset Management Account, the latter to the Capital Financing Reserve. 

5. STOCK & WORK IN PROGRESS 
Stock has been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Work in progress is reflected in the Revenue Accounts and Balance Sheets of the appropriate trading activities at cost plus and, where 
appropriate, a proportion of overheads are charged together with attributable profits and allowances for future losses. 

6. RESERVE FUNDS 
Repairs and Renewals Funds have been established in accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975.  The Council has 
Repairs and Renewals Funds in relation to Vehicles and Plant, Education and Historic Land Contamination in respect of the Council Waste 
PPP.

Reserve Funds for the Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations have been established in accordance with the relevant CIPFA Code of 
Practice.  A Capital Fund has also been established within the Direct Labour Organisation.

7. OPERATING LEASES 
Where a lease is classified as an "operating lease" as defined by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 21 (SSAP 21) - "Accounting for 
Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts", the annual rentals are charged to the appropriate Revenue Account. 

8. ASSETS FINANCED BY COVENANT SCHEMES 
The accounting treatment of assets financed under Covenant Schemes is in accordance with Section 4.1 of Guidance Note 1 – “Covenant 
Schemes Accounting Treatment and Disclosures” - issued by the Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LA(S)AAC).  The 
Council's indebtedness is recorded as a Deferred Covenant Liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.  The assets have been valued in 
accordance with Note 4 above.   

9. LOANS FUND 
In accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975 Schedule 3 (12), the Council administers a Loans Fund.  All loans raised by 
the Council are paid into the fund and are pooled.  Interest and expenses of the Loans Fund have been calculated and allocated to the 
revenue account on the basis of debt outstanding on each account at the start of the financial year with a pro-rata adjustment in respect of 
new advances.  Redemption of debt has been calculated and provided for in the Revenue Account on an annuity basis.  Interest on revenue 
balances is allocated on the basis of monthly balances held on the respective accounts. 

10. PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 
The accounting treatment of the waste management Public Private Partnership is in accordance with FRS5 - "Reporting the Substance of 
Transactions" and Treasury guidance. 

11. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
Where a material post balance sheet event occurs which: 

 Provides additional evidence relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date; or 

 Indicates that application of the going concern concept to a material part of the authority is not appropriate. 

changes will be made to the amounts included within the Statement of Accounts as well as details of the nature of the post balance sheet 
event.

12. PROVISIONS 
Provisions are recognised in the Statement of Accounts where they meet the following criteria: 

 There is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 

 It is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and 

A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

13. PROVISIONS FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS 
Due account has been taken of the likelihood of the collection of outstanding debt, including local tax collection, and, where appropriate, 
debtor balances have been reduced to reflect this. 

14. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) 
VAT is included in income and expenditure accounts only where it is irrecoverable.

Page 125



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 10 

2002/03

Actual Actual Actual Actu

 Net Gross Gross N

Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 Note £'000 £'000 £'

Council Services

71,609 Education Services 90,363 15,749 74,614

10,948 Environmental Services 21,681 10,316 11,365

7,613 Cultural and Related Services 10,711 3,348 7,363

3,010 Planning and Development Services 4,623 1,484 3,139

30,799 Social Work Services 71,147 40,639 30,508

4,733 Housing Services (Non-HRA) 21,142 19,205 1,937

19,553 Roads and Transport Services 30,214 10,650 19,564

895 Trading Services 2,532 1,570 962

Central Services

1,350 - Central Services to the Public 2,845 1,180 1,665

3,037 - Corporate and Democratic Core 3,487 108 3,379

1,341 - Non-distributed Costs 1,325 - 1,325

(116) - Other Operating Income and Expenditure 90 123 (33)

12,803 Payments to Joint Boards 1 14,344 - 14,344

167,575 General Fund Services 274,504 104,372 170,132

636 Housing Revenue Account 14,784 14,968 (184)

168,211 Net Cost of Services 289,288 119,340 169,948

(73)
(Surplus)/Deficit on Trading Undertakings not 

included in Net Cost of Services
(108)

(1,196) Asset Management Revenue Account 2 3,503

-
Gains/losses on the repurchase or early settlement

of borrowing
-

(8,894) Interest and investment income (7,748)

7,639
Pensions interest cost and expected return on 

pension assets
9,014

165,687 Net Operating Expenditure 174,609

(636) Surplus/(deficit) transferred to/(from) HRA Balances 184

(1,966) Contribution to/(from) Funds and Earmarked Reserves (248)

(133) Contribution to/(from) HRA Balance (143)

(3,119) Reconciling amount for loans fund repayment 3 (218)

624 Contribution to/(from) the pensions reserve (1,159)

160,457 173,025

99,463 General Government Grants 109,147

36,383 Income from Council Tax 37,419

29,831 Non-domestic Rates Redistribution 32,533

5,220 Net General Fund Surplus / (Deficit) 6,074

487 Balance on General Fund Brought Forward 5,707

5,707 Balance on General Fund Carried Forward 4 11,781

2003/04

Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxation

al

et

000

Page 126



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 11 

1. Joint Boards
This account shows payments to the Police, Fire, Passenger Transport and Valuation Joint Boards and to the Authorities Buying Consortium.

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

369 Strathclyde Passenger Transport 398

7,079 Strathclyde Police Joint Board 8,207

4,197 Strathclyde Fire Joint Board 4,580

1,131 Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board 1,132

27 Authorities Buying Consortium 27

12,803 Total Joint Boards 14,344

2. Asset Management Revenue Account
This account shows the (deficit)/surplus arising from the capital charges made to the service accounts for the use of assets and the cost to the Council of
financing these assets.

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

12,704 Charge for Depreciation/Impairment 13,597

16,466 External Interest Payable 15,415

(29,807) Capital Charges (24,888)

(559) Release of Government Grant (621)

(1,196) Net Expenditure / ( Income) 3,503

3. Contributions to Capital Financing Reserve 
This shows the amount of revenue resources used to finance capital expenditure during the year and the repayment of the principal instalment from the
Loans Fund, offset by depreciation/impairment charges (net of Government Grants credit) and the amount of deferred charges written off to revenue.

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

604 Capital Financed from Current Revenue - General Fund 16

12,086 Principal Loans Fund Instalment 13,499

(12,704) Depreciation/Impairment (13,597)

(3,664) Deferred Charges Written off to Revenue (757)

559 Release of Government Grant 621

(3,119) Total Contribution to Capital Financing Reserve (218)

4. General Fund Balance Carried Forward
The f g committed sums are included in the Geneollowin ral Fund balance carried forward of £11.781m:-

£'000

1,086

30

43

245

15

41

386

4

82

2,710

994

IT Top Slice 92

Change Management 30

Total Committed Funds 5,758

Area Budgets

Waste Management PPP

Corporate Property Strategy

Modernising Government Fund

Works Committed and Commenced Prior to Start of Financial Year on Roads Projects

Community Safety Forum Contributing to Drugs Rehabilitation

Community Safety Partnership

Underspends in 2003/04 Used to Fund Savings in 2004/05 Budget

Social Work Funding

Risk Management Fund

Digital Communities

Page 127



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 12 

5. Operating Lease Rentals Paid
The Council uses land, buildings, vehicles, plant and equipment financed under the terms of an operating lease.  The amounts paid under these
arrangements in 2003/04 are as follows:

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

68 Land and Buildings 95

895 Vehicles 1,037

203 Plant and Equipment 315

1,166 Total 1,447

In respect of vehicles the Council recovered £0.089m of leased car costs from its employees during 2003/04.

The Council is committed to making payments of £1.557m under operating leases in 2004/05. These can be analysed as follows:

. Significant Trading Organisations

ails of tr  is required to operate in a commercial environment and balance their budget by generating income

£'000

Leases expiring in 2004/2005 215

Leases expiring between 2005/2006 and 2008/2009 1,056

Leases expiring after 2008/2009 onwards 286

Total 1,557

6

et ading units where the service managerD
from other parts of the authority or other organisations are as follows:

Roads and Lighting Trading Account Year Ended 2004

 2002/03

Target  2002/2003 Actual

 2003/04

Actual

 2003/04

Target 3 Year Target

 3 Year

Actual

Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 12,906 10,465

Expenditure 12,823 10,415

- - Surplus/(Deficit) 83 50 - -

Waste Management Trading Account Year Ended 2004

 2002/03

Target  2002/2003 Actual

 2003/04

Actual

 2003/04

Target 3 Year Target

 3 Year

Actual

Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 4,990 4,775

Expenditure 4,982 4,770

- - Surplus/(Deficit) 8 5 - -

Leisure Trading Account Year Ended 2004

 2002/03

Target  2002/2003 Actual

 2003/04

Actual

 2003/04

Target 3 Year Target

 3 Year

Actual

Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 2,898 3,150

Expenditure 2,884 3,145

- - Surplus/(Deficit) 14 5 - -

Page 128



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 13 

7. Local Government Act 1986 - Separate Publicity Account 
he Council is required under Section 5 of the Act to maintain a separate account for publicity.  Expenditure of £0.578m was incurred during 2003/04
nd is included within service expenditure as follows:

he Council has agency agreements with the Scottish Veteran Garden City Association and the Margaret Blackwood Housing Association whereby the 
ouncil arranges for maintenance to be carried out on their housing stock. There is also an ongoing agency agreement with Scottish Water to collect

rges.  During 2003/04 income from these agreements amounted to £0.181m  (2002/03 - £0.176m).

ing and Cleaning Trading Account Year Ended 2004

 2002/03

Target  2002/2003 Actual

 2003/04

Cater

Actual

 2003/04

Target 3 Year Target

 3 Year

Actual

Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 7,157 6,996

Expenditure 7,153 6,993

- - Surplus/(Deficit) 4 3 - -

Building Maintenance Trading Account Year Ended 2004

 2002/03

Target  2002/2003 Actual

 2003/04

Actual

 2003/04

Target 3 Year Target

 3 Year

Actual

Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Turnover 2,633 1,809

Expenditure 2,627 1,804

- - Surplus/(Deficit) 6 5 - -

T
a

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

220 Staff advertising 333

18 Leaflets and publications 42

74 Statutory notices 69

145 Other 134

457 Total 578

8. Agency Income
T
C
domestic water and sewerage cha

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

1 Scottish Veteran Garden City Association and 

Margaret Blackwood Housing Association - repair

of houses

1

175 Scottish Water 180

176 Agency Income 181

Page 129



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 14 

9. Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970
The Council is empowered by this Act to provide goods and services to other public bodies.  Income from these services amounted to £0.733m.  The
goods and services provided during the year were as follows:

Income Expenditure

Purpose of work £'000 £'000

North Lanarkshire Council Cleaning and Catering - Kilbowie OC 111 100

Strathclyde Police Cleaning of Police Stations 108 98

Strathclyde Fire Maintenance of Fire Stations 180 163

Various Public Bodies Grounds Maintenance 53 50

Various Councils Provision Of Science Packs And Health Packs 18 14

Various Councils Staff Support 8 8

Inverclyde Council Teacher Cover Primary Schools Schools 1 1

West Dunbartonshire Council Provision Of Special Education Needs 254 242

733 676

Name of Body

10. Health Act 1999 Pooled Funds and Similar Arrangements
The Council has a joint working arrangement with NHS Argyll and Clyde whereby it provides, but NHS Argyll and Clyde pays for, certain types of care of
the elderly and services for those with learning disabilities or mental health problems. During 2003/04 income from this source amounted to £2.895m and
the related expenditure was £5.116m. These sums can be analysed as follows:

1. Teachers Pensions - Administered by Scottish Public Pensions Agency

rom 1 April 1999 the Council became responsible for the “Strain on the Fund” costs resulting from early retirals, and during 2003/04 these amounted to 
300,815.

he total amount of members' allowances paid by the Council during the year was:

Income Expenditure

Purpose of Service £'000 £'000

Care of the elderly 1,466 2,580

Provision of services for people with learning disabilities 1,137 1,984

Provision of services for people with mental health problems 292 552

2,895 5,116

1

F
£

12. Members' Allowances
T

2002/03 2003/04

2,026 Amount paid over (£'000) 3,006

6.90% Rate of contribution (%) 6.90%

436 Amount of added years awarded by the Council (£'000) 445

7 Discretionary payments made by the council (£'000) -

2003/04

£'000 £'000

209 Basic Allowance 210

203 Special Responsibility Allowance 215

412 Total Allowances 425

2002/03

Page 130



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 15 

13. Officers' Emoluments 
The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions was £40,000 or more in bands of £10,000 were:

2002/03 2003/04

No Remuneration Band No

50 £40,000 - £49,999 32

28 £50,000 - £59,999 18

6 £60,000 - £69,999 3

3 £70,000 - £79,999 4

- £80,000 - £89,999 -

1 £90,000 - £99,999 1

- £100,000 - £109,999 -

- £110,000 - £119,999 1

14. Related Party Transactions 
During the year transactions with related parties arose as follows:

Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000

Central Government and Agencies:

Revenue Grants: Revenue Support Grant 109,147

Non-domestic Rates 32,534

Housing Benefits / Support Grant 14,445

Council Tax Benefit Subsidy 4,752

Other Government Grants 23,173

Capital Grants: European Grants 193

Sportscotland 341

School Buildings Improvements Fund 737

Other Government Capital Grants 228

Related Bodies:

Transactions with related bodies during the year totalled 16,976

Of these, transactions with the following exceeded £10,000:

Joint Boards (see note 1 for further details) 14,344

Strathclyde Passenger Transport - Concessionary Fares 1,808

Argyll, the Islands, Loch Lomond, Stirling and the Trossachs Tourist Board 22

Bute Council on Alcohol 38

COSLA 83

Dunoon and Cowal Youth Project 19

Islay and Jura Community Enterprise 71

Nadair Trust 13

NHS Argyll and Clyde 227

Oban and Lorn Enterprises - Atlantis Leisure 296

Other Related Party Transactions:

Transactions in which members have a significant interest 69

£'000

Trident Taxis 62

During the year there was one company in which members had a significant interest and where the total of transactions exceeded £10,000. This

was as follows:

Page 131



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 16 

15. Waste Management Public Private Partnership
The Council has entered into a Public Private Partnership for the provision of its waste disposal service.  This agreement requires the provider to
upgrade or replace three waste disposal sites, two transfer stations and five civic amenity sites.  In addition, the provider will also provide composting
facilities to meet waste diversion targets.  When the agreement ends in September 2026 the provider will hand back to the Council the waste disposal
facilities with a life of 5 years.

The Council has paid a service charge of £4.111m which represents the value of the service provided from 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004.  Under the
agreement the Council is committed to paying the following sums:

his equates to £5.573m per annum over the life of the contract.

6. Fees Payable to Audit Scotland

2003/04 the following fees relating to external audit and inspection were incurred:

7. Pension – Local Government Superannuation (Scotland) Scheme

te the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by the City
f Glasgow Council’s Strathclyde Pension Fund. This Fund provides members with defined benefits relating to pay and service. The contributions are

ll costs that would have been charged to operating profit under FRS 17: - 

Period £'000

2004/07 14,105

2007/12 25,497

2012/17 28,265

2017/22 31,396

2022/27 29,980

Total 129,243

T

1

In

2002/2003 2003/2004

£'000 £'000

190 Fees payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services carried out  by the appointed auditor 223

4 Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the appointed auditor 1

194 224

1

As sta d in note 3 of the Statement of Accounting Policies, the Council participates in
o
based on rates determined by the Fund’s professionally qualified actuary and based on triennial valuations of the Fund.

17.1 Amount Charged to Operating Profit 

The fo owing table shows an analysis of the pension

Year to Year to

31 March 2004 31 March 2004

£'000 % of Payroll

Service Costs 6,054 14.2%

Past Service Costs 23 0.1%

Curtailments and Settlements 773 1.8%

Decrease in Irrecoverable Surplus - -

Total Operating Charge (A) 6,850 16.1%

Expected Return on Employer Assets 7,748 18.2%

Interest on Pension Scheme Liabilities (9,014) -21.1%

Net Return (B) (1,266) -2.9%

Net Revenue Account Cost (A)-(B) 8,116 19.0%

Amount Charged to Operating Profit

Amount Credited to Other Finance Income

Page 132



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 17 

17. Pension Costs - FRS 17 Disclosure Continued

17.2 Analysis of Amount Recognised in Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL) 

7.3 History of Experience Gains and Losses 

urther details on pension assets and liabilities are provided in note 14 to the balance sheet.

Year to

31 March 2004

£'000

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 19,563

Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (512)

Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities -

Actuarial gain / (loss) in pension plan 19,051

Increase / (decrease) in irrecoverable surplus from membership fall and other factors -

Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in the STRGL 19,051

1

Difference between the expected and actual return on assets 19,563

Value of assets 138,298

Percentage of assets 14.1%

Experience gains / losses on liabilities (512)

Present value of liabilities 161,310

Percentage of the present value of liabilities -0.3%

Actuarial gains / losses recognised in STRGL 19,051

Present value of liabilities 161,310

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 11.8%

F

Page 133



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 18 

2002/03 2003/04 2003/04

Actual Actual Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

4,713 Repairs and Maintenance 4,549 4,594

4,050 Supervision and Management 4,230 4,418

4,766 Capital Financing Costs 4,382 4,560

615 Void House Rents 684 696

62 Bad Debt Write Off 115

8 Increase in Provision for Bad or Doubtful Debts

588 Other expenditure 497 517

700 Contribution to Capital Financing Reserve 327 380

15,502 Total Expenditure 14,784 15,165

Income

13,842 Rent of houses (gross) 13,714 14,013

92 Non-dwelling Rents 88 100

168 Housing Support Grant 149 149

20 Decrease in Provision for Bad or Doubtful Debts 78 -

744 Other Income 939 903

14,866 Total Income 14,968 15,165

(636) (Deficit) / Surplus for Year 184 -

1,151 Balance on Housing Revenue Account Brought Forward 423 423

41 Interest Earned on Balance 10 -

(133) Contribution to General Fund (143) -

423 Balance on Housing Revenue Account Carried Forward 474 423

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

1. Gross Rent Income
This is the total rent income for the year.  Average annual rent charges were £42.65 per week in 2003/04 (2002/03 £41.10)

2. Housing Stock

2002/03 2003/04

    No  No

198 Sheltered Housing 198

3,251 Other Houses 3,059

1,589 Tenement Flats 1,559

1,272 Other Flats 1,232

6,310 Total Housing Stock 6,048

3. Rent Arrears and Bad Debts
Rent arrears at 31/3/2004 were £0.324m (31/3/2003 - £0.391m) and this equated to an average rent arrears per house of £54 (2002/03 - £62).

In accordance with the latest assessment of potential recovery and in order to reflect due prudence, the provision for bad debts has been adjusted to
£0.189m (2002/03 - £0.234m); this represents an increase of £0.045m.  The HRA share of the sundry debtor account provision for bad debts decreased
by £0.033m.

Page 134



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 19 

Shows the net income raised from council taxes levied under the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

2002/03 2003/04

Actual Actual

£'000 £'000

44,686 Gross Council Tax Levied and Contributions in Lieu 46,151

Less:

(250) Council Tax Benefits (Net of Government Grant) (253)

(7,146) Other Discounts and Reductions (7,530)

(1,730) Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (1,786)

35,560 Total for 2003/04 36,582

823 Adjustment to Previous Years' Community Charge and Council Tax 837

36,383 Transfers to General Fund 37,419

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

1. Calculation of the Council Tax
Dwellings are valued by the Assessor and placed within a valuation band ranging from the lowest "A" to the highest "H". The Council Tax charge is
calculated using the Council Tax Base, i.e. Band D equivalents as below.  This value is then decreased or increased dependent upon the band of the
dwelling.  The charge for each band for 2003/04 was as follows:

Band Valuation Band % Band D £ per year

A Under £27,000 67% 689.33£

B £27,000 - £35,000 78% 804.22£

C £35,000 - £45,000 89% 919.11£

D £45,000 - £58,000 100% 1,034.00£

E £58,000 - £80,000 122% 1,263.78£

F £80,000 - £106,000 144% 1,493.56£

G £106,000 - £212,000 167% 1,723.33£

H Over £212,000 200% 2,068.00£

Page 135



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 20 

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT – Continued 
2. Calculation of the Council Tax Base 2003/04 

Council Tax Base A B C D E F G H Total

Total Number of Properties    8,084     9,484     9,374     5,468     6,578     3,402      2,256        211       44,857  

Less - Exemptions / Deductions    1,020       644     1,162        415        524        185        119         32         4,101  

-
Adjustment for Single 
Chargepayers 

      917       964        727        400        338        145          80           5         3,576  

Effective Number of Properties    6,147     7,876     7,485     4,653     5,716     3,072      2,057        174       37,180  

Band D Equivalent Factor (ratio) 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

Band D Equivalent Number of Properties    4,098     6,126     6,653     4,653     6,986     4,437      3,428        348       36,729  

Add Contribution in lieu in respect of Class 18 dwellings (Band D Equivalent)           518  

Nominal Tax Yield      37,247  

Less Provision for Non-Collection        - 5.4%        2,011  

Council Tax Base 2003/04 - Number of Band D equivalents      35,236  

Page 136



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 March 2004 

Page 21 

Shows the income from the rate levied under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975 as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 on
non-domestic property.

2002/03 2003/04

Actual Actual

 £'000  £'000

32,362 Gross rates levied 27,691

Less:

(2,613) Reliefs and other deductions (2,182)

(21) Payment of interest (300)

118 Provision for bad and doubtful debts (389)

29,846 Net Non-domestic Rate Income 24,820

5 Adjustments for years prior to introduction of national non-domestic rate pool 2

(20) Contribution from / (to) national non-domestic rate pool 7,711

29,831 Guaranteed Rate Income 32,533

NOTES TO THE NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

1. Analysis of Rateable Values

2002/03 2003/04

£ £

3,515,190 Industrial and freight transport subjects 3,392,020

37,775,337 Public utilities including Telecomms, Rail, Gas and Electricity Companies 36,355,931

Commercial subjects: 9,519,550

9,501,080   Shops 4,517,005

4,559,750   Offices 6,596,840

6,813,520   Hotels, Boarding Houses etc. 5,462,395

5,570,495   Others

7,967,519 Formula valued subjects 7,951,411

75,702,891 Total Rateable Value 73,795,152

2. Non-Domestic Rate Charge

2002/03 2003/04

Pence Pence

45.8p Rate Per Pound Properties under £10,000 47.8p

47.8p Rate Per Pound Properties over £10,000 47.8p

0.0p Supplementary Rate Per Pound for Properties over £25,000 0.6p

3. Calculation of Rate Charge for Each Property
eable value placed upon it by the Assessor multiplied by the Rate per £ announced each yearThe rates charge for each subject is determined by the rat

by the Government.

Page 137



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004 

Page 22 

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 Note £'000

Fixed Assets

Operational Assets 1.1

64,696 - Council Dwellings 64,725

167,972 - Other Land and Buildings 163,092

4,208 - Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 4,184

58,310 - Infrastructure Assets 63,304

124 - Community Assets 329

Non-operational Assets 1.2

380 - Vehicles, Plant and Equipment Under Construction 212

7,297 - Infrastructure Under Construction 9,801

2,582 - Buildings Under Construction 3,014

7,435 - Non-operational Land and Buildings 13,648

313,004 Total Fixed Assets 322,309

418 Deferred Charges 4 559

9,598 Long Term Debtors 5 11,667

323,020 Total Long Term Assets 334,535

Current Assets

743 -  Stock and Work in Progress 652

11,609 -  Debtors 6 11,298

2,000 -  Investments -

8,097 -  Cash at Bank and in Hand 850 12,800

345,469 Total Assets 347,335

Current Liabilities

(580) -  Short Term Borrowing 7.2 (3,702)

(28,760) -  Creditors (34,370)

(2,978) -  Bank Overdraft (3,670) (41,742)

313,151 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 305,593

(216,923) Long Term Borrowing 7.2 (192,574)

(239) Deferred Covenant Liability -

(417) Provisions 8 (843)

- Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme (23,011) (216,428)

95,572 Total Assets less Liabilities 89,165

Capital Reserves:

81,357 -  Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve 84,432

(5,926) -  Capital Financing Reserve 214

400 -  Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 400

11,751 -  Deferred Government Grants and Contributions 13,238

905 -  Earmarked Reserves 809

-  Pensions Reserve (23,011)

Revenue Reserves:

5,707 -  General Fund 11,781

423 -  Housing Revenue Account Balance 474

111 -  DSO/DLO's -

844 -  Earmarked Reserves 828

95,572 Total Net Worth 89,165

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance

June 15, 2004

Page 138



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 23 

1.1 Movement on Operational Fixed Assets

 Council

Dwellings

 Other

Land &

Buildings

 Vehicles

Plant &

Equipment

 Infrastructure

Assets

 Community

Assets

 Total

2003/04

 Total

2002/03

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Certified Valuation at 31/3/03 64,696 190,766

Accumulated Depreciation - (16,212)

Accumulated Impairment - (6,582)

Net Book Value at 31/03/03 64,696 167,972 4,208 58,310 124 295,310 287,799

Movement in 2003/04

Expenditure in Year 3,403 3,465 1,090 2,145 143 10,246 10,682

Disposals (2,916) (442) (87) (3,445) (2,726)

Revaluations 1,697 4,497 9 6,203 11,142

(5,439) 387 5,906 62 916 1,117

Depreciation (2,155) (6,961) (1,414) (3,066) (13,596) (12,704)

- -

Net Book Value at 31/03/04 64,725 163,092 4,184 63,304 329 295,634 295,310

Transfers (to) / from Non 

Operational Assets

Impairment

1.2 Movement on Non-Operational Fixed Assets

 Vehicles

Plant &

Equipment

Under

Construction

 Infrastructure

Under

Construction

 Buildings

Under

Construction

 Non

Operational

Land &

Buildings

 Total

2003/04

 Total

2002/03

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Certified Valuation at 31/3/03 7,435

Accumulated Depreciation -

Accumulated Impairment -

Net Book Value at 31/03/03 380 7,297 2,582 7,435 17,694 14,384

Movement in 2003/04

Expenditure in Year 219 8,495 860 6 9,580 6,648

Disposals (85) (575) (660) (85)

Revaluations 977 977 (2,136)

Transfers (to) / from Operational Assets (387) (5,906) (428) 5,805 (916) (1,117)

Depreciation - -

Impairment - -

Net Book Value at 31/03/04 212 9,801 3,014 13,648 26,675 17,694

1.3 Valuation of Operational Fixed Assets 

Council dwellings were revalued at 31 March 2004 by the District Valuer for Scotland South West, Brian J Kerr, F.R.I.C.S., on the basis of Existing Use
Value for Social Housing as defined in Practice Statement 4.1 of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual, the
definition of which is as follows:

"Existing Use Value for Social Housing is defined as an opinion of the best price at which the sale of an interest in property would have been completed
unconditionally for cash consideration on the date of the valuation.”

During the current year, revaluations on operational land and buildings were carried out by Nicholas S. Allan, M.R.I.C.S., Estates Manager for Argyll and
Bute Council, in accordance with the Council's rolling programme of revaluations.  The basis of valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting
policies on pages 7 to 9. 

Page 139



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 24 

The following statement shows the progress of the Council's rolling programme for the revaluation of operational fixed assets:

ng the  and buildings were carried out by Nicholas S. Allan, M.R.I.C.S., Estates Manager for Argyll

hows the progress of the Council's rolling programme for the revaluation of non-operational fixed assets.

.5 Fixed Assets Information on Assets Held at 31/3/04

 Vehicles Plant

& Equipment

Under

Construction

 Infrastructure

Under

Construction

 Buildings

Under

Construction

 Non

Operational

Land &

Buildings

 Total

2003/04

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

212 9,801 3,014 13,027

2003

Council

Dwellings

Other

Land &

Buildings

Vehicles

Plant &

Equipment

Infrastructure

Assets

Community

Assets

 Total

2003/04

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

4,184 63,304 329 67,817

2003/2004 64,725 16,867 81,592

2002/2003 30,233 30,233

2001/2002 52 52

2000/2001 32,490 32,490

1999/2000 83,315 83,315

135 135

Total 64,725 163,092 4,184 63,304 329 295,634

Valued at historical cost

Valued at current value in:

Valuations inherited at 01/04/96

1.4 Valuation of Non-Operational Fixed Assets 

uri  current year, revaluations on non-operational landD
and Bute Council, in accordance with the Council's rolling programme of revaluations.  The basis of valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting
policies on pages 7 to 9. 

he following statement sT

1

/2004 3,137 3,137

2002/2003 3,092 3,092

2001/2002 5,175 5,175

2000/2001 1,187 1,187

1999/2000 1,057 1,057

- -

Total 212 9,801 3,014 13,648 26,675

Valuations inherited at 01/04/96

Valued at historical cost

Valued at current value in:

OPERATIONAL BUILDINGS
2003/04

No.

2003/04

No.

Administrative Buildings 50 Vehicles and Heavy Plant 296

Depots 32

Social Work Homes for the Elderly 7 INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Social Work Children's Homes 5 Highways (miles) 1,406

Social Work  Hostels 3 Bridges 954

Primary Schools 80 Car Parks 138

Secondary Schools 10 Vessels 5

Special Schools 3

Nursery Schools 3 COMMUNITY ASSETS

Halls 8 Play Areas 58

Sports Centres 1 Parks 25

Swimming Pools 4 Civic Regalia (Provosts' Chains) 4

Museums and Libraries 10 Civic Regalia (Bailies' Chains) 1

Community Centres 9 Cemeteries 125

Crematoria 1 War Memorials 54

Public Conveniences 75

Travelling Persons Sites 3 COUNCIL DWELLINGS 5,943

Airports 1

OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT

Page 140



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 25 

2. Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing

Capital expenditure involves the creation of assets, the benefit of which will be available to future rate and council taxpayers.  It is financed from
borrowing and therefore the cost of the assets is effectively borne over a period of years.  In 2003/04 gross capital expenditure totalled £23.922m, offset
by capital income of £4.177m, as follows:

ases during the year.

he "Loans Early Repayment Premium" represents the premium paid to the Public Works Loans Board and other external bodies upon the early
mpt uring exercise, debt at a relatively high interest rate was replaced by new debt at a more attractive rate of

n
t

31 March 31 March

2004 2003

£'000 £'000

19,745 17,071

2,196 2,158

1,638 1,309

343 1,304

tal Fi 23,922 21,842

Sources of Finance:

Revenue Contributions

Borrowing (S94 consent)

Other Capital Payments

Other Adjustments for Cash Accounting

Deferred Charges

Operational Assets

Non-operational Assets

Capital Receipts

Government Grants and Other Contributions

Capital Investment:

10,246 10,682

9,580 6,648

898 4,082

3,112 545

86 (115)

Total Expenditure 23,922 21,842

To nancing

3. Assets Held Under Finance Leases

There were no assets held under finance le

4. Movement in Deferred Charges

5. Long Term Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- -

418 898 (757) 559

Total  Deferred Charges 418 898 (757) 559

Written off to

revenue in

year

Balance at

31 March

2004

Balance at

1 April 2003

Other

Improvement Grants

Expenditure

in year

31 March 31 March

2004 2003

£'000 £'000

10,203 7,944

679 851

785 803

tal L 11,667 9,598

Loans Early Repayment Premium

House Loans

To ong Term Debtors

Waste PPP Historic Contamination Fund

T
rede ion of debt.  As part of a loans restruct
interest.  These costs associated with the early redemption of debt are charged to the Council's loans fund over the period of the new debt borrowed.

At the start of the PPP contract during the 2001/02 financial year, a joint bank account was set up with Shanks Group PLC. Only Shanks Group PLC ca
draw on this fund during the 25 year contract period, Argyll and Bute Council are required to keep the bank account balance "topped" up at £0.750m. A
the end of the 25 year contract period the £0.750m will be available to Argyll and Bute Council.

Page 141



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 26 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

The movement in the bank account balance during the year can be analysed as follows:

6. Debtors

785Balance at 31 March 2004

£'000

Balance at 1 April 2003 803

Contribution from General Fund (44)

"Top-up" payments during the year -

Withdrawals by Shanks Group PLC -

Interest earned on bank account 26

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Arrears of Local Taxation Council Tax 11,683 11,660

less: provision for bad debts (11,091) (10,773)

592 887

Community Charge 7,697 7,812

less: provision for bad debts (7,697) (7,812)

- -

Non-domestic Rates 1,513 1,774

less: provision for bad debts (1,327) (1,518)

186 256

House Rents 253 264

less: provision for bad debts (189) (234)

64 30

Debtor Accounts 2,760 3,789

less: provision for bad debts (411) (621)

2,349 3,168

Government Grants 1,420 424

VAT Recoverable 2,349 1,989

Other Debtors 4,338 4,855

Total Debtors 11,298 11,609

2002/032003/04

Page 142



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 27 

7. Analysis of Borrowing

7.1 Source of Loan

7.2 Maturity of Loans

The following graph shows an additional analysis of how the £165.954m of loans, shown in the table above, is repayable.

8. Provisions

Liabilities have continued to arise in respect of the former Strathclyde Regional Council's operations.  Cost sharing arrangements are in place with the
other eleven authorities that make up the former Strathclyde Region.  Argyll and Bute Council's share of liabilities, which materialise in the future, will be
approximately 4.75%.  At present, potential liabilities in respect of insurance claims and various legal actions could cost the Council £0.009m.  Full
provision for this amount has been made.

Liabilities have also arisen in respect of employees who will be made redundant as a result of restructuring.  According to the SORP's (Statement of
Recommended Practice) guidance on Provisions for Restructuring Costs: - 

"The authority must also have raised valid expectations in those affected by announcing the features of the plan or actually starting to implement it.
Allowable costs are restricted to costs that would not have been incurred if the restructuring had not taken place, less any costs associated with on-going
activities."

31 March 31 March

2004 2003

 £'000 £'000

Public Works Loan Board 169,178 195,538

Money Market 25,755 20,580

830 963

513 422

196,276 217,503Total Outstandi

EIB

Other Loans

ng Loans

31 March 31 March

2004 2003

£'000 £'000

3,702 580

3,702 580

1 - 2 years 4,054 3,270

2 - 5 years 8,272 430

6 - 10 years 14,294 11,020

165,954 202,203

192,574 216,923

196,276 217,503Total Outstanding Loans

Over 10 years (see graph below)

Borrowings repayab

Borrowings repayabl

Total Long and Medium Term Loans

le on demand or within 12 months

e on demand or within 12 months

0
20

40
60

80
10

0
12

0
14

0
16

0
18

0

£39.96m

£23.73m

£26.99m

£9.25m

£13.80m

£5.25m
£6.80m

£40.18m

Maturity Analysis - Years
11 - 15
16 - 20
21 - 25
26 - 30

31 -35
41 - 45
46 - 50
51 - 55

Page 143



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 28 

8. Provisions Continued

Both these provisions comply with the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 12 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"
(FRS 12) and meet the following criteria:

9. Analysis of Net Assets Employed

0. Contingent Gains and Liabilities

he Council has inherited a number of applications for equal pay at various stages of completion at Industrial Tribunals.  The final outcome of these
pplications is unknown at this time, although there is the possibility that the Council may lose at least some of these cases. No financial provision has
een made in the 2003/2004 Accounts given the uncertainties that surround both the final outcomes and the settlement levels.

he Council has entered into a Public Private Partnership with Shanks Group PLC for the waste management of landfill sites.  Under this agreement, the
ouncil retains an element of residual responsibility in respect of specific environmental rectification which may be necessary in certain circumstances.
he Council is of the view that any future liabilities arising from these circumstances should be covered by grants funding.

Opening

Balance

Movement

in Year

Closing

Balance

£'000 £'000 £'000

(143) 43 (100)

(274) (49) (323)

- (420) (420)

                 (417)                 (426)              (843)

SRC Insurance Claims

al Provisions

Reorganisation Redundancy Costs

Teac ers' Premature Retirement Scheme

- There is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- It is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and
- A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

h

Tot

General Fund HRA Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Assets

Fixed Assets            257,584 64,725 322,309

Deferred Charges                   559 - 559

Long Term Debtors 11,667 - 11,667

Stock and Work in Progress 652 652

Debtors 11,298 11,298

Investments - - -

Cash at Bank and in Hand 850 - 850

1

T
a
b

T
C
T

Liabilities

hort Term Borrowing (3,702) (3,702)

tors (34,370) (34,370)

S

Credi

Bank Overdraft (3,670) - (3,670)

erm Borrowing (192,574) (192,574)

eferred Covenant Liability - - -

isions (843) - (843)

elated to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (23,011) - (23,011)

24,440 64,725 89,165otal Net Assets Employed

As at 31 March 2004

Long T

D

Prov

Liability R

T

Page 144



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

Page 29 

11. Commitments Under Capital Contracts 

At 31 March 2004, the Council had commitments on capital contracts of £9.845m.  This expenditure will be funded from a combination of government
grant borrowing, income from selling assets and contributions from Revenue Accounts.

unds have not been subject to an independent audit.

s f le trustee:

Purpose of Common Good Funds:

These funds are held for the benefit of residents of the former Burghs within Argyll and Bute.

Purpose of Trust Funds:

GM Duncan Trust: for the provision of fuel, clothing and foodstuffs for the needy of Campbeltown. McDougall Trust: for the provision of sheltered
housing on the Ross of Mull.   Argyll Education Trust: this is made up of a number of small trusts to award prizes, bursaries, etc. to pupils and ex-pupils
of schools within the former Argyll County Council area.  Further information on the Common Good and Trust Funds, administered by Argyll and Bute
Coun  can be obtained from the Corporate Accounting Section of the Finance Department.

3. European Monetary Union

s at 31 March 2004, the Council had incurred no expenditure and had made no commitments in respect of the costs associated with the introduction of

14. Pension Assets and Liabilities - FRS 17 Disclosure

 3 of the Accounting Policies,
e Council participates in two formal schemes, the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, which is administered by Strathclyde Pension Fund and

Teachers' Scheme.  The Council is not required to record information related to the Teachers' Scheme as the liability for payment of pensions rests
ultimately with the Scottish Executive.  In addition, the Council has liabilities for discretionary payments outside the main schemes.

£'000

s,

Admi

Infor

Development and En 873

Education 191

Social Work 15

Roads 7,955

Housing -

Miscellaneous 797

9,845

nistration Buildings and Equipment 14

mation Technology -

vironment Services

12. Trust Funds and Other Third Party Funds

The Council acts as sole or custodian trustee for 75 trust funds and 6 common good funds.  In neither case do the funds represent assets of the Council,
and as such have not been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The f

Fund or which Argyll and Bute Council act as so

Income Expenditure Assets Liabilities

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Campbeltown Common Good Fund 25 37 763 763

Oban Common Good Fund 45 25 807 807

Inveraray Common Good Fund - - 1 1

Lochgilphead Common Good Fund - - 5 5

Dunoon Common Good Fund - - 7 7

Rothesay Common Good Fund 16 4 130 130

Argyll Education Trust 12 9 225 225

GM Duncan Trust 3 2 76 76

McDougall Trust 16 - 476 476

Various Other Trust Funds 15 2 406 406

132 79 2,896 2,896Total Trust Funds

cil,

1

A
the Euro.  Prior to entry into full Euro trading, a significant review of all systems will require to be undertaken.  Consequently an estimate of costs is not
available at this stage.

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No 17 - "Retirement Benefits" (FRS 17) the Council is required to disclose certain information
concerning assets, liabilities, income and expenditure related to pension schemes for its employees.  As explained in note
th
the

Page 145



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 30 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31 March 2004

14. Pension Assets and Liabilities – FRS 17 Disclosure Continued

The net pension asset of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31 March 2004 can be calculated as follows:

Assets of the employer's share of the fund are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and consist of:

The latest formal valuation of the Strathclyde Pension Fund for funding purposes was at 31 March 2002, with the next formal valuation due at 31 March
2005.  Hymans Robertson has assumed that employees have continued to earn new benefits on the same basis as the latest formal valuation and that
the employer's pensionable payroll over the year to 31 March 2005 remains substantially stable with new entrants replacing any leavers. The
assumptions used by Hymans Robertson (Independent Actuaries) at 31 March 2004 are as follows:

31 March 2004

31 March

2003

£'000 £'000

Estimated Employer Assets (A) 138,298 103,938

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities 147,706 132,875

Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities 13,603 11,966

Total Value of Liabilities (B) 161,309 144,841

Net Pension Asset (A-B) (23,011) (40,903)

xt formal valuation due at 31 March
2005.  Hymans Robertson has assumed that employees have continued to earn new benefits on the same basis as the latest formal valuation and that
the employer's pensionable payroll over the year to 31 March 2005 remains substantially stable with new entrants replacing any leavers. The
assumptions used by Hymans Robertson (Independent Actuaries) at 31 March 2004 are as follows:

31 March 2004

31 March

2003

£'000 £'000

Estimated Employer Assets (A) 138,298 103,938

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities 147,706 132,875

Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities 13,603 11,966

Total Value of Liabilities (B) 161,309 144,841

Net Pension Asset (A-B) (23,011) (40,903)

Long Term

Return

Fund Value

at 31 March

2004

Fund Value

at 31 March

20

Expected

Return per

04 annum

% per annum £'000 % £'000Assets (Employer Share)

Equities 7.7% 101,059 73.07 7,782

Bonds 5.1% 19,686 14.23 1,004

Properties 6.5% 11,793 8.53 767

Cash 4.0% 5,761 4.17 230

Total 7.1% 138,299 100.00 9,783

31 March 2004

31 March

2003

% per annum annum

Price Increases 2.9% 2.5%

ary Increases 4.4% 4.0%

ion Increases 2.9% 2.5%

6.5% 6.1%

Sal

Pens

Discount Rate

Year to

31 March 2004

£'000

982

-

-

Surplus / (deficit) at beginning of the year (40,903)

Current service cost (6,054)

Employer contributions 5,975

Contributions in respect of Unfunded Benefits

Other Income

Other outgoings (e.g. expenses, etc)

Past service costs (23)

Impact of settlements and curtailments (773)

Net return on assets (1,266)

Actuarial gains / (losses) 19,051

lu (23,011)Surp s / (deficit) at end of the year

Movement in Surplus Deficit in the Year

Page 146



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES for the year ended 31 March 2004

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES

1. Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve
This reserve reflects the difference between the book value of assets prior to the implementation of the new system of Capital Accounting and the
revalued amounts. Any subsequent revaluations are also recorded here.  It is not a revaluation reserve and does not represent resources available to 
the authority.  It cannot be used in any way to finance revenue or capital expenditure and can only be reduced by either writing out the book value of
assets or a downward revaluation.

ta Note 3 Note 4

Deferred Earmarked Total

-

Other Adjustments - 247 247

(4,105) (4,105)

5,784 5,784

Net Surplus/(Deficit) (4,105) 5,784 - 1,679

Balance at 31 March 2004 84,432 214 400 13,238 809 99,093

Revenue Reserves (Note 5) Note 4

General HRA DLO/ Earmarked Total

Fund Balance DSO Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ce at 1 April 2003 5,707 423 111 844 7,085

ce at 31 March 2004 11,781 474 - 828 13,083

Proceeds of disposals

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for year

Prior year adjustments

Cost or value of assets disposed of

Unrealised gains/(loss) from revaluation of fixed

assets

Impairment gains/(losses) arising from revaluations

Capi l Reserves Note 1 Note 2

Useable

Fixed Asset Capital Capital

Restatement Financing Receipts Gov't Reserves

Reserve Reserve Reserve Grants

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2003 81,357 (5,926) 400 11,751 905 88,487

109 1,487 (96) 1,500

-

7,180 7,180

Effects of disposals of fixed assets:

Balan

6,074 184 (16) 6,242

Revenue Interest - 10 - 10

Other Adjustments / Reserve Transfers (143) (111) - (254)

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for year

Balan

General HRA Total

Fund Balance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2003 81,357

5,483 1,697 7,180

Disposal of Fixed Assets (1,189) (2,916) (4,105)

Balance at 31 March 2004 84,432

Surplus on revaluations, etc

Page 31 

Page 147



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES for the year ended 31 March 2004

Page 32 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES CONTINUED

he Capital Financing Reserve contains the amounts which are required by statute to be set aside from capital receipts for the repayment of external
ns as well as the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts.  It also contains the difference between amounts provided

for depreciation and that required to be charged to revenue to repay the principal element of external loans. As with the Fixed Asset Restatement

3. Deferred Government Grants
The Deferred Government Grants Account represents the balance of grants applied to the financing of fixed assets, awaiting amortisation to the asset
management revenue account to match depreciation on the relevant assets.  As with the Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve it does not represent
resources available to the authority.

4. Earmarked Reserves 

5. Revenue Reserves
Revenue reserves are made up of the annual movements in the Consolidated Revenue Account and Housing Revenue Account. Revenue reserves can
be used to meet both capital and revenue expenditure.

2. Capital Financing Reserve 
T
loa

Reserve it does not represent resources available to the authority.

General HRA Sub Total

Fund Balance Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(5,926) (5,926)

Appropriations: 16 327 343

11,885 1,614 13,499

Depreciation Write-off (11,442) (2,155) (13,597)

621 - 621

(757) - (757) 109

5,784

247

Balance at 31 March 2004 214

Deferred Government Grants Write-off

Balance at 1 April 2003

Capital Financed from Current Revenue

Repayment of External Loans

Deferred Charges Write-off

Proceeds of Disposals

Other Adjustments

£'000

Balance at 1 April 2003 11,751

Grants received during the year to finance capital projects 2,108

Credit to revenue account during the year                (621)

13,238Balance at 31 March 2004

Balance at Contribution Interest Appropriation Balance at

31 March from CRA Earned to CRA 31 March

2003 2004

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

ital Reserves:

8                  523                   23                (545) 809

97 - - (97) -

tamination 803 26 - (44) 785

844 26 2 (44) 828

Cap

Repairs and Renewals - Education 80

DLO Capital Fund

905 523 23 (642) 809

Revenue Reserves:

Repairs and Renewals - Vehicles                    41                    -                     2                    - 43

Repairs and Renewals - Land Con

Page 148



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES for the year ended 31 March 2004

Page 33 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT ON RESERVES CONTINUED 

6. Public Private Partnership Surplus
of

              4,496 

Historic Contamination -

Total Expenditure 4,496

Funding

Argyll and Bute Council Revenue Budget               1,012 

Level Playing Field Support               1,290 

Strategic Waste Fund               1,654 

Capital Virement                  600 

Total Funding 4,556

2003/04 60

The General Fund balance of £11.781m includes a surplus of £0.060m.  This relates to the Waste Management PPP where there was a surplus
funding over expenditure in the 2003/2004 financial year.  The following analysis provides more detail on how the surplus for the year was arrived at: 

Expenditure £'000

Payment under the contract

Page 149



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2004

2002/03 2003/04

Actual REVENUE ACTIVITIES Note Actual

87,722

8,943 Housing Benefit Paid Out 7,243

2,582 National Non-domestic Rate Payments to National Pool 995

198,101 Total Cash Outflows 222,665

Cash inflows

6,641 Rents (after rebates) 6,623

32,023 Council Tax Income 36,059

30,110 Non-domestic Rate Receipts 30,078

22 Community Charge

101,529 Revenue Support Grant 126,569

22,270 DSS Grants for Benefits 21,278

9,850 Other Government Grants 1 7,759

18,013 Cash Received for Goods and Services 23,935

9,134 Other Operating Cash Receipts 3,784

229,592 Total Cash Inflows 256,085

31,491 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Revenue Activities 2 33,420

SERVICING OF FINANCE

Cash outflows

14,833 Interest paid 14,782

14,833 Total Cash Outflows 14,782

Cash inflows

208 Interest received 372

208 Total Cash Inflows 372

(14,625) Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Servicing of Finance (14,410)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Cash outflows

10,994 Purchase of Fixed Assets 11,342

6,679 Other Capital Cash Payments 4,606

17,673 Total Cash Outflows 15,948

Cash inflows

5,268 Sale of Fixed Assets 5,783

733 Capital Grants Received 2,099

364 Other Capital Cash Receipts 344

6,365 Total Cash Inflows 8,226

(11,308) Cash Inflow (Outflow) From Capital (7,722)

5,558 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) Before Financing 11,288

FINANCING

Cash outflows

11,432 Repayments o

£'000 Cash outflows £'000

98,854 Cash Paid for and on Behalf of Employees 106,820

Other Operating Cash Payments 107,607

f Amounts Borrowed 43,073

11,432 Total Cash Outflows 43,073

Cash inflows

14,918 New Loans Raised 21,846

14,918 Total Cash Inflows 21,846

3,486 Net Cash Inflow / (Outflow) From Financing (21,227)

9,044 Net Increase / (Decrease)  in Cash 3 (9,939)

Page 34 

Page 150



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2004

1. Other Government Grants

2. Net Cash Flow Reconciliation

3. Analysis of Net Debt

2002/03 2003/04

 £'000 £'000

168 Housing Support Grant 149

318 Public Transport Grant 342

270 Pre-school Education Grants 112

4,299 National Priorities Action Fund 1,974

76 Special Education 136

236 Gaelic Education Grants 255

1,134 Other Educational Grants 1,261

273 Children's Change Fund 390

211 DWP Other Grants 470

533 Social Inclusion Partnership 475

             1,323 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors                 385 

             1,867 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors              6,105 

31,491 Revenue Activities Net Cash Flow 33,420

As at As at

31 March 1 April Cash

2004 2003 Flow

 £'000  £'000  £'000

Investments -              2,000             (2,000)

Cash at Bank and in Hand 850              8,097             (7,247)

Bank Overdraft (3,670)             (2,978)                (692)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash (2,820) 7,119 (9,939)

Debt due within one year (3,702) (580) (3,122)

Debt due after one year (192,574) (216,923) 24,349

Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Financing (196,276) (217,503) 21,227

Movement in Debt in Period (199,096) (210,384) 11,288

1,676 Strategic Waste Fund 1,792

656 Other Grants (e.g. Civil Defence) 403

9,850 Total "Other Government Grants" 7,759

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

5,220 Surplus/(Deficit) for Year              6,074 

(636) Add back: Transfer to HRA Balance                 184 

4,584 6,258

            (1,992) Movements in Reserves                (205)

24,624 Adjustments Not Involving Movement in Funds            20,786 

1,085 (Increase)/Decrease in Stocks                   91 

Page 35 

Page 151



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2004

4. Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to Net Debt

2002/03 2003/04

£'000 £'000

9,044 Increase / (Decrease) in Cash in Period (9,939)

(3,487) Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Financing 21,227

5,557 Movement in Debt in Period 11,288

(215,941) Net Debt as at 1 April 2003 (210,384)

(210,384) Net Debt as at 1 April 2004 (199,096)

Page 36 

Page 152



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

Page 37 

THE AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Authority is required:

to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for
the administration of those affairs.  In this authority, that officer is the Head of Strategic Finance.

to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

THE HEAD OF STRATEGIC FINANCE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Head of Strategic Finance is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement of accounts, which in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code of Practice), is required to present fairly, the financial position of the authority as 
at 31 March 2004 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Strategic Finance has:

selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

complied with the Code of Practice.

The Head of Strategic Finance has also:

kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

This statement of accounts presents fairly the financial position of the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2004.

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance

June 15, 2004

Page 153



2003-2004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Page 38 

This statement is given in respect of the statement of accounts for Argyll and Bute Council.  I acknowledge my responsibility for ensuring that an
ffective system of internal financial control is maintained and operated in connection with the resources concerned. 

The system of intern financial control can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are 
authorised

The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures
(including segre nt and maintenance of the

stem is u r

is reviewed and agreed by the Council; 

and

nditure against the forecasts.

Argyll and Bute ards defined in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Acco tan C Kingdom.  The work of internal audit is informed by an analysis of 
the ri  to which the Council is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on the analysis.  The Council's Audit Committee endorses the
analysis o  annually, the Internal Audit Manager provides the Audit Committee with a report on internal audit
ctivity in the Council.  The report includes the Internal Audit Manager's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's

My review e s informed by:

the external auditors in their annual audit letter and other reports.

During 2003/2004 Internal Audit has identified a number of areas of potential weakness in the systems of financial control.  They are:-

Following internal reorganisation, revisions to Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations have to be form
required changes previously identified in respect of capital control guidelines.  These areas are being addressed.

Formalisation of and improvement to capital project management disciplines were identified last year as areas where action was required to
address potential weaknesses.  These are currently being addressed by management.

A risk register has been prepared. However the review of this register and development of a risk management strategy has been delayed.
This will be taken forward by the Risk and Governance Manager once appointed.

A number of fundamental weaknesses where identified in the management of operating leases.

A number of fundamental weaknesses were identified in the accounting for property assets.

Management have agreed action plans with Internal Audit, which once implemented, will address the potential weaknesses identified.

In addition attention is drawn to the following matters:

The Council has still to fully develop its approach to asset management strategy and planning.  This is a key requirement to underpin
borrowing in terms of the prudential code.  Arrangements are in place to address this.

During 2003-04 the Council carried out an internal restructuring. Major business and organisation change of this nature always represents a
potential risk to the control environment. However the year end outturn has resulted in a generally satisfactory position and Internal Audit’s
annual report allows me to take comfort, that other than as outlined above, reasonable assurance can be placed on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Financial Control System.

e

al
 and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.

gation of duties), management supervision, and a system of delegation and accountability. Developme
nde taken by managers within the Council.  In particular the system includes:sy

comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget which 

regular reviews by the Council of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

the preparation of regular financial reports which indicate actual expe

Council has an internal audit function, which operates to stand
cy's ode of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the Unitedun

sk
f risk and the internal audit plans.  At least

a
systems of internal financial control.

of th  effectiveness of the system of internal financial control i

the work of Directors and managers within the Council;

the work of internal auditors as described above; and

alised.  This includes the

Bruce West
Head of Strategic Finance

June 15, 2004

Page 154



________________________________________________________________________ 
Disaster Recovery Project     Audit Committee 
 
Head of ICT and Financial Services 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Update 
 
Following the tender process outlined in my report to members of 29th January, the 
Disaster Recovery contract was awarded to Synstar Business Continuity on 29th March 
2004.  Synstar are a specialist Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity provider based 
in Livingston.  They have a worldwide network of over 50 centres in 11 countries and 
have been providing this type of service for 22 years and successfully supported over 500 
client disasters.  
 
The contract applies to those servers originally identified by the SMT as key servers. It 
provides replacement equipment of similar specification to either the affected server site 
or the Disaster Recovery facility in Ardrishaig.  
 
After the award of contract, a 90 day validation period commenced. During this time 
equipment and procedures of both Synstar and ICT were examined and tested.  
 
The validation period culminated in a simulated dual server failure test on 21st – 22nd 
June 2004, which was carried out in the Disaster Recovery facility in Ardrishaig. The 
servers involved were the primary Kilmory e-mail server and the Campbeltown 
payroll/personnel server. Both servers were successfully restored well within the 
parameters set out in the Disaster Recovery plan and tested by users of these systems. 
The validation period and the subsequent testing were completed satisfactorily and a copy 
of the certificate is appended.  
 
Building work on the Disaster Recovery facility, requested by Zurich Insurance, to 
enhance the security of the building is progressing. The alarm has been upgraded and 
Property have completed the design phase of the building work. It is stressed that the 
outstanding building security work does not directly affect the functionality of the facility 
nor has any impact on the operation of the live Disaster Recovery service from Synstar. 
 
The contract is now considered fully operative. Exercises will be carried out at six 
monthly intervals to hone the response of the Disaster Recovery team and the Council’s 
Internal Audit partners, KPMG, have agreed to audit the service in November and 
December of this year. Further details and all project documentation are available in 
Exchange, public folders under IT Dept and Disaster Recovery. 
 
Judy Orr 
Head of ICT and Financial Services 
6th August 2004 
For further information please contact: Gerry Wilson x8936 

Agenda Item 13Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 

  
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 27 AUGUST 2004
  
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PARTNERSHIP 
 
  
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The Council entered a 3 year partnership for internal audit with KPMG in 

February 2002.   The Council requires to consider options available on expiry of 
the current partnership.   This report outlines the approach proposed for giving  
consideration to this. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 The Audit Committee agree the approach outlined in this paper. 
 

3 DETAIL 
 

3.1 Following the initial review of internal audit by Audit Scotland and the 
establishment of an audit committee it was agreed to enter into a 3 year 
partners for internal audit.   In February 2002 KPMG were appointed as our 
internal audit partners for a 3 year period.   The main objective of the 
partnership was to move the Council into band 1 in terms of compliance with 
the Code of Practice on Internal Audit within a 3 year period. 
 

3.2 Band 1 status has been achieved.   This is confirmed by the follow-up review on 
internal audit by Audit Scotland.   The current partnership ends in February 
2005.   There are still areas where further development is required and an 
action plan to address these is being progressed.   However,   with the 
relatively small size of the Council’s internal audit team there is a lack of 
specialist skills, in particular areas e.g.  IT audit.   This together with the  
resources  available within a major accountancy firm for ongoing development 
and support suggest it is worthwhile to consider some form of further 
partnership. Audit Scotland in their follow-up review have advocated  
partnership arrangements and recommend Councils carry out an options 
appraisal exercise on the use of a partnership. 
 
 

3.3 Approval of the Strategic Policy Committee (SPC) to appoint consultants (this is 
in the nature of consultancy contract) is required where the cost exceeds 
£5,000.   Approval will be sought from the SPC on 7 October 2004.  
Acceptance of contracts over £100,000 requires approval of the SPC.  Based 
on the timetable in paragraph 3.4 below the Audit Committee of 4 March 2005 
can make a  recommendation  to the SPC on 17 March 2005.   

Agenda Item 14Page 159



 2

 
 

3.3 
 

In order to take this issue forward the following action is proposed. 
 

 Timescale  Action 
 

 September/October - Carry out an evaluation of partnership with KPMG
 

 September/October - Assess scope of further support/development  
regime for internal audit and options for delivery 
 

 September/October - Prepare  specification,  tender  documentation 
and evaluation criteria for a further partnership 
 

 7 October - Obtain approval of SPC for consultancy contract 
exceeding £5,000. 
 

 3 December - Report outcome of evaluation, proposed scope of 
a new partnership and tendering proposals to 
Audit Committee 
 

 December/January - Invite tenders (4 weeks return period) 
 

 January/February - Evaluate tenders received (4 week period) 
 

 4 March  - Report outcome of tendering exercise to Audit 
Committee with recommendation 
 

 17 March - Recommendation to SPC on preferred partner. 
 

 March - New partnership commences.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bruce West 
Head of Strategic Finance 
12 August 2004 
reports/12augbwwinternalauditpartnership 
 

Page 160


